SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Board of Directors Meeting

February 26, 2026




SJRAS=

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Agenda
Regular Meeting
San Jacinto River Authority Board of Directors
Thursday, February 26, 2026 - 9:00 A.M.
General and Administration Building - Boardroom
1577 Dam Site Road, Conroe, Texas 77304

A quorum of the San Jacinto River Authority Board of Directors will be physically present in the Boardroom
of the General and Administration Building located at 1577 Dam Site Road, Conroe, Texas, as it is the
intent of the Board of Directors to have a quorum physically present at this location. One or more members
of the Board of Directors, however, may participate in the meeting by video-conference call as permitted
under Section 551.127 of the Texas Government Code.

1.

Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance to the U.S. and Texas Flags

Rabbi Edwin Goldberg, D.H.L., Congregation Beth Shalom of The Woodlands

Ceremonial Items

Call to Order

Public Comments (3 minutes per speaker)

Work Session

This item consists of updates, briefings, presentations, and discussion items that may require in-depth

consideration and discussion by the Board.

5.1 Update by the General Manager regarding meetings, projects, events, issues, and activities
pertinent to the Authority.

5.2 Update by the Director of Communications and Public Affairs regarding various division and
department projects, initiatives, tours, meetings, and social media platforms.

5.3 Update regarding the 2023 Sunset Commission’s Recommendations.
5.4 Presentation of the San Jacinto River Authority's Management Audit.

Consent Agenda

This agenda consists of ministerial or "housekeeping" items required by law, such as routine bids,
contracts, purchases, resolutions, and orders; items previously approved by Board action, such as
adoption of items that are part of an approved budget or capital improvement projects, interlocal
agreements, or action which is required by law or delegated to the General Manager; and items of a
non-controversial nature. These items will be considered by a single motion unless removed and placed
on the Regular Agenda for individual consideration at the request of any Director.

6.1 G&A - Minutes

Approval of Minutes - Regular Meeting of January 22, 2026.



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

G&A - Unaudited Financials
Consider approval of the unaudited financials for the month of December, 2025.
G&A, GRP, Lake Conroe, and Woodlands - Mowing and Landscaping Services

Consider authorizing the General Manager to execute a General Services Agreement with
Earthworks Landscaping and Maintenance, LLC, to provide mowing and landscaping
maintenance services for the G&A, GRP, Lake Conroe, and Woodlands Divisions.

Highlands - Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 1 for Structure 2 and South Canal
Bypass Levee Improvements

Consider authorizing the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 1
with Diaz Engineering, LLC, for engineering design of Structure 2 and South Canal Bypass
Levee Improvements for the Highlands Division.

Woodlands - Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 2 for Elevated Storage Tank No. 6
Consider authorizing the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 2
with Halff Associates, Inc., for final design of Elevated Storage Tank No. 6 for the Woodlands
Division.

7. Regular Agenda
This agenda consists of items requiring individual consideration by the Board of Directors.

7.1

7.2

Highlands - Professional Services Agreement and Work Order No. 1 for Siphon 21
Improvements

Consider authorizing the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement and
Work Order No. 1 with BGE, Inc., for preliminary engineering of Siphon 21 Improvements for
the Highlands Division.

G&A - Resolution - Amended Procurement Policy
Consider adoption of a resolution of the San Jacinto River Authority Board of Directors adopting

an amended Procurement Policy by amending Section 2(h)(i), “Delegation of Authority”,
formalizing the General Manager’s approval authority.

8. Executive Session
If necessary, the Board of Directors will adjourn to Closed Session at this point in the meeting to
consider the following items; however, the Board of Directors reserves the right to adjourn to Closed
Session at any time during the course of this meeting as allowed by law.

8.1

Agenda
Page 2

Discussion regarding items identified elsewhere on the agenda pursuant to Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071, Consultation with Attorney; 551.072, Real Property;
551.073, Prospective Gifts; 551.074, Personnel Matters; or 551.076, Security Devices, as
applicable.



8.2 Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, Consultation with Attorney:
8.2.1 Litigation related to Hurricane Harvey, including additional legal services to be provided
by Hunton Andrews Kurth, LLP; and
8.2.2 Litigation involving City of Magnolia, Quadvest, L.P., Woodland Oaks Utility, L.P.,
Titter-Bell and CDF Textiles, LTD, related to GRP, and other potential litigation related
to GRP.

8.3 Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, Real Property:
8.3.1 Discussion regarding the April Sound Driving Range; property located at 14982
Highway 105 West, Montgomery County, Texas; and GRP waterline relocation project
located at Highway 75 and Highway 830.

8.4 Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, Personnel Matters:
8.4.1 Discussion regarding duties and responsibilities of the General Manager.

9. Reconvene In Open Session
The Board of Directors will reconvene in Open Session at this point in the meeting and, if necessary,
take action on any agenda item discussed in Closed Session and/or identified below.

10. Announcements / Future Agenda
Next San Jacinto River Authority Regular Board Meeting - March 26, 2026.

11. Adjourn

Persons with disabilities who plan to participate in the meeting and would like to request auxiliary aids

or services are requested to contact Cynthia Bowman at (936) 588-3111 at least three business days prior
to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.

Agenda
Page 3



~—
‘
S J RA‘ Board Communication

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Item No. Agenda Item Date
6.1 Consider approval of minutes from the Board of Directors meeting of January 22, | 02/26/2026
2026.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Minutes

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approve the minutes of the January 22, 2026, Board of Directors meeting.




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 22, 2026

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Jacinto River Authority was held at 9:00 a.m.,
January 22, 2026, at the San Jacinto River Authority General and Administration Building. Notice of said
meeting was posted as required by law. President Ronnie Anderson, Vice President Ed Boulware, Secretary
Wil Faubel, Secretary ProTem Ricardo Mora (videoconference), Director Stacey Buick, and Director
Stephanie Johnson were present. Treasurer Mark Micheletti was absent. Also in attendance were Aubrey
A. Spear, General Manager; Heather Ramsey, Director of Communications and Public Affairs; Ed
Shackelford, Director of Operations, Connie Curtis, Director of Technical and Operational Services, Pam
Steiger, Chief Financial Officer; Cynthia Bowman, Chief of Staff, Amy Sims, General Counsel, and
Mitchell Page, General Counsel.

1.

Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance to the U.S. and Texas Flags

The invocation was given by Director Stacey Buick and the Pledges of Allegiance to the U.S. and Texas
Flags were led by Director Ronnie Anderson.

Ceremonial Items
2.1 Receipt of Commendations, Awards, and Honoraria
e H-Town Showdown Awards
Mr. Chris Meeks, Mr. Jeff Meyer, and Mr. Matthew Parks presented awards received by the
GRP and Woodlands Divisions at the H-Town Showdown competition.
¢ Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting
Ms. Pam Steiger and the Accounting Department received the Government Finance Officers
Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting award.
Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 9:10 a.m.
Public Comments
Mr. Kevin Lacy provided comments related to Lake Conroe.

Work Session

5.1 Update by the General Manager regarding meetings, projects, events, issues, and activities
pertinent to the Authority

Mr. Spear provided comments related to the various meetings, projects, events, issues, and
activities pertinent to SJRA.

5.2 Update by the Director of Communications and Public Affairs regarding updates related
to various division and departmental projects, initiatives, tours, meetings, and social media



platforms

Ms. Ramsey provided information related to various community engagement events, social
media highlights, and employee highlights.

5.3 Presentation of the Annual Historically Underutilized Business ("HUB") Report
Mr. Justin Ford, Procurement Manager, provided the Board of Directors with the annual
Historically Underutilized Business Report.

5.4 Presentation regarding the Entergy Powerline Replacement Project
Mr. David Sidney, Lake Conroe Manager, presented information related to the Entergy Powerline
Replacement Project.

5.5 Presentation regarding Lake Conroe Gate Operations
Mr. Bret Raley, Raw Water Enterprise Manager, and Mr. Matt Barrett, Water Resources and
Flood Management Division Manager, presented information regarding the Lake Conroe gate
operations, forecast tool development, and the Lake Conroe and Lake Houston Joint Operations
Study.

Consent Agenda

Director Johnson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The motion was
seconded by Director Boulware and carried unanimously.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

G&A - Minutes

Approval of Minutes - Regular Meeting of December 11, 2025.

G&A - Unaudited Financials

Consider approval of the unaudited financials for the month of November, 2025.
Highlands - Amendment to Water Supply Contract with Industrial Customer

Authorize the General Manager to execute an amendment to a water supply contract, in a form
approved by the General Counsel, with an industrial customer for the Highlands Division.

Lake Conroe - Work Order No. 2 for Dam Relief Wells Annual Maintenance

Authorize the General Manager to execute Work Order No. 2 with Integrity Pipeline Services,
Inc., in the amount of $82,702, for Lake Conroe Dam Relief Wells Annual Maintenance Services,
and contract modifications up to the amount approved per the Procurement Policy.

Raw Water Enterprise - Work Order No. 8 for Raw Water Enterprise Rate Model Support
Services

Authorize the General Manager to execute Work Order No. 8 with Carollo Engineers, Inc., in an
amount not to exceed $10,000 for Raw Water Enterprise Rate Support for the Raw Water
Enterprise.



7. Regular Agenda

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

G&A - Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Ms. Jamye Lewis, Accounting Manager, reported on the processes involved in the compilation
of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (“ACFR”). Ms. Jennifer Weineke, Auditor with
Knox Cox and Company, presented the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and reported
an unmodified (“clean”) opinion with no material internal control weaknesses or deficiencies.
Director Faubel, on behalf of the Finance Committee, commended the Accounting Department
for their efforts. Director Buick made a motion to accept the Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report - Audited Financial Statements and Related Notes, and the State Single Audit Report for
the fiscal year ended August 31, 2025. The motion was seconded by Director Faubel and carried
unanimously.

GRP - Resolution - Amended Fiscal Year 2026 Operating Budget for the GRP Division*

Ms. Steiger provided an overview of the proposed amendments to the Fiscal Year 2026 GRP
Operating Budget. She summarized prior Board and GRP Review Committee actions related to
increased surface water production capacity, associated rate reductions, and the use of City of
Conroe settlement funds for bond defeasance. Ms. Steiger explained that the two proposed
budget amendment options directly correlate with the two Fiscal Year 2026 GRP rate order
options. She reviewed both proposed budget amendment options which reflected differing levels
of rate reduction and the potential inclusion of a $500,000 transfer to the Repair and Replacement
Fund (“R&R Fund”). Ms. Steiger noted that if approved, the amended rates would become
effective February 1, 2026, and that both options are projected to provide sufficient revenue to
support GRP operations under anticipated demand conditions. Discussion ensued. Director
Faubel made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2026-R-01, of the San Jacinto River Authority
Board of Directors adopting an amended Fiscal Year 2026 Operating Budget for the GRP
Division by selecting Option 2, whereby reducing the GRP groundwater rate by $0.11, from
$2.62/1,000 gallons to $2.51/1,000 gallons, as well as reducing the GRP surface water rate by
$0.11, from $3.21/1,000 gallons to $3.10/1,000 gallons, and including a $500,000 transfer to the
R&R Fund. The motion was seconded by Director Buick and carried unanimously.

GRP - Order - Amended Rate Order for GRP Participants

Ms. Steiger reiterated that the two proposed budget amendment options directly correlate with
the two Fiscal Year 2026 GRP rate order options, therefore selecting Option 2 provides for a
reduction to the GRP groundwater rate of $0.11, from $2.62/1,000 gallons to $2.51/1,000 gallons
as well as a reduction to the GRP surface water rate of $0.11, from $3.21/1,000 gallons to
$3.10/1,000 gallons. Director Buick made a motion to adopt Order No. 2026-0-01, of the San
Jacinto River Authority Board of Directors amending the Rate Order for GRP Participants, to be
effective February 1, 2026. The motion was seconded by Director Johnson and carried
unanimously.

Highlands - Change Order No. 2 for Siphon 39 and Levee Improvements Project

Mr. Dan Hilderbrandt, Technical Services Manager, provided an overview of the Siphon 39 and
Levee Improvements Project and further explained the circumstances that necessitate Change
Order Nos. 2 and 3. Director Johnson made a motion to authorize the General Manager to execute
Change Order No. 2 with LASS Engineering and Construction, Inc., in the amount of
$149,752.14 and 114 calendar days for the Siphon 39 and Levee Improvements Project for the
Highlands Division. The motion was seconded by Director Boulware and carried unanimously.



7.5 Highlands - Change Order No. 3 for Siphon 39 and Levee Improvements Project

Director Buick made a motion to authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 3
with LASS Engineering and Construction, Inc., in the amount of $186,858 and 21 calendar days,
for the Siphon 39 and Levee Improvements Project for the Highlands Division. The motion was
seconded by Director Johnson and carried unanimously.

Executive Session
The meeting was convened into executive session at 10:56 a.m., under the following provisions:

8.1 Discussion regarding items identified elsewhere on the agenda pursuant to Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071, Consultation with Attorney; 551.072, Real Property;
551.073, Prospective Gifts; 551.074, Personnel Matters; or 551.076, Security Devices, as
applicable.

8.2 Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, Consultation with Attorney:
8.2.1 Discuss litigation related to Hurricane Harvey, including additional legal services to be
provided by Hunton Andrews Kurth, LLP; and
8.2.2 Discuss litigation involving City of Magnolia, Quadvest, L.P., Woodland Oaks Ultility,
L.P., Titter-Bell and CDF Textiles, LTD, related to GRP, and other potential litigation
related to GRP; and

8.3 Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, Personnel Matters:
8.3.1 Discussion regarding General Manager, Director of Operations, Director of Technical
and Operational Services, Director of Communications, Chief Financial Officer, General
Counsel, and Chief of Staff.

Reconvene In Open Session

With a quorum of the Board present, the meeting was called into open session at 11:37 a.m.

10. Announcements / Future Agenda

11.

It was announced that the next San Jacinto River Authority Regular Board Meeting will take place on
February 26, 2026.

Adjourn

Without objection, the meeting was adjourned at 11:38 a.m.

Wil Faubel
Secretary, Board of Directors



V%:;j::';y/),;\:t-:;;
S J R . Board Communication
SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Item No. Agenda Item Date

6.2 Consider approval of the unaudited financials for the month of December, 2025. 02/26/2026

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The monthly unaudited financial statements are intended to keep the Board of Directors apprised of the ongoing
financial condition of the Authority.

The monthly statements include Financial Highlights, Schedules of Revenues and Expenses (Actual and Budget),
Unaudited Balance Sheet, Unaudited Statement of Revenues and Expenses (Summary), and Schedule of Investments.

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Unaudited Financials

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approve the unaudited financial statements for the month of December, 2025.




San Jacinto River Authority

SJRA=

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Unaudited Financial Statements
For the Four Months Ending December 31, 2025

APPROVED BY:

P C. SW 01/15/26

PamJ. Stelgé( CPA Date
Chief Financial Officer

%W\I\M\!\/W\Nm g | 202

Jamy\eww cp . Date‘
Accourtting Manager




San Jacinto River Authority

Unaudited Financial Statements
For the Four Months Ending December 31, 2025

Table of Contents

Unaudited Statement of Net Assets

Raw Water Supply

Lake Conroe Operating and Repair/Replacement

Highlands Operating and Repair/Replacement

Groundwater Reduction Plan Operating

Woodlands Summary

Flood Management

General and Administrative Operating and Repair/Replacement

Bear Branch

Region H

Page(s)

10

11



H uoiBay pue ‘SadIAIag SANJRIISIUIWPY @ [BJAUIL) ‘Youelg Jeaq = 19Y)0,

G19'996'2S ¢ G€2969'Llc  $ L€9'L€6'8C $ 68€ZHO'SL $  SLL'SSLVIy $  66LV9S'T  $ <C0ZlpL'90L $ 9vi‘6S6'TC  $ 6zL0LZ'Z8 $  98¢'€/8°208 §
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 899'9ZL'S $  899‘9zL'S $
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 899'02/'G $  899'9Z/°G $

L0S‘'eh8'€  $ z.E'cl6'0Z  $ $99'9LZTZ  $ €9L'8eS'2Z  $§  LLE'6vL0E  $  ££0°C6S $ cco‘eyl'e8 $ TL9.60TL ¢ G£69S€Ty  $  LSLELLL'SES $
- - - (006°99) - - (622'22€) - - (6£9'6.€)

(585'892'9) (60£'689'GS) (£28'€50°L¥) (9v0°181'29) (zsz'oeL'vsL) (0051 1) (z06'025'2€) (825'0v6'Y) (¥15'8€6°S) (885'785'89¢)

980°2L9'0€ $ 189'799'9L $ L€5'0/2'€9 $ 6019006 $ 6296519y $  €€5'%09 $ v12'9€0'9LL $ 062'866'9L $ 8iv'GeC'ey  $ LLO'9ELV06 $
- $ - $ - $ - $ €.0'e82'C $ - $ - $ - $ - $ £.0'c82'C $
- $ - $ - $ - $ €/0'e82°C $ - $ - $ - $ - $ €/0'e82°C $

gLl‘ceL'ez $ €98‘zeL $ €L6%1L9 $ 92Z'P0S‘'2S  $  beL'zz0'60L  $  99L°LI6°L  $ 69L'V09‘CT  $ wIvLO6OL ¢ 92S‘9ZL'vE  $  ¥68'L69'P9Z
- - - ¥€8°901°} 8€2'€9G 6v5'L 1G1'6G1 L1816 (006°c1) ¥2e'sL6°L
v16°ZL 950°} 192'60%°1 - - - 611205 111682 2598'609'G G16'628L
- vyl - 6G%°650'C 1€1'286°L eV1'92L ogl‘se £81'e5L'e 6292082 120'06€°LL
- - - £9£'0¥' 12 - - - - - £9£'60¥' L2
652°0L 162 - G0Z'S0€‘G G88°/2G'S 122'988°9 - 290°91€°91L 6ES'120°C 99¢°16L'Y 8€0'601°0.
- 190202 - 967'6€6'C 888°66Y'6¢ - - - 169'v8L°9 G/8'92E'6¥
- - - 9/¥'%55'8 1GE°2€9'6 - 1209859 62.'662'1 009'629'C ¥£2'869°L€E
- - - - - v10'88L°L - - 098'G18‘} ¥£6'€00'C
- $ - $ - $ c/6'8166 ¢  €8./88'0F $ - $ - $ - $ ecv'ole’0L  $  v8LLLLL9 S
juswoaoeiday  J9jemalsepn saljijoe Bunesado uolsIAIQ uolsIAIQ spuejybiy 904U0) d¥)eT] L9410 |ejol
R sleday R 19)Jep\ ainin4 Sspue|poop\ ue|d uolonpay juswabeuepy » aspdiajug
Jajempunols pool4 J19)ep\ mey

UOISIAIQ SPUBIPOOM

uoisialg BunesadQ |esauan

G20Z ‘L€ Jaquiada( jo sy

s}ossy JON JO Juawale)s payipneun
Ajuoyiny JaAry ojuider ueg

sjassy |ejol

SMOINQ patiagaq [ejol
uoisuad
SMOINQ paliageq

sjassy |ejde) jaN
uoljez|jowy payenwnody ssa7
uonjerpaidaq paje|nwnady :Ssa7
sjessy [ejde) [ejoL

sjossy |eyde)

S}OSSY JUSLINDUON [ejo )
$8|qeAlsdsy wia ] -buo
S}9SSY JUSLINJUON

S}assy jualng |ejo|

sasuadx3 piedald JaY)Q pue AIojusAaul

spun4 Jayj0 wous eng
8|qeAIs08Y S)JUNODdY
MOJOST UO)ONIISUOD
uopoNIsuo)
20IM9S 1990
ISR
ysed
‘pajoL)sey
pajouisalun
sjuajeAInb3 ysen pue ysen
[SESVATIEYIT B



H uoiBay pue ‘sadIAIaG AAIRIISIUIWPY B [eIBUID ‘Youelg Jeaq = J8Y}0,

619'996°CS $ G€2°969°lz $ L£9°1€6'8C $ 68ETVO'SL $  SLL'SSLPLY  $  66L'V9ST $ 20Z'lbl'90L $ o9vi'6S6'TZ ¢ 6ZL'0Le'T8 $  98€€.8°L08 aduejeg pung @ sailjiqerT [ejoL
¥0.°268'2S  $ 299'v¥6’E $ 1€9°1€6'8C $ G8€'G62'9¢ ¢ _88E'6YZ'69 $ 251'68S $ S/v'0.2'69 ¢ 1Sp'0zETZ ¢ 080°VELLL  $  8€E6'€29°09 aduejeg punj [ejoL
0€9'PGLL (v05'€v9) (9¥€'295) €62°0L0°C 89¥'CGE’L 96€'¥8€ 208°LGE'E 888'08Y'L (9pv'L21) G8L'LG6'YL SNUBASY JON jualiny
vL0'8ELLG  § 1LL'88S'Y $ ege'e6v'6c  § 160'G8CVE  § 026°968°19 $ 952002 $ 199'816'G9 § v9s'6€8'0c $ 9zS'LleLL  § zsLzio'sve $ dduejeg pun JESA Jolid
aouejeg pung

LL6°€L $ 895162721 $ - $ v00‘lbl'8€ $  181'GOS'SPE $  8V9'6.6°L $ lzl'9l¥'le  $ 669°8€9 $ 6v0920°G $ evv'eveir $ sapliiqelq |ejol
- ¢ 896'660°GL  $ - $ esv'see’oe  §  €69'eSLlee  $ 8lElEllE $ Gv9'sov'vE  § 29s‘c0€ $ 6ZLYPS'Y 88¢'8€8'60y ¢ sapiliqer] waa) 6uo |ejor

- - - - - - - - - - sijeuag juswAojdwz JeyjQ-smojju| paisjeqg

- - - - - - - - 162°€99°C L6Z'€99°E uolsuad-Ajliger] pue smoju| pauejeq

- - - 680°6€€ ¥€9°091L €L€'.€ 1€2°8Y zes'eLl 088°598 GEL'VISL Ayiqer soussqy pajesuadwo) wus | buo

- - - 198852 - - ¥96°C€ 0v0°'061 8661 621'96Y sjyeuag juswiAojdwz Is0d Jouio

- 895'S6€E"L - - 81L0°c6 - 9z0°zov'L - - 119°068°C S}S0Q dduenss| puog

- - - €0G°21 - - 618Gl - - zee'ee Ajiger eses wis 1 -Buo

- $ o000'099°cl $ - $ ooo‘ocs'6z $ 000°006'02€  $ - $ ooo‘ole'ze $ - $ - $ ooo'06LZ6€E $ 199Q wa1-buo
saiqer] wia Buod

126°€L $ 000969°C $ - $ SySLIv's $ _ver'zseve $ slz'eve’l $ 280°890°C $ ecl'see $ 026°LES 090°L LY LY $ saljljiqelq jualing |ejo
- - - 820°6 - - Trs'el Trs'el vz6'y GE0'LY Ager] g3do

- 0009614 - 862’801 yyy'1Z8'e L9912 005°GS€E - - €18°269'Y Sjuel pue spuog Uo }saidju] paniddy

- - - 959°6 - - Liv'oy - - ¥20°0S Aujiqer eses wua1-Hoys

- 000005 - 000°'029°} 000°048°LL - 00002 - - 000°08Z'¥2 199Q wia1-Uoys

- - - - - G66°GSE'L - - - G66°GSE'L SNUSASY palisjad
000°0S - - - - - G8Z'G9l YAZAS"]" - zes'8Le SajljiqerT uopdonsuoy
L16°€C $ - $ - $ €09'7L99 $ 069°099°C $ 609°69¢ $ see'ese $ Sye'sst $ 966'92S $ 1G5°209°04 $ saniliger] paniody Jaylo pue sjqeded sjunoooy

salIqer] JuaLing

juswaoe|day  19}eMa3)SEA\ sanjoey Bunesado uolsialg uolisiAlg spuejybiH 201uo0) aye] A9Ul0 lejol
g sleday 3 J19Jep ainyng spue|poop ue|d uoponpay  jusawsabeuepy g asudiayug
Jajempunoln pooi4 J9)ep\ Mey
UOISIAIQ SPUB|POOM uoisialg BuiesadQ [esauan

G202 ‘1€ 19qwiada( Jo sy
S}ossy JON JO Jusawajels pajipneun
Auoyiny JaAry ojuioer ueg



09€°890°TT $§  TETOTH $ 606169 $ 9TE6EEL $ TTTGILT $§ €97°898°T § (SASN) SADANOS SISV HSVD LAN
(L99°€E) $ - $ (L99°cE) $ (L99°cE) $ - $ - $ (SASN) SADANOS YAHLO TV.LOL
000°0SS $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ pun,j judwaseday 29 sredoy 03 Surwoouy
(L99°¢8S) $ - $ (L99°¢¢) $ (L99°¢) $ - $ - $ puny judwsoe|doy 29 sreday o3 LJsuel],
(SASN) SADANOS YAHLO
LISYSY $  T66°6El1 $  69b°€ST $ LLV'EY $  TSOLE $ LLYET $ SINANWAAOYIII TV.LIAVD
Pr8°9SSTT $  0VT°08T $ 0€T90IL $ OLV98€'L $ HL8908T $ ObLISST § SASNHAIXT YTAO SHANTAATA LAN
L8I‘L66 $  9S6VII $ LO6'LIE $ 1S6°°0T $  9LV'6L $ 8SS‘9F $ SASNAIXA TV.LOL
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SASNAIXA ONILLVIHJO-NON
L8I‘L66 $  9S6VII $ LO6'LIE $ 1S6°°07 $  9L¥'6L $ 8ss‘9F $ SASNAIXA ONILVIAJO TV.LOL
¥$S°T6 619°¢1 8+8°0¢ 6TT LI 61L°L 9t sosuadxy SANBLSIUTWPY 29 [BIOUSD)
- - - - - - syred 29 sireday ‘OouBUIIUIBIA
- - - - - - NN
116°¢¢ 881°L €0E°T1 S18°¢ ST8°C 011 sanIuN % s[eusjely ‘sorjddng
86¢ S 66 ¥6 ST 6 SOOIAIDS PIJOBNUOY) 29 Paseyding
000862 866°¢8 €2€°66 STESI €T8YC 6£9 $09,] [BUOISSAJOI]
€TYTLS $ 9986 $  PEEILT $ 889991 $  $80bY $ 8coor $ syyouag ddkodwy 79 ‘safep ‘soLe[es
SASNAJXA ONILLVIAJO
- $ (000 $ - $ (007) $ - $ 07 $ SANNIATY YAHLO
IE0'PSS€ET $  H8HSII $ LEIPTHFL $ TT968S'L $ 0SE988T § 8LI'L6'T $ SANNIATY ONLLVIAJO
1ebpng aouBLIBA 1ebpng |lenjoy 1ebpng |lenjoy
lenuuy alA laqwadaqg

ST0T ‘I€ 19quIII( SUIPU SYIUOJA ANO YY) 10
uostedwo)) 393png 0) [en)Oy
A1ddng 13)e A MeY - JI0YINY JIARY] 0UBL UBS

GZ02/1.0/L0 @AnoaYe ‘suojieb 000°L/19°0$ e1ey Jsiepm



(6E1°vE€TD) L89°60S $ (SLL'LSO'D) S (880°8LS) (200°SLT) $ (996°€8T) (SASN) SADANOS SISV HSVD LAN
S98°€9L (L99°€E) $ (1TL‘8S) $ ($S0°SD) - $ (175°99) (SASN) SADANOS YAHLO TV.IOL
606°S9¢°T (£99°¢¢) - L99°€€ - - puny juswaoe|dey pue aredoy 03 Surwoouy

(601°89¢°T) - (0020 (0020 - - pun,{ juswsoe[day pue rredoy 03 Iofsuei],

(000°S€T) - - - - - pun,] 9AIasay Aouoiowyg

(125°99) - (125°99) (125°99) - (125°99) puny 941983y SunendQ
986°L56 - $ - $ - - $ - pIemIo, douefed Yse)

(SASN) SADANOS YAHLO
6V I8¢ $0T‘sE $ Pbs'691 $  OvEPET LOLLY $ TIv0‘se SINANAAOIYIIAI TV.LIdVD

(SSL°919°) 918°‘0%¥ $ (015°6S8) $ (b69°8TH) (S67°L0D) $ (bo¥‘T6) SASNAIXT HHAO SANNTATT LAN
LELSOT 6 0L600I‘T $ 96S°LI6T $ 9T9°9I8‘T 696°81L $ T8SL6E SASNAJIXA TV.LOL

- - $ - $ - - $ - SASNAIXA ONLLVIAdO-NON
LELSOT 6 0L600T‘T $ 96S°LI6T $ 9T9°9I8‘T 696°81L $ T8SL6E SHSNAJXA ONILLVIAJO TV.LOL
66€°LYTT 984" ¢T1 S 00t 996°98C 1SL°86 0559 sasuadx{ SANBISIUTWIPY 79 [BISUSD)
00S¥9L YTT8IT 808¥ST ¥85°9¢ £89°¢9 CIT’L Sped 29 sireday ‘QOUBUSIUIEIA
999°GL 1189 0TT'sT 60181 €0€9 8LLE s[euay
869°STL 69L°€8 9/8°THT LOT'8ST TSH09 8¢vE sanIu 7 s[erdjel ‘sarjddng
6€0°SL9 61091 I¥0°€1T 6¥SCS 18TvY S61°61 SIOTAIDG PIJOBRIUOY) 29 PIseydIng
00S°L¥0°C $98°€TS €789 89686 T LSSOLT (95L°9) $39,] [EUOISSaJOI]
$€6°695°¢ (9L9°9) § L9L°660°T $ €PPSOIT TH6'vLT $ 00£9LT syyouag ddkodwyg 29 ‘safep ‘soLe[es

SASNAIXA ONILLVIAJO
000°0€ PIS‘TL $ 666°T1 $ €ISP8 666°T $ $89°07 SHANAATY YHHLO
786°TSH°9 (899°T¢€L) $ L809Y0T  $ 6IFEIET SL9°80S $ €ov'H8T SANNAATH ONILVIAJO
18bpng aouelep 1°bpng lenjoy 1°bpng lenjoy
|enuuy adlA Jaquiadag

ST0T ‘I€ 19quIdI( SUIPU SYIUOJA[ ANO Y 10
uostedwo)) 393png 0) [en)Oy

juswde[day/ireday pue SunerdadQ 30au0)) e - AJLIOYINY JIATY OJUIIE[ UBS



(8€9°€86°TI) $  68L0TS'S $ (bSOb6S0T) § (S9T°€L0S) §  (0L9°SI8T) $ (HESVIET) § (SASN) SADANOS SISVI HSVD LAN

6LYVT66°LT $  TOS‘p $ (60sTs6) $ (010°LS6) $ (Lg6‘061) $ (Lz¥'osE)  $ (SHSN) SHDOUNOS YAH.LO TV.ILOL
¥66°TSLE - 866°0ST°1 866°0ST°1 0SLTIE 0SLTI¢ pun,] jusuwdoe[doy pue aredoy 03 Furwodu|
(P16°€6L°€) - (816°16T°1) (816°16Z°1) (0sLT1¢) (0sLT1€) pun, juswdoe[doy] pue Iredoy 03 IJsuei],
(000°59) - - - - - pun, 9AI9S9Y AousdIowyg
(6867ST) 10St (6867ST) (06t°6S1) - (06t°6ST) puny 2A19s9y SuneradQ
(065°05) - (L10°LT) (L10°L1) 0LZY) (0LTY) Tedroutrg 9sed]
(L16°T€T0) - (¢8s°6€L) (¢85°6€L) (L99°981) (£99°981) [edourg puog
$68°9€5°0T  $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ pIemIOg dour[eq yse)

(SESN) SADYNOS YAHLO

6SE0TIT'ST $ 6VOPTL'S $ 60SBI8L $ 09VP60'T $  ILTELI'T $ PISILS $ SININIAOIIINI TVLIAVD
(LsL's9Ls) ¢ (6SL86T)  $ (9€0°cT81) $ (S6L1T0D) $  (Tor‘isy)  $§ (evs1vp)  $ SASNAIXHT YTAO SHANTATA LAN
7€0°T86'8 $  L88F8S $ 889°b68C $ T08°60€T S S6TGIL $ 8¥9°STS $ SASNAIXH TVIOL
669°0€H'T  $ - $ 9L8‘I8Y $ 9LS8I8K $  IS98IIT $ TIS9'8IT $ SASNAIXH ONILVIAJO-NON
PEE0SS'L $  L88P8S $ TISTIV'T $ ST6'LI8T S  +¥9°009 $ L66°90¥ $ SASNAIXH ONILVIAJO TVIOL
1E¥°L9S 08T°¢6 STI'681 S8°66 YTELY 78TYT Sosuadxy OANEISIUNUPY 29 [EIOUID
002°860°1 L8EV6I 0£0°99¢ PO 1LT 0816 8+0°6C sued 29 siredoy ‘ooueusjuIe]N
000°001 (9v6°z01) ogeee 9LTO¢T 0£€°8 10L s[euay
LIL'S9TT €€9°06 £€6°88¢ 006°L6T Y01°L6 9589 SN[ % S[ELRIRIN ‘sarfddng
L96°8€T 88199 88¢°8L 006°TT 68181 T09°1 SOOIAIOG PAJIENUOY) 29 PoseydIng
STOWLI YEE S €56°19 6191 €50°p1 L9L9 90 [eUOISSAJOIJ
60°50Ty  $  TIL°L6I €S¥S6T’T  $ THLL60T $  $98°cTe $ 15S0°9LT $ sygouag dokordurg 29 ‘soSep ‘SOLIEleS
SASNAIXH ONILVIAJO
000°S8T $ sveotT $ 19979 $ 900°887 $ II¥ST $ SOT‘v8 $ SANNIATI YTHLO
SLT0E0'E $ (166°600°T) $ 166°600°T § - $  TUFTST $ - $ SANNIATE ONILVIAdO
18bpng ERIEIETN 186png |enjoy 18bpng lenjoy
lenuuy alAa laquedeq

ST0T ‘I€ 19quIdIA( SUIPUy SYIUOJA] N0 Y} 104
uosrreduio)) 393png 03 [en)Oy
judwIE[day/areday pue Suneardd( SpuB[YSIH - AJLIOYINY JIATY OJUEBL UueS



LT6°T8L8 STOT/TE/T1 e SAep +(9 SO[QBAIIY AN( ISEd [EIOL s
*9[qBAIIOY SIUNOIDY dN(J Ised U0 Ajjeuad 29 JSOIOIUT SOPN[OU, 4
'sAed o3 ainjrey pue sked-j10ys Jurpnjour sUI[[Iq [ENIOE APN[OUT SONUIAIY 4
000°60S°6 80I°TH9°L $ SLLOIET  $ 988°LS6'8  $ (8€T°600°T) $ $S6°SHI°T (SASN) SADANOS SISV HSVD LAN
(9S8°011°T1) ILT°689°C §  (€Ts'6s6'9) $  (zsT'oLT'e) $ (LoT'68FD $ SES6IV'L (SASN) SADUNOS YAHLO TVLOL
- 1S1°00L°C - 1ST°00L°T - T0L'806°C #%#PIIO[[0OUN-I]BAIIINY SHUNOIDY
oooaoohmm - - - - - _uﬁsm Hcogoow_mom ﬁcm bs&om 0] mEEooEH
(078°0£8°¢) - (ozs‘oL) (0zs‘oL) - - pun, juowaoe[dey] pue areday 0) RJsueI],
(611°686) 0Z1°686 (0z1°686) - - - puny aA1950y Sunesdo
(L16TISLT) - (£85°668°S) (£85°668°S) (L9T°681°T) (L9T°68+°T) [edoutid puog
000°T9L‘9 - - $ - $ - $ - pIemio aouefeq ysed
=(SASN) SADINOS YAHLO
6€6°1TI°E 0ETPTI‘L $ LIS09T°T  $ L8T9ET $ 6L0°0TT $ S9I°91 SINANIAOYIINI TV.LIAVD
€6LIPLYT L09°LT8T $ 8189¢S6  $ STHYIETT  $ 800°00L $ ¥8S‘THT SASNAIXA YIAO SHANIATI LAN
SLO‘VHI by SPT'peE $ 0EETPEYL  $ S80'800°F%1  $ TSSL8S'E  $ 6E8 VIS SASNAIXA TVLOL
6ET°IHEST (€09°LT) $ $00°TSI’S  $ L0969T°S  $ SISCLTT  § SISELTT SASNAIXA ONILVIAdO-NON
SE6°T0E°6T 88°ISE $ 97€0616  $ 8Lp'8E88 § LEL'SIET  $ Y0 IHPTE SASNAIXA ONILVIALO TVILOL
L18°69S 0€0°C8 026°681 068°L01 €TS'LY 098°9T SOSURAXH SANBNSIUILIPY 29 [BIOUSD)
08T H98°1 14649 S9€°129 YTy 9ss S6TSST ¥LT90T sped 29 sredoy] ‘@oueUUIEIN
000 118 €ee’l 443 €ee - S[eIuy
S61°865°81 (6LT°8¢Y) TES0SLS 118°881°9 ¥09°6SH°1 8S1°819°C soninq % sjereley ‘sorfddng
187°08¢€ LEO°0E 066°8T1 £56'86 T6°LT TEL'YT SAOIAIOG PAJOBIUOY) 29 PIseydInd
SLE08ST 90°St9 €TL€98 LL9'8TT €THYIT 098°CS $00,] [BUOISS9JOI
881°50€°S (8¢LTE) P HE9T  $ 102°L99°T  $ L19°80% $ ov1Tly sygouag vakojdwy 2p ‘sofep ‘soLieles
SASNAIXA ONILVIAJO
0PIb0E 9THIFTL $ 0LETOT $ 96LTHET  $ SEEST $ 6ELT9€ =xSANNIATH YAHLO
87L180°69 9€6°ISTT $ SLLLLLET $ PIL'6T0ST $ STT'L9TY $ $89°S6€ Y *SHOINTATI ONILVIAIO
193png dUBLIEA 193png [en)RVy 193png [en)RVy
[enuuy dlLA JqUIdII(Q

ST0T ‘T€ 19U SUIPUT SYIUOTA AN0] Y} 10

uostredwo)) 393png 03 [en}Oy

JudwRIE[dayy/areday pue sunesdQ YO - AI0YINY JIIARY 0JUIIEL UBS

Suo[[ed 000 1/17°€$ o1y Iorep soeyIng
suo[[es 000°1/79°C$ ey d8edung MO



(6L6°0ET°T) 00¥°8TS 0T (8¥6°6E1°L) $ TSH'88E'E (LSS‘01S'E) $  6E8°IIT (SASN) SADUNOS SISVI HSVD LAN
$99°TSH €€ - @6ty $§ (@6 ThH'D) (987°8%€) $ (987°8p€) (SASN) SADYNOS YHAHLO TV.LOL
000°000°9 - 000°006°T 000°006°T 000°0SY 000°0SY puny judwdoeday pue treddy 03 Jurwoou]

(090°190°9) - (090°196°1) (090°196°1) (000°0S1) (000°0S¥) pun,f juswdoe[day pue Iredsy 03 fsuel],

(L8t'6) - (ze1'e) (ze1'9) (982) (982) [edoutig asea]

(0SL8STY) - (0SL°8LET) (0SL'8LET) (00S°LYE) (00S°LYE) [edoutg puog
196°189°LE - - $ - - $ - pIemlo ] douefeq yse)

(SASN) SADYNOS YAHLO
850°990°0t T€8°ILE'L SEITISL $ LOSObY 8YL'S6T'E $ 8PS6IT SINIWIAOYIINI TV.LIAVD
SIPI8Y'S 69S°9ST°E TEISTIIT $ TOLILTS LLYEET $  €L9°6L9 SASNAIXH YAAO SANNAATY LAN
7€8°01C'SY 6v9°8HS°T EPS'BIOST $  168°694°TI 8PS09I°C  $  IHETOLT SASNAJXH TVILOL
86S°8TT‘T - ySLOTY $ VYSLOTH 681 101 $ 68101 SASNAJIXA ONILLVIAdO-NON
YET 786 EH 6V9‘8¥S°T 68L'TO9PI  $  OFI‘ESOTI 6S0°6S0°C  $ TS8°009°C SASNAIXH ONLLVIAJIO TV.LOL
YrLYL6 LOTTE 122°00€ ¥10°69¢ SSO°SL $70°99 S3suUSdX SANENSIUIWPY 29 [BIOUSID
0S1°06t°8 YTy SIET L9L°6T8°C EPEVIS 0€T°LOL 9TT'LST sped 29 siredoy] “dourusjuIRI
000°CI 000t 000 - 000°T - s[eyuy
S68°0LS 9 900°0Ct 6€¥°€0T°C CEY 8L T L8TT6Y vLIC6Y sonIuN 7% s[eteleA ‘serjddng
SLTT8LLT (€¥8°9¢¢) S09°811°9 8P SS9 189°L66 L99%90°T SOOIAIOS PAJORNUO)) 79 PISEYIING
$T9°059 (9g9°zeD) LEEBIT €L6°0t€ 6v6°€S S0S°6S1 39, [eUOISSAJ0I]
9v$T0S°6 16V°LET 0TF'LT6T  $ 6T6°689°C LSSTIEL $  $ST099 syyousgl ddKorduwy 29 ‘saep ‘solre[es

SASNAIXA ONILVIAJO

00L°ILS 09Z°1L8 8vS061 $  808T90°1 €T9°LY $ €V6'LLT SANNIATY YAHLO

LYS‘TTI0S (0¥€°€97) LTIEP6'9T $  L8L6LYOT W0PoPT’e $  TLOYOI‘E SANNAATI ONLLVIAJO
196png ERIEIEIN 196png |enoy 196png |enoy

lenuuy alA Jaquisdeg suojieb 000°L/26°Z$ :81ed pepus|g 44D

Arewiuing Spue[pooAp - AJLI0OYINY JIATY OJUdB[L ues

ST0T ‘1€ 19quadd( SuIpuy SYIUOA N0, Y} 104

uosriedwo)) 3o3png 0} [EN)OY

suojieb 000'1/59°G$ :91ey Jalemalsep
suojieb 000°L/gL Z$ ‘d1ey Je1em



(LOE9ET'T) LYT61¥ $ (867°66€) 6v6°61 $  (b17°86) $ (ST0'bT1) (SASN) SADANOS SISV HSVD LAN
- - $ - - $ - $ - (SASN) SADIANOS YTHLO TVLOL
- - $ - - $ - $ - suonnqrIuo)) IauyeJ-piemio,] A1re) ysed
(SASN) SADANOS YAHLO
0v+‘86¥ TLE9L $ PIr'891 75076 $  PETTH $ €60°69 SINAINTIAOYJIIAI TV.LIAVD
(L98°LEL) SL8THE $ (bL8'0ED) 100°TIT $  (086°95) $ (T€6YS) SASNAIXA HTAO SHONTATI LAN
L98°0TET 1EP 1€S $ 88H°8SL LSO°LTT $  pp8°88I $ TIEH8S SHSNAJIXA TV.LOL
- - $ - - $ - $ - SASNAIXA ONILVIAdO-NON
L98°0TET 1EP 1€S $ 88H°8SL LSO°LTT $  pH8°88I $ TIEH8S SHASNAIXA ONILVIAJO TV.LOL
100°611 661 £99°6¢ Y12°0T ST6°6 66T°S SasuadX{] SANRSIUIWPY 2 [BISUID
000°ST 658°C 000°S Iv1°C 0ST‘1 - Sped 29 sireday ‘QOUBUSIUIRIA
- - - - - - S[eIuy
¥¥T'99 90T‘ST 6L0vT €188 89T°S 8T1IT sanin) % sfeuale ‘sarpddng
SL0°9S 99t°81 069°81 vTT 1L9Y 1 S3OIAISS PSJORIUO)) 29 PISEYdINJ
000°68¢‘T ¥65°09t ¥S6°C9t 09¢€°C YOLSTT 0L9°T $39] [BUOISSJOI]
85619 LSSY1 701°80C ST $  970°CS $ cecor syyouag sako[dwiy 29 ‘safep ‘saLe[es
SASNAIXT ONILVIAIO
0SL6LL (€€8°0¥0) $ 1686ST 85S0°61 $  €S6v9 $ 66¥°C SANNIATH YAHLO
0ST°€08 LLTTS $ €TLL9T 000°0T€ $ 11699 $ - SHANAATY ONILLVIAdO
19bpng aouelep 19bpng lenjoy 19bpng lenjoy
|enuuy alA laquedeg

ST0T ‘1€ 1OqUIddI( SUIPU SYIUOIA AN YY) 10,
uosredwo)) 393png 03 [Ny
JUIWISRUBIA] POO[ - AJLIOYINY IIATY OJULIB[ UBS



T11°9%C 760°v€8 $ (861°LLL) $ $68°9S $ (L90°T6) $ 9LSLE $ (SASN) SADANOS SISV HSVD LAN
601 €L8‘T - $ 8SLOST $ 8SL0ST $ - $ (v $ (SASN) SADANOS YAHLO TVIOL
000°SLT - 000°SLT 000°SLT - - puny juswsoe|dey pue areday 03 Surwoou]
(000°€08) - - - - - pun, yuswooe[doy pue seday 0} I9JSuLI],
(000°081) - - - - - punj oAI9s9Yy Aouadiowg
(¢hTvo) - (¢hTvo) (ThTvo) - (¢vT'vo) puny 941983y SunendQ
1S9°S0L°T - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ pIemIO, doueled Yse)
(SASN) SADANOS YAHLO
1S8°€0T°1 1ST°99% $ 9€6°LLL $ S89TIE $ SITES $ P8ETI $ SINANAAOIYJIANI TV.LIdVD
(CT2 ¥4 7)] 1+8°L9€ $ (0zo0‘0sT) $ TT8LIT $  (7s8‘8c) $ T0TEL $ SASNAIXT YAAO SHONTATT LAN
€59°€8S 9€S 191 $ LIV'E0T $ I88‘TH $ L6ITS $ 96I‘S $ SASNAJIXA TV.LOL
- - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SASNAIXA ONLLVIAdO-NON
€59°€8S 9¢S 191 $ LIV'E0T $ I88‘T¥ $ L6ITS $ 96I°S $ SHSNAJXA ONILLVIAJO TV.LOL
(£19°865°¢) (969°7¥¢) $ (969°SST°T) (000°T18) (P15°2820) (S€9'v61) sosuadx{ SANEISIUTWPY 79 [BISUSD
001°98¢ T18°¢8 §  LyY'S6el SEOTTT LYy8'8Y 006°C Sped 29 sireday ‘QOUBUSIUIEIA
089°6€ 611°1 § sTTeT 901°CT S0¢'c GL8°C s[eyusy
891°81S°T CLI6TE $  S00°90S 7€8°981 ¥91°9T1 8T1H'vH sanIu 7 s[erdjel ‘sarjddng
SL6YST €788 $  €S91S 0€8°cy 606°CT 6€9°T1 SIOTAIDS PIJOBRIUOY) 29 PIseydIng
0L9TLY 80568 $  I¥SLST £€0°89 €LE6E YLT'8T $39,] [EUOISSaJOI]
€LEOTYT L6LE § TrTsey NS A 37 §  €I8°801 $  STLSIT $ syyouag ddkodwyg 29 ‘safep ‘soLe[es
SASNAIXA ONILLVIAJO
907°091 0L7°902 $ L6EES $ L99°6ST $  SpE€l $ 86€8L $ SHONAATY YAHLO
- S¢ $ - $ s¢ $ - $ - $ SANNAATI ONLLVIAdO
18bpng aouelep 1°bpng lenjoy 1°bpng lenjoy
|enuuy adlA Jaquiadag

ST0T ‘I€ 19quIdI( SUIPU SYIUOJA ANO Y 10
uostedwo)) 393png 03 [en)Oy

yuaudde[dayy/areday pue Sunesdd( UONENSIUTWPY PUE [BIIUIL) - AJLIOYINY JIALY OJUIDE[ UBS



TS T8 9€L 'S8T $ T161°9¢k LT6°1T9 $ (c6¥'6L) $ (899°0¢) (SASN) SADANOS SISV HSVD LAN
6LTLLOT - $ - - $ - $ - (SASN) SADIANOS YAHLO TVILOL
- - - - - - pun,] 9A19s9Yy Suneradp
6LTLLOT - $ - - $ - $ - pIemIo, soueleq yse)
(SASN) SADANOS YAHLO
000°41T°1 LSET6E $ €9V OF 987°€I $  PI‘TOI $ 987T¢cT SINAINTIAOYJIII TV.LIAVD
€PT8L6 (179°5020) $ pESOPS €ITSE9 $ 08917 $ (Z8ELD) SASNAIXT HTAO SHONTATI LAN
S8E°6LS S09°T€ $  60S‘S8T $06°€ST $  ObLvb $ 9pI‘ST SHASNAJIXA TV.LOL
- - $ - - $ - $ - SASNAIXA ONILVIAdO-NON
S8E°6LS S09°T€ $  60S‘S8T $06°€ST $  ObLvb $ 9pI‘ST SHASNAIXA ONILVIAJO TV.LOL
1,L9°CS 120°¢ ¥98°91 CH8CI L90Y LETT sasuadX{] SANRISIUIWPY 2% [BISUID
00S°LET 150°0T 6ST°6L 801°6S ¥8L61 ¥€9°G Sped 29 sieday ‘QOUBUSIUIBIA
000°S L99°T L99°T - LY - s[ejuy
0S9°s 120°1 €88°1 798 ILYy 91T sanim() % s[euale ‘sarpddng
€6¥°6¢C 968°L 968°L - €8y - S3OIAISS PSJORIUO)) 29 PISEYdIN
000¥S LT 866°L1 90T‘ST 861t SE9°T $30 [BUOISSJOI]
0L0°S61 (€08‘y) $ T80°09 S88%9 $  0T0°ST §  PTssT syyouag dako[dwiy 29 ‘safep ‘saLe[es
SASNAIXT ONILVIAJO
006°96L 9TT°LED) $ SI19°697 68€°8T $  06£99 $ PoLL SANNIAATT YAHLO
8TL09L - $ 8TL09L 8TL09L $ - $ - SHANAATY ONILLVIAdO
19bpng aouelep 19bpng lenjoy 19bpng lenjoy
|enuuy alA Jaquiadag

ST0T ‘1€ 19quIddI( SUIPU SYIUOIA ANO 3Y) 10,
uosredwo)) 393png 03 [Ny
Jouelg J1edq - AJLIOYINY JIALRY OJUB[ UBS



- 8¥6°LT1 $ (991) $ T8LLII () $ (856) (SASN) SADANOS SISV HSVD LAN
00S - $ - $ - - $ - (SASN) SADIANOS YAHLO TVLOL
00S - $ - $ - - $ - pIemIO, doueleq Yse)

(SASN) SADANOS YAHLO

- - $ - $ - - $ - SINANAAOUJIAIL TV.LIAVD

(00s) 8Y6 LTI $ (991) $  T8LLII (€42)] $ (8s6) SASNAIXT HTAO SHONTATI LAN
TTSLES €61°€0€ $ 68FLLT $ (bOL'STT) 6SEvY $ LHT SASNAIXA TVILOL

- - $ - $ - - $ - SASNAIXA ONLLVIAdO-NON
TTSLES €61°€0€ $ 68FLLY $ (bOL‘STT) 6SEvY $ LT SASNAIXT ONILVIAJO TVIOL

- - - - - - SosuadXy QATIENSIUTWPY 29 [BIUID)

- - - - - - sued 2 siredoy ‘oouruduUIBIA

- - - - - - sTeIuy
00T (44 €¢ 1 8 - sanin) % sfeuaje ‘sarpddng
001°9 98¢ €€0°C LT 80S LT S3OIAISS PSJORIUO)) 29 PISEYOINJ
TTE9TS $86°70¢ CTY'SLI (zot°LeT) ch8'cy - $39] [BUOISS9JOI]

- - $ - $ - - $ - syyouog daKojdwy 29 ‘sofep) ‘soLre[es

SASNAIXA ONLLVIAdO
T20°TES (SpTsLY) $ €TELLY $ 8L0T LIEYY $ o68¥ SANNIATH YAHLO
- - $ - $ - - $ - SANNAATH ONLLVIAJO
19bpng aouelep 19bpng lenjoy 19bpng lenjoy
|enuuy alA laquede(g

ST0T ‘1€ 19qUIddI( SUIPU SYIUOIA AN YY) 10,
uosredwo)) 393png 03 [N}y
H U013y - AJLI0OYINY JIARY OJUIdE[ ueS



SJRA‘ Board Communication
SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Item No. Agenda Item Date

6.3 Consider authorizing the General Manager to execute a General Services Agreement | 02/26/2026
with Earthworks Landscape and Maintenance, LLC, to provide mowing and
landscaping maintenance services for the G&A, GRP, Lake Conroe, and Woodlands
Divisions.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Firm Name: Earthworks Landscape and Maintenance, LLC
Type of Agreement: General Services Agreement

Service: Mowing and Landscaping

Contract Number: 26-0007

Anticipated Expenditures: $189,654.00

SJRA requires ongoing mowing and landscaping services to maintain properties and facilities within the G&A, GRP,
Lake Conroe, and Woodlands Divisions. These services are necessary to ensure safe access, proper maintenance of
infrastructure, and an acceptable appearance of SJRA facilities. The current mowing and landscaping services
agreement is approaching expiration, and staff has evaluated options to ensure continued, reliable service across all
divisions. Executing this agreement will allow SJRA to continue routine maintenance activities without interruption
and consolidate services under a single contract for operational efficiency. Funding for these services is included in
the approved operating budgets for the respective divisions.

FUNDING SOURCE: FY26 Operating Budget

ATTACHMENTS: Contract

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Authorize the General Manager to execute a General Services Agreement with Earthworks Landscape and
Maintenance, LLC, in the anticipated amount of $189,654.00, to provide mowing and landscaping services for the
G&A, GRP, Lake Conroe and Woodlands Divisions.




GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Contract # 26-0007

Project: ANNUAL CONTRACT FOR SJRA FACILITIES MOWING AND LANDSCAPING SERVICES

Project Location: ALL SJRA

THE PARTIES

The SJIRA: The SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

General and Administration Division - PO Box 329, Conroe, TX 77305 936-588-3111
GRP Division - PO Box 329, Conroe, TX 77305 936-588-1111

Lake Conroe Division - PO Box 329, Conroe, TX 77305 936-588-1111

Woodlands Division — PO Box 7537, The Woodlands, TX 77387 281-362-4385

O O O O

(Contact Person / Phone / e-mail) Megan Morris / 936-588-7163 / mmorris@sjra.net

and

Contractor: Earthworks Landscape and Maintenance, LLC

(Address for Written Notice) 13511 Greenlow Dr. Houston, TX 77067

(Contact Person / Phone / email) Garret Ashton / 936-648-5593 / garret@earthworkstexas.com

The SIRA and the Contractor may be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and together as the “Parties”.

FOR THE MUTUAL PROMISES SET OUT HEREIN THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE 1
WORK OF THE CONTRACT

1.1 Contractor shall perform the Work and provide the Goods in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and any and
all Exhibits attached hereto and the documents enumerated in Paragraph 7.1 below, all of which documents are incorporated
herein (collectively the “Contract Documents”). Contractor shall provide all labor, materials, equipment, services, supervision,
tools, facilities, utilities, and other items necessary for the proper and timely performance and completion of the following
generally described work (herein the "Work") and supply of the following generally described goods (herein the "Goods"), in strict
accordance with the terms of the Contract Documents and as reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents as necessary
for such Work to be complete and serviceable and such Goods to be fully and finally supplied:

ANNUAL CONTRACT FOR SJIRA FACILITIES MOWING AND LANDSCAPING SERVICES (LAKE CONROE, G&A, GRP, AND
WOODLANDS)

1.2 Changes in the Work and changes with respect to the supply of the Goods may be accomplished after execution of this
Agreement, and without invalidating this Agreement, by Change Order. A “Change Order” is a written instrument prepared by
SJRA and signed by SJIRA and Contractor, stating their agreement upon all of the following: (1) the change in the Work; (2) the
amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Price; and (3) the extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time. All
changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents, and the Contractor shall proceed
promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order. A field directive or field order, or any other order, direction, instruction,
clarification, information or request by SJRA or any of its consultants, or any other representative of SJRA, shall not be recognized
as having any effect upon the Contract Price or the Contract Time, unless documented as a Change Order, and Contractor shall
not have any claim for adjustment of the Contract Price or the Contract Time as a result thereof, unless Contractor shall, prior to
complying therewith and in no event later than five (5) days from the date such directive, order, etc. was given, submit a written
claim therefor.




1.3 Contractor shall obtain and pay for all construction permits, licenses and fees (as legally required) for prosecution of
the Work and supply of the Goods, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 2
PERIOD OF SERVICE

2.1 This Agreement shall become effective upon execution of this Agreement by SJIRA and the Contractor, and shall remain
in effect for an initial term of one (1) year with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year terms for a total of three (3)
years unless terminated earlier in writing in accordance herein. Any renewal must be in writing and executed by both the Parties. At
the sole option of SIRA, the Agreement may be further extended as an emergency extension, on a month-to-month basis. The
Work to be undertaken and/or the supply of Goods pursuant to this Agreement will be required to commence within fourteen (14)
days of delivery of a notice to proceed, or issuance of a SIRA Purchase Order. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN THIS AGREEMENT. The
Contractor shall make all reasonable efforts to complete the Work and the supply of the Goods as expeditiously as possible and
to meet the schedule established by the Parties. The Work and the supply of the Goods shall be accomplished per the scope of
services as identified in the Contract Documents

ARTICLE 3
CONTRACT PRICE

3.1 The SIRA will pay Contractor in current funds for Contractor's completion of the Work and supply of the Goods, in
accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contract Price as follows:

[X] Unit prices for actual quantities of Work performed, based upon the Contractor’s Proposal attached hereto
as Exhibit A, and delivery tickets, field measurements, or other documentation acceptable to SIRA as
satisfactory evidence of actual quantities of Work performed. Unit prices include all Contractor costs,
overhead and profit for the Work.

The unit prices are based upon the estimated quantities stated in the Contractor’s Proposal. If quantities of
Work actually performed are less or more than the quantities stated in the Contractor’s Proposal by twenty
percent (20%) or more, whether as a result of inaccurate estimated quantities or changes in the Work
requested by SJIRA, and if as a result of any such reduction in quantity Contractor demonstrates to SIRA’s
satisfaction that Contractor is unable to recover its fixed costs of the Work, or if as a result of any such increase
in quantity Contractor’s costs of the Work are reduced by subcontractor or supplier rate or price reductions
or discounts, economies of scale, or otherwise, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted by
Change Order.

3.2 Contractor shall pay only, and Contractor warrants and represents that the Contract Price includes only, those sales,
consumer, use and other similar taxes required to be paid by Contractor in accordance with the laws and regulations of the State
of Texas in the performance of this public works contract. SJRA is a political subdivision of the State of Texas and exempt from
the payment of state and local sales, use and excise taxes.

33 Non-Appropriation: All funds for payment by SIRA under this Agreement are subject to the availability of an annual
appropriation for this purpose by SIRA. In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the Board of Directors of SIRA for the
services provided under the Agreement, SJRA will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the
last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this
Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the “Non-Appropriation Date”). If at any time funds are not appropriated for
the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Contractor on thirty (30) days prior written notice, but
failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and SIRA shall not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-
Appropriation Date.




ARTICLE 4
PAYMENT PROCEDURES

4.1 Contractor shall submit no more than one (1) invoice per month, in a form acceptable to SIRA and including supporting
documentation requested by SIRA, requesting payment for Work performed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract
Documents during the prior month. The SJRA will make payments in compliance with the Texas “prompt payment law” which
provides that payments owed by SJIRA for the Goods and Work are due no later than 45 days after the Goods are received by
SJRA, the Work is completed, or an invoice for the Goods or Work is received, whichever is later, unless there is a bona fide
dispute between SJRA and Contractor about the Goods delivered or the Work performed that causes the payment to be late, or
the terms of a federal contract, grant, regulation, or statute prevent SJIRA from making a timely payment with federal funds, or
the invoice is not mailed to the person to whom it is addressed in strict accordance with any instruction on the Purchase Order
relating to the payment. (Ref Chapter 2251 of Texas Gov. Code). SJRA shall notify Contractor in writing of a disputed amount in
an invoice within twenty-one (21) days of receipt. Such notice shall include a detailed statement of the amount of the invoice
which is disputed.

Unless otherwise requested by SJRA, invoices shall be (a) delivered electronically to ap@sjra.net with a copy to [Construction
Manager via email], and (b) rendered separately for each Purchase Order and not cover more than one Purchase Order. All
invoices must be itemized. Invoices must be fully documented as to labor materials, and equipment provided.

Each invoice shall include:

e  Contractor's name, address and telephone number

e Aninvoice date and number

e SJRA Purchase Order number

e  Contract number

e Quantity of hours for each type of labor as detailed on the pricing sheet (Exhibit A) multiplied by the
contracted labor price.

e  Original cost of materials + contract markup (attach a copy of the original materials Invoice to SIRA invoice).

e Lineitems total

e Amounts previously paid on such Purchase Order, if any.

e Seller's “remit to” address

e  Freight or Additional supporting documentation of third-party charges, if applicable

Each invoice line should include:

e Afull description of the material/service ordered, and the SIRA part number if provided on the Purchase
Order.

e Quantities ordered, quantities delivered, unit prices and extended prices if applicable.

e Date(s) of services/delivery

e If the Purchase Order has multiple lines, the invoice lines should specify the Purchase Order line being
charged

Complete and accurate information is required for timely payment. SIRA will, within twenty-one (21) calendar days after
receipt of each invoice, accept and process such invoice for payment, or return the invoice to Contractor indicating SIRA’s
reasons for refusing to issue payment. If an invoice contains errors or fails to include required information, a corrected
invoice should be submitted, and payment delays will be incurred. The payment terms commence with performance of
Work and/or the delivery of conforming Goods and the receipt of a correctinvoice.

4.2 SJRA may withhold or nullify the whole or part of any payment to such extent as may be necessary, but in no event
greater than 110% of the disputed amount, on account of:

(a) defective Work not remedied;
(b) third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims;
(c) failure of Contractor to timely or properly make payments to subcontractors or for labor, materials or

equipment;




(d) reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Price;

(e) damage to SIRA or another contractor for which Contractor is responsible;

(f) reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid
balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages or economic disincentives for the anticipated
delay;

(g) failure of Contractor to submit or update a schedule of values, submittal schedule, or construction project
schedule in accordance with the Contract Documents;

(h) failure of Contractor to maintain a record of changes on drawings and documents;

(i) failure of Contractor to maintain weekly payroll reports and, as applicable, provide copies of reports in a
timely manner upon request of Owner;

1)) Contractor's neglect or unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work, including failure to clean up;

(k) property damage claims that are the responsibility of the Contractor; or

(U)] failure of Contractor to comply with any provision of the Contract Documents.

Any failure by SJRA to exercise its right to withhold all or any part of payment requested in any invoice as provided in this
Paragraph 4.2 shall not be and shall not be construed as (i) a waiver of SJRA’s right to do so in the future, or (ii) evidence that any
of the circumstances identified in Subparagraphs 4.2(a) through (l) above have not occurred. When the above reasons for
withholding payment are remedied or no longer exist, Contractor shall resubmit an invoice for the withheld amounts. Payment
will be made within forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt by SIRA of an approved invoice, subject to Paragraph 4.3 below.

ARTICLE 5
CONTRACTOR OBLIGATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and other related data identified in SIRA’s
request for bids, proposals or quotes for the Work and supply of the Goods.

5.2 Contractor has visited the site of the Work and become familiar with and is satisfied as to general, local, and site
conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. Contractor has attended any mandatory pre-submittal
conference or site visit required by SJRA, and had the opportunity to ask any questions of SIRA relevant to Contractor’s
performance and completion of the Work and supply of the Goods.

53 Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local laws and regulations that may affect cost,
progress, and performance of the Work and supply of the Goods.

5.4 Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the
site of the Work and all drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous
to the site which have been identified in Contract Documents or made available to Contractor by SIRA, and (2) reports and
drawings of hazardous environmental conditions, if any, at the site of the Work which have been identified in the Contract
Documents.

5.5 Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having done so) all additional or
supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data concerning conditions (surface and subsurface)
at or contiguous to the site which may affect cost, progress, or performance of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor, including applying
specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, if any, expressly required by the Contract
Documents to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.

5.6 Contractor does not consider that any further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are
necessary for performance of the Work or supply of the Goods, at Contract Price, within Contract Time, and in accordance with
the Contract Documents.

5.7 Contractor is aware of the general nature of any on-going operations and/or work to be performed by the SIRA and
others at the site of the Work, and Contractor shall perform the Work and supply of the Goods, in such manner as to minimize
any impact on any on-going operations and/or work to be performed by the SIRA and others at the site of the Work, and




Contractor shall cooperate with SJRA and others to coordinate the Work with any on-going operations and/or work to be
performed by the SJRA and others at the site of the Work.

5.8 Contractor has correlated information known to Contractor, information and observations obtained from visits to the
site of the Work, reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents or made available to Contractor by SIRA, and all
additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data with the Contract Documents.

5.9 Contractor has given SJRA prompt written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Contractor has
discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by SJIRA is acceptable to Contractor. If Contractor fails
to provide SJRA with prompt written notice of any conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Contractor knew of, or in
using reasonable diligence should have known, then Contractor shall be responsible for correction of such conflicts, errors,
ambiguities, or discrepancies and damages related thereto.

5.10 The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all requirements for
performance and furnishing of the Work.

5.11 Contractor hereby agrees that the following terms, conditions, verifications, certifications, and representations apply
to and are incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes, and Contractor shall deliver to SIRA signed and notarized
verifications prior to commencement of any Work:

(a) With respect to performing the Work and providing the Goods hereunder, Contractor shall comply with any
applicable Equal Employment Opportunity and/or Affirmative Action ordinances, rules, or regulations during the term
of this Agreement.

(b) Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 176, Contractor shall submit a signed Texas Ethics
Commission (“TEC”) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (“CIQ”) at the time Contractor submits this signed Agreement to
SJIRA. TEC Form CIQ and information related to same may be obtained from TEC website by visiting
https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/conflict/. If Contractor certifies that there are no Conflicts of Interest, Contractor
shall indicate so by writing name of Contractor’s firm and “No Conflicts” on the TEC Form ClIQ.

(c) If Contractor is a privately held entity, then pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 2252.908 and the
rules promulgated thereunder by the TEC, Contractor shall submit a completed and signed TEC Form 1295 with a
certificate number assigned by the TEC to SJRA at the time Contractor submits this signed Agreement to SJRA. TEC
Form 1295 and information related to same may be obtained from TEC website by Vvisiting
https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/. Contractor agrees and acknowledges that this Agreement shall be of
no force and effect unless and until Contractor has submitted said form to SIRA, if and to the extent such form is
required under Government Code § 2252.908 and the rules promulgated thereunder by the TEC.

(d) As required by Chapter 2271, Texas Government Code, Contractor hereby verifies that Contractor, including
a wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same, does not boycott Israel
and will not boycott Israel through the term of this Agreement. The term "boycott Israel" in this Paragraph has the
meaning assigned to such term in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government Code, as amended.

(e) Pursuant to Chapter 2252, Texas Government Code, Contractor represents and certifies that, at the time of
execution of this Agreement, neither Contractor, nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent
company or affiliate of the same, is engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, or any terrorist organization, and is a company
listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Sections 2270.0201 or 2252.153 of the Texas Government
Code.

(f) As required by Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code (as added by Senate Bill 13, 87th Texas Legislature,
Regular Session), as amended, Contractor hereby verifies that Contractor, including any wholly owned subsidiary,
majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same, does not boycott energy companies, and will not
boycott energy companies during the term of this Agreement. The term “boycott energy companies” in this Paragraph
shall have the meaning assigned to the term "boycott energy company" in Section 809.001, Texas Government Code,
as amended.




(g) As required by Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code (as added by Senate Bill 19, 87th Texas Legislature,
Regular Session, "SB 19"), as amended, Contractor hereby verifies that Contractor, including any wholly owned
subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same, (i) does not have a practice, policy,
guidance or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association, and (ii) will not
discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association during the term of this Agreement. The term
“discriminate against a firearm entity or trade association” in this Paragraph shall have the meaning assigned to such
term in Section 2274.001(3), Texas Government Code (as added by SB 19), as amended.

(h) Pursuant to Chapter 2274 of the Texas Government Code (as added by Senate Bill 2116, 87th Legislature,
Regular Session), as amended, and to the extent this Agreement grants to Contractor direct or remote access to the
control of critical infrastructure, excluding access specifically allowed for product warranty and support, Contractor
verifies that neither Contractor, including any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company,
or affiliate of the same, nor any of its sub-contractors are: (i) owned or controlled by (a) individuals who are citizens of
China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated country; or (b) a company or other entity, including a governmental
entity, that is owned or controlled by citizens of or is directly controlled by the government of China, Iran, North Korea,
Russia, or a designated country; or (ii) headquartered in China, Iran, North Korea, Russia or a designated country. The
term “designated country” in this Paragraph means a country designated by the Governor as a threat to critical
infrastructure under Section 2274.0103, Texas Government Code. The term “critical infrastructure” in this Paragraph
shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2274.0101, Texas Government Code.

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that projects of SJRA may be subject to review and approval by other third parties.
Accordingly, as and when requested by SJIRA, Contractor shall submit such information and cooperate with the other third parties
to the extent necessary to undergo any such review or obtain any such approval.

5.12 Contractor warrants that (1) all Goods, including but not limited to all materials and equipment furnished under this
Agreement will be new and of good quality unless otherwise expressly provided herein; (2) all Work will be performed in a good
and workmanlike manner, and free from defects in material and workmanship; and (3) all Work and Goods provided, will conform
to the requirements of the Contract Documents. Work not conforming to these requirements, including any substitutions not
properly approved and authorized in writing by SIRA, may be considered defective. The Contractor shall promptly correct all
Work and Goods provided, rejected by SIRA as failing to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor
shall bear all costs of correcting such rejected Work or rejected Goods, including but not limited to the costs of uncovering the
Work, and costs of repairing or replacing other work or goods, property or improvements of SJRA damaged as a result of
Contractor’s defective Work, defective Goods, or Contractor’s correction of its defective Work or defective Goods, and any
additional inspections or testing required. In addition to the Contractor’s other obligations including but not limited to any other
implied or express warranties under the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall, for a period of one (1) year after completion
of the Work, correct all Work and supplied Goods not conforming to the requirements of the Contract Documents at Contractor’s
sole cost and expense. If the Contractor fails to correct non-conforming Work and supplied Goods, within a reasonable time, SJRA
may correct it and Contractor shall promptly pay SJRA all costs of correction. Nothing contained in this Paragraph 5.12 shall be
construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to other obligations which the Contractor might have under the Contract
Documents or at law or in equity. Establishment of the one-year period for correction of Work and supplied Goods, as described
in this Paragraph 5.12 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the Work and supplied Goods, and has
no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents and any implied warranties may
be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which legal proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor's liability
with respect to the Contractor's obligations other than specifically to correct the Work and supplied Goods.

5.13 Contractor shall not subcontract the performance of the entire Work, supply of Goods, or the supervision and direction
of the Work without SIRA’s prior written consent. Contractor shall not employ any subcontractor, whether initially or as a
substitute, against whom SJRA may have reasonable objection. Contractor shall enter into written agreements with all
subcontractors which specifically bind the subcontractors to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for
the benefit of SJRA. All damage, injury or loss to any property caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Contractor or
any subcontractor, supplier or any person or organization directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish
any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by Contractor (except to the extent of
damage or loss attributable to errors or omissions in the drawings or specifications (unless Contractor had knowledge of the error
or omission or using reasonable care should have known of the error and Contractor failed to report same), or to the acts or




omissions of Owner or anyone employed by Owner, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable other than Contractor
or its agent, or employee, or subcontractors of any tier).

5.14 In accordance with Chapter 2258 of the Texas Government Code, Contractor shall pay and shall require that each of its
subcontractors pay not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages in the locality in which the Work is to be performed
for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the Work, and the prevailing rate for legal holiday and overtime work, as
determined by SJIRA. Such prevailing rates are those determined by the United States Department of Labor, and are available at
https://sam.gov/content/wage-determinations

5.15 Contractor shall maintain a work force adequate to accomplish the Work within the Contract Time. Contractor agrees
to employ only orderly and competent workers, skillful in performance of the Work. Contractor and any subcontractor, and their
respective employees, may not use or possess any alcoholic or other intoxicating beverages, illegal drugs or controlled substances
while on the job or SIRA property, nor may such workers be intoxicated, or under the influence of alcohol or drugs, on the job.
Subject to the applicable provision of Texas law, Contractor and any subcontractor and their respective employees, may not use
or possess any firearms or other weapons while on the job or on SIRA property. If the SIRA or an SJRA Division representative
notifies Contractor that any of worker or representative is incompetent, disorderly, abusive, or disobedient, has knowingly or
repeatedly violated safety regulations, has possessed any firearms in contravention of the applicable provisions of Texas Law or
this Agreement, or has possessed or was under the influence of alcohol or drugs on the job, Contractor shall immediately remove
such worker or representative, including any officer or owner of Contractor, from performing the Work, and may not employ
such worker or representative again on the Work without SJRA’s prior written consent. Contractor shall at all times maintain
good discipline and order on SIRA property in all matters pertaining to this Work.

5.16 Contractor agrees to assign and hereby assigns to SIRA any rights it may have to bring antitrust suits against its
manufacturers or suppliers for overcharges on materials incorporated in the Work growing out of illegal price fixing agreements.
Contractor further agrees to cooperate with SIRA should SJRA wish to prosecute suits against manufacturers or suppliers for
illegal price fixing.

5.17 Contractor shall be fully responsible to SJRA for all acts and omissions of the subcontractors, manufacturers, or suppliers
and other persons and organizations performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with Contractor
just as Contractor is responsible for Contractor’s own acts and omissions. Nothing in the Contract Documents shall create for the
benefit of any such subcontractor, manufacturer, or supplier or other person or organization any contractual relationship
between SJRA and any such subcontractor, supplier, manufacturer or other person or organization, nor shall it create any
obligation on the part of SIRA to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys due any such subcontractor, manufacturer or
supplier or other person or organization except as may otherwise be required by laws and regulations.

5.18 Contractor shall be solely responsible for efficiently scheduling and coordinating the Work of subcontractors,
manufacturers, suppliers and other persons and organizations performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect
contract with Contractor in order to avoid any delays or inefficiencies in the prosecution of the Work. Contractor shall require
all subcontractors, manufacturers, suppliers and such other persons and organizations performing or furnishing the any of the
Work to communicate with the designated SJRA Division representative through Contractor.

5.19 Contractor shall pay each subcontractor, manufacturer and supplier their appropriate share of payments made to
Contractor not later than ten (10) days from Contractor’s receipt of payment from SIRA. To the extent allowed by Texas law,
SJRA shall be deemed to be a third party beneficiary to each subcontract and may, if SIRA elects, following a termination of the
Contractor, require that the subcontractor(s) perform all or a portion of unperformed duties and obligations under its
subcontract(s) for the benefit of SIRA, rather than the Contractor; however, if SIRA requires any such performance by a
subcontractor for SJIRA’s direct benefit, then SIRA shall be bound and obligated to pay such subcontractor the reasonable value
for all Work performed by subcontractor to the date of termination of the Contractor, less payments to Contractor for such
subcontractor’s work, and for all Work performed by subcontractor thereafter. In the event that SIRA elects to invoke its right
under this Paragraph. SJRA will provide written notice of such election to the terminated Contractor and the affected
subcontractor(s).

5.20 Contractor shall be responsible at all times for compliance with applicable patents or copyrights encompassing, in whole
orin part, any design, device, material, or process utilized directly or indirectly, in the performance of the Work or the formulation
of any of the exhibits hereto. SIRA reserves the right to provide its own defense to any suit or claim of infringement of any patent




or copyright in which event CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS SJRA FROM ALL COSTS AND EXPENSES OF
SUCH DEFENSE AS WELL AS SATISFACTION OF ALL JUDGMENTS ENTERED AGAINST SJRA. SJRA shall have the right to stop the
Work and /or terminate this Agreement at any time in the event SJRA discovers that Contractor’s work methodology includes the
use of any infringing design, device, material or process.

ARTICLE 6
INDEMNIFICATION; MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

6.1 Indemnification.

6.1.1 TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAWS AND REGULATIONS, CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE SJRA AND ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, CONSULTANTS,
AND OTHER CONTRACTORS (EACH AN “INDEMNITEE” AND COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST
ALL CLAIMS, COSTS, LOSSES, AND DAMAGES (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL FEES AND CHARGES OF
ENGINEERS, ARCHITECTS, ATTORNEYS, AND OTHER PROFESSIONALS AND ALL COURT OR ARBITRATION OR OTHER
DISPUTE RESOLUTION COSTS) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK OR THE SUPPLY
OF THE GOODS, PROVIDED THAT ANY SUCH CLAIM, COST, LOSS, OR DAMAGE IS ATTRIBUTABLE TO BODILY INJURY,
SICKNESS, DISEASE, OR DEATH, OR TO INJURY TO OR DESTRUCTION OF TANGIBLE PROPERTY (OTHER THAN THE
WORK OR THE GOODS THEMSELVES), INCLUDING THE LOSS OF USE RESULTING THEREFROM, BUT ONLY TO THE
EXTENT CAUSED BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF CONTRACTOR, ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, ANY SUPPLIER, OR
ANY INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY CONTRACTOR, ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR ANY
SUPPLIER TO PERFORM ANY OF THE WORK OR SUPPLY ANY OF THE GOODS, OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS
CONTRACTOR, ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR ANY SUPPLIER MAY BE LIABLE, AND EVEN IF ANY SUCH CLAIM, COST, LOSS
OR DAMAGE IS CAUSED IN PART BY THE NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF AN INDEMNITEE.

6.1.2 In any and all claims against the Indemnitees by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of
such employee) of Contractor, any subcontractor, any supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly
employed by Contractor, any subcontractor, or any supplier to perform any of the Work or to supply any of the Goods,
or anyone for whose acts Contractor, any subcontractor, or any supplier may be liable, the indemnification obligation
under this Article shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation,
or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any such subcontractor, supplier, or other individual or entity under workers’
compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

6.1.3 Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement to defend, indemnify and hold harmless SJRA shall not be
limited in any way by any insurance required of Contractor by this Agreement or otherwise provided or maintained by
Contractor. Any insurance obligations of Contractor under this Agreement are independent from Contractor’s
obligations under this Agreement to defend, indemnify and hold harmless SIRA.

6.2 Assignment of Contract. No assignment of any rights under or interests in this Agreement will be binding on another
Party hereto without the written consent of the Party sought to be bound, and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any
written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the
Contract Documents.

6.3 Successors and Assigns. The SJRA and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, permitted assigns, and its
legal representatives to the other Party hereto, its partners, successors, permitted assigns, and its legal representatives in respect
to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

6.4 Termination of Contract. SJRA may terminate this Agreement without cause and for its convenience at any time upon
thirty (30) days’ written notice. Upon the Contractor’s receipt of such notice, the Contractor shall cease performing the Work
immediately. The Contractor shall be compensated for the Work satisfactorily performed and Goods satisfactorily delivered, prior
to the termination date.

6.5 Dispute Resolution. This Agreement and any disputes related to it shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to its conflict or choice of law principles. Contractor agrees and acknowledges
that Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement must be performed in whole or in part in Montgomery County, Texas, and




venue of any and all legal proceedings between SIRA and the Contractor shall lie in Montgomery County, Texas. If Contractor
brings any claim against SJIRA and Contractor does not prevail with respect to such claim, Contractor shall be liable for all
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by SJRA as a result of such claim.

6.6 Independent Contractor. It is understood and agreed that the relationship of Contractor to SJRA shall be that of an
independent contractor. Nothing contained herein or inferable here from shall be deemed or construed to (1) make the
Contractor the agent, servant, or employee of SIRA, or (2) create any partnership, joint venture, or other association between
SJRA and Contractor. Contractor shall be solely responsible for all means, methods, techniques and safety measures utilized in
performance of the Work and the supply of the Goods.

6.7 Safety. Contractor agrees that, as between SJIRA and Contractor, Contractor shall be solely responsible for the safety
of its employees, and the establishment and enforcement of all safety precautions, programs and practices in connection with
the Work as necessary to protect all persons and property from injury, death, loss or damage arising out of or related to the Work
and to the supply of the Goods, including but not limited to the erection and maintenance of barricades, installation of warning
signage, and institution of other traffic and/or pedestrian control measures, and Contractor shall at all times comply with all
health, safety and environmental federal, state and local laws, codes, regulations, ordinances and permits applicable to the Work
and to the supply of the Goods, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA) as amended
and the regulations thereto, all requirements of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, and the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC).

6.8 Use of Premises. Contractor shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment, and the
operations of workers to the site of the Work and land and areas identified in and permitted by the Contract Documents, and
other land and areas permitted by laws and regulations, rights-of-way, permits and easements, and shall not unreasonably
encumber the site of the Work with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. During the progress of the Work
and on a daily basis, Contractor shall keep the site of the Work free from any accumulations of waste materials, rubbish and other
debris resulting from the Work. Contractor shall provide such personnel, waste containers and/or equipment necessary to
maintain an orderly, clean and safe work site. Contractor shall keep all streets, access streets, driveways, and areas of public
access, walkways, and other designated areas clean and open at all times. Contractor shall remove all waste materials, rubbish
and debris from and about the site of the Work at the end of each work day. At the completion of the Work, Contractor shall also
remove all tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery, and surplus materials. Contractor shall leave the site of the
Work clean, and restore to original condition all property not designated for alteration by the Contact Documents. If the
Contractor fails to clean up at the end of each work day or restore the site of the Work at the completion of the Work, SIRA may
do so and the cost thereof will be charged to the Contractor and may be offset against any sum otherwise due Contractor.

6.9 Legal Compliance. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, codes, regulations, ordinances and
permits applicable to performance of the Work, including but not limited to all wage and employment laws, and the Immigration
Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended, and Contractor shall maintain and require that its subcontractors maintain any and
all licenses required for performance of the Work.

6.10 Stop Work Notice. SJRA may issue an immediate “Stop Work Notice” in the event the Contractor is observed performing
Work in a manner that is in violation of federal, state and local laws, codes, regulations, ordinance and permits, or in a manner
that is determined by SJRA to be unsafe to either life or property. Upon Contractor’s receipt of the Stop Work Notice, the
Contractor shall immediately cease all Work until notified by SIRA that the violation or unsafe condition has been corrected. The
Contractor shall be liable for all costs incurred by SIRA as a result of the issuance of such Stop Work Notice.

6.11 Insurance. Contractor shall obtain and maintain insurance as provided in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated
herein.
6.12 SJIRA’s Rights and Remedies. All rights and remedies of SIRA under the Contract Documents are cumulative and in

addition to all other rights and remedies available to SJRA at law or in equity.

6.13 Warranty. Contractor shall provide a one (1) year warranty document. This warranty shall be substantially similar to
those warranties in Paragraph 5.12 above, and shall obligate the Contractor to provide all equipment, materials, workmanship,
and labor at no charge during the Warranty period, and to correct any defect excluding any damage caused by misuse, abuse,
vandalism, or acts of God.




6.14 Shipping Terms of Sale. SJRA shipping terms of sale is FOB Destination.

6.15 Removal, Transportation and Return of SJRA’s Property, Equipment or Parts. Contractor is responsible for any
damages occurring to SIRA property, equipment or parts while Contractor, or any subcontractor or third party acting on behalf
of Contractor, is (i) working on SJIRA property, equipment or parts; or (ii) transporting SIRA property, equipment or parts.

6.16 Confidentiality. Neither Contractor nor any of its subcontractors shall publish or release any publicity or public relations
materials of any kind concerning or relating to this Agreement, the Work or the activities of SJIRA, unless such materials have first
been reviewed and approved in writing by SJIRA. This provision shall not apply to mandatory reports which Contractor or its
subcontractors are required by law to file with governmental authorities.

ARTICLE 7
ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

7.1 The Contract Documents are comprised of this Agreement and the following exhibits:

Exhibit A: Contractor’s Proposal

Exhibit B: Insurance Requirements

Exhibit C: Contractor’s Certificate of Insurance
Exhibit D: RFP & Site Photos/Drawings

7.2 The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented in writing agreed to and signed by the
Parties.
7.3 The Contract Documents represent the entire and integrated agreement between SJRA and the Contractor and

supersede all prior and contemporaneous negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.

7.4 To the extent there are any conflicts between the terms and provisions of this Agreement and the other Contract
Documents, this Agreement shall control.

*** Remainder of Page Left Blank Intentionally ***




ARTICLE 8
SIGNATURES

8.1 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together
shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered by facsimile, email, or other
means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this
Agreement. Duplicate copies of duly executed and delivered counterparts of this Agreement shall be deemed to have the same
full force and effect as originals and may be relied upon as such. Notwithstanding the foregoing, SJRA and Contractor agree that
this Agreement may be executed using electronic signatures only at the option and in the sole discretion of SIRA, and, in such
event, the provisions of the Uniform Electronic Transaction Act, Chapter 332, Texas Business and Commerce Code, as amended,
and any applicable policies and procedures of SIRA regarding electronic signatures shall apply. SJIRA reserves the right to require
an original, hard copy executed Agreement. This Agreement is effective as of the date of signature by the SJRA General Manager
or his designee.

EARTHWORKS LANDSCAPE AND MAINTENANCE SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY
(P Ty

By: gﬁ@md]_ﬁfmﬁ By:

Name: Garret Ashton Name: __ Aubrey A. Spear, P.E

Title: Owner Title: General Manager

Date: February 3, 2026 Date:

Tax Identification Number: 464729662




EXHIBIT A
CONTRACTOR’S PROPOSAL

Facilities Mowing & Landscaping SJRA General Services Agreement
Contract No. 26-0007 2025



Earthworks Landscape and Maintenance LLC Information

Contact: Garret Ashton
Address: 13511 Greenlow Dr,
Houston, TX 77067
Phone: (281) 736-5329
Email: amandas@earthworkstexas.com

Web Address: https://earthworkstexas.com/

By submitting your response, you certify that you are authorized to represent and bind your company.

Garret Ashton amandas@earthworkstexas.com

Signature Email
Submitted at 1/15/2026 10:45:36 AM (CT)

Requested Attachments

26-0007 - RFP - EARTHWORKS
Submittal Response LANDSCAPE AND MAINTENANCE
LLC.pdf

Submittal Requirements can be found on page 31 & 32 of the RFP. Please submit requirements on your company
letterhead and name your file: 26-0007 - RFP - YOUR COMPANY NAME. This is required in order for your submittal
to be considered.

26-0007 - C&A Form -
Certification and Acknowledgement Form EARTHWORKS LANDSCAPE AND
MAINTENANCE LLC.pdf

Certification and Acknowledgement Form (Page 35 in RFP), also uploaded as a separate document. Please name
your file: 26-0007 - C&A - YOUR COMPANY NAME

26-0007 - ClIQ Form -
Conflict of Interest Questionnaire EARTHWORKS LANDSCAPE AND
MAINTENANCE LLC.pdf

Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (CIQ). Please name your file: 26-0007 - CIQ - YOUR COMPANY NAME

RFP 26-0007 - Addendum No. 1 -
Addendum No. 1 EARTHWORKS LANDSCAPE AND
MAINTENANCE LLC.pdf

Addendum No. 1 should be signed for acknowledgement.

Bid Lines

1| G&A FACILITY

MOW FREQUENCY

Growing Season: March 1 - September 3, Four (4) Mows per month

Dormant Season: October 1 - February 28/29, Two (2) mows per month

Thirty-eight (38) total mows per year - 2nd and 4th week (Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday only)

Iltem Notes: 1577 Dam Site Rd.
Conroe, TX 77304

2 | Turf mowing, Edging, Weed Eating, Weed Control/WWeed Removal, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal, Fertilizer, Ant
Bait Spot Treatment and Pruning/Trimming of Hedges, Shrubs, Trees and Grasses per schedule

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |

Page 3 of 18 pages Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and 26-0007 Addendum 1
Maintenance LLC



3 [ G&A - OTHER UNIT PRICED ITEMS
4 | Materials and Labor to repair/replace sprinkler head and/or riser assembly to functionanlity

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00 | Total: | $100.00 |
5 | Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Tree Bubbler and/or Riser Assembly to functionality

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00 | Total: | $100.00 |
6 | Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Lawn Rotor Head and/or Riser Assembly to functionality

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
7 | Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace Remote Control Valve to functionality

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $200.00 | Total: | $200.00 |
8 | Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace/Restore break in irrigation PVC pipe 1" or less.

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
9 | Deliver and Install Brown Mulch on Plant Beds up to 2" in May, 12 cubic yards.

Quantity: 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $85.00 | Total: | $85.00 |
il) Deliver and Install 3-4" Bull Rock to SJRA Facilities

Quantity: 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $200.00| Total: | $200.00 |
1 Spread Bermuda Grass Seed by hand

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: SF Price: | $0.25| Total: | $0.25 |
; Hydro mulch (Bermuda)

Quantity: 1 UOM: SF Price: | $0.15] Total: | $0.15 |
g On-Call Truck Watering for Trees

Quantity: 1 UOM: HR Price: | $400.00 | Total: | $400.00 |
1 Deliver and Install 30-gallon Shade Tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $400.00| Total: | $400.00 |
g Delivery and Install 100-gallon shade tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $1,500.00 | Total: | $1,500.00 |
23 Material and Labor to procure and install annual color (include light soil in cost)

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: FLAT Price: | $50.00 | Total: | $50.00 |
; Delivery and Install Top Soil

Quantity: 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $90.00| Total: | $90.00 |
Page 4 of 18 pages Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and 26-0007 Addendum 1

Maintenance LLC




LAKE CONROE FACILITY

MOW FREQUENCY

GROWING SEASON: March 1 - September 30, Four (4) mows per month

DORMANT SEASON: October 1 - February 28/29, Two (2) mows per month

Thirty-eight (38) total mows per year - 2nd and 4th week (Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday only)

00 =

Iltem Notes: 1564 Dam Site Rd.
Conroe, TX 77304

Turf mowing, Edging, Weed Eating, Weed Control/Weed Removal, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal, Fertilizer, Ant
Bait Spot Treatment and Pruning/Trimming of Hedges, Shrubs, Trees and Grasses per schedule

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $85.00| Total: | $85.00 |

O©O=

2 | LAKE CONROE - SCOPE OPTIONAL SERVICE

% Trim and Thin Live Oak Trees along Dam Site Rd. (58 trees)

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER TREE Price: | $150.00| Total: | $150.00 |
% LAKE CONROE - OTHER UNIT PRICED ITEMS
% Materials and Labor to repair/replace sprinkler head and/or riser assembly to functionanlity

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
‘21 Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Tree Bubbler and/or Riser Assembly to functionality

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
% Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Lawn Rotor Head and/or Riser Assembly to functionality

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00 | Total: | $100.00 |
% Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace Remote Control Valve to functionality

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $200.00| Total: | $200.00 |
% Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace/Restore break in irrigation PVC pipe 1" or less.

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00 | Total: | $100.00 |
g Deliver and Install Brown Mulch on Plant Beds

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $85.00 | Total: | $85.00 |
g Deliver and Install 3-4" Bull Rock to SJRA Facilities

Quantity: 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $200.00| Total: | $200.00
g Spread Bermuda Grass Seed by hand

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: SF Price: | $0.25 | Total: | $0.25 |
;I’; Hydro mulch (Bermuda)

Quantity: 1 UOM: SF Price: | $0.15 | Total: | $0.15 |
Page 5 of 18 pages Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and 26-0007 Addendum 1

Maintenance LLC




On-Call Truck Watering for Trees

2

Quantity: 1 UOM: HR Price: | $400.00| Total: | $400.00 |
g Deliver and Install 30-gallon Shade Tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $400.00 | Total: | $400.00 |
‘?i Delivery and Install 100-gallon shade tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $1,500.00| Total: | $1,500.00 |
g Material and Labor to procure and install annual color (include light soil in cost)

Quantity: 1 UOM: FLAT Price: | $50.00 | Total: | $50.00 |
g Delivery and Install Top Soil

Quantity: 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $90.00| Total: | $90.00 |
3 [ GRP FACILITY
7 | MOW FREQUENCY:

Section 1 (GRP Operations Building):

Growing Season (March 1 — September 30) Two (2) mows/month

Dormant Season (October 1 — February 28/29) One (1) mow/month

Nineteen (19) mows per year

Section 2 (Surface Water Treatment Plant):

Growing Season (March 1 — September 30) Two (2) mows/month

Dormant Season (October 1 — February 28/29) One (1) mow/month

Nineteen (19) mows per year

Item Notes: 11998 Pine Valley Dr.

Conroe, TX 77304

3 | GRP Operations Office Building, Section 1
8 Growing Season (March 1 — September 30) Two (2) mows/month

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: | $200.00| Total: | $200.00 |
3 | GRP Operations Office Building, Section 1
9 | Dormant Season (October 1 — February 28/29) One (1) mow/month

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: | $200.00 | Total: | $200.00 |
4 | GRP Surface Water Treatment Plant, Section 2
0 | Growing Season (March 1 — September 30) Two (2) mows/month

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: | $1,400.00| Total: | $1,400.00 |
4 | GRP Surface Water Treatment Plant, Section 2
1 | Dormant Season (October 1 — February 28/29) One (1) mow/month

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: | $1,400.00| Total: | $1,400.00 |
421 GRP - OTHER UNIT PRICED ITEMS

Page 6 of 18 pages

Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and
Maintenance LLC

26-0007 Addendum 1




g Materials and Labor to repair/replace sprinkler head and/or riser assembly to functionanlity

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00 | Total: | $100.00 |
2 Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Tree Bubbler and/or Riser Assembly to functionality

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00 | Total: | $100.00 |
g Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Lawn Rotor Head and/or Riser Assembly to functionality

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
g Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace Remote Control Valve to functionality

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $200.00 | Total: | $200.00 |
471 Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace/Restore break in irrigation PVC pipe 1" or less.

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
g Deliver and Install Brown Mulch on Plant Beds

Quantity: 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $85.00 | Total: | $85.00 |
g Deliver and Install 3-4" Bull Rock to SJRA Facilities

Quantity: 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $200.00| Total: | $200.00 |
g Spread Bermuda Grass Seed by hand

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: SF Price: | $0.25| Total: | $0.25 |
? Hydro mulch (Bermuda)

Quantity: 1 UOM: SF Price: | $0.15| Total: | $0.15 |
g On-Call Truck Watering for Trees

Quantity: 1 UOM: HR Price: | $400.00 | Total: | $400.00 |
g Deliver and Install 30-gallon Shade Tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $400.00| Total: | $400.00 |
2 Delivery and Install 100-gallon shade tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring

Quantity: 1 UOM: EA Price: | $1,500.00 | Total: | $1,500.00 |
g Material and Labor to procure and install annual color (include light soil in cost)

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: FLAT Price: | $50.00 | Total: | $50.00 |
g Delivery and Install Top Soil

Quantity: 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $90.00| Total: | $90.00 |
Page 7 of 18 pages Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and 26-0007 Addendum 1

Maintenance LLC




WOODLANDS FACILITIES (ALL LOCATIONS)

MOW FREQUENCY
Growing Season: March 1 - September 30, One (1) mow per week

Dormant Season: October 1 - February 28/29, Two (2) mows per month

Forty (40) mows per location per year

Item Notes: Multiple Addresses

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT NO. 1 (ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE)

Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

$44.00| Total: |

$44.00 |

Iltem Notes: 2436 Sawdust Road
The Woodlands, TX 77380

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT NO.1
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

$120.00] Total: |

$120.00 |

Iltem Notes: 2436 Sawdust Road
The Woodlands, Tx 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 130,707
Approximate Acreage: 3.00

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT NO. 2 LIFT STATION NO. 15
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

$616.00| Total: |

$616.00 |

Iltem Notes: 5402 Research Forest Dr.
The Woodlands, TX 77381

Mowable Area SQ FT: 600,340
Approximate Acreage: 14.00

-

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT NO.3
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

$88.00| Total: |

$88.00 |

Item Notes: 555 Trade Center Parkway
The Woodlands, TX 77385

Mowable Area SQ FT: 88,000
Approximate Acreage: 2.02

WASTEWATER PLANT NO. 1; WATER WELLS NO. 1 & 2
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

$44.00| Total:|

$44.00 |

ltem Notes: 11439 Slash Pine
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 41,858
Approximate Acreage: .095

Page 8 of 18 pages Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and

Maintenance LLC

26-0007 Addendum 1




WASTEWATER PLANT NO. 2; WATER WELLS NO. 5 & 6

3| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: | $60.00 | Total: | $60.00 |
Item Notes: 6140 Shadow Bend Place
The Woodlands, TX 77381
Mowable Area SQ FT: 59,795
Approximate Acreage: 1.37
6 | WASTEWATER PLANT NO. 3; WATER WELLS NO. 13 & 14
4 [ Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
Item Notes: 6698 Alden Bridge Dr.
The Woodlands, TX 77381
Mowable Area SQ FT: 98,801
Approximate Acreage: 2.27
6 | WASTEWATER PLANT NO. 5; WATER WELLS NO. 27 & 28
S | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $72.60 | Total: | $72.60 |
Item Notes: 17501 St. Luke's Way
The Woodlands, TX 77384
Mowable Area SQ FT: 71,873
Approximate Acreage: 1.65
6 | WASTEWATER PLANT NO. 4; WATER WELLS NO. 29 & 30
6 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: | $147.00] Total: | $147.00
Item Notes: 11904 West Branch Crossing Dr.
The Woodlands, TX 77354
Mowable Area SQ FT: 145,997
Approximate Acreage: 3.35
6 | LIFT STATION NO. 1
7| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00 | Total: | $45.00 |
Item Notes: 10103 Grogans Mill Rd.
The Woodlands, TX 77380
Mowable Area SQ FT: 2,614
Approximate Acreage: 0.06
6 [ LIFT STATION NO. 3
8 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total:l $45.00|

Iltem Notes: 2916 Crossvine Circle
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 3,049
Approximate Acreage: 0.07

Page 9 of 18 pages

Maintenance LLC

Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and

26-0007 Addendum 1




LIFT STATION NO. 4

9 [ Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |
Item Notes: 11898 Grogans Mill Rd.
The Woodlands, TX 77380
Mowable Area SQ FT: 3,920
Approximate Acreage: 0.09
7 | LIFT STATION NO. 5
0| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total:l $45.00|
Item Notes: 26640 Glenlock Dr.
The Woodlands, TX 77381
Mowable Area SQ FT: 3,920
Approximate Acreage: 0.09
7 | LIFT STATION NO. 6 (GATED)
1] Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $50.00 | Total: | $50.00 |
Item Notes: 83 Heritage Hill Circle
The Woodlands, TX 77381
Mowable Area SQ FT: 11,761
Approximate Acreage: 0.27
7 | LIFT STATION NO. 7
2 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |
Item Notes: 47 West Wavy Oak
The Woodlands, TX 77381
Mowable Area SQ FT: 3,920
Approximate Acreage: 0.09
7 | LIFT STATION NO. 8
3| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total:l $45.00|
Item Notes: 12410 Sawmill Rd.
The Woodlands, TX 77380
Mowable Area SQ FT: 871
Approximate Acreage: 0.02
7 | LIFT STATION NO. 9
4 Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |

Iltem Notes: 1472 Timberloch Place
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT:1,742
Approximate Acreage: 0.04

Page 10 of 18 pages

Maintenance LLC

Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and

26-0007 Addendum 1




7 | LIFT STATION NO. 10
S | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00 | Total: | $45.00 |

ltem Notes: 13101 Sawmill Rd.
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 2,178
Approximate Acreage: 0.05

7 | LIFT STATION NO. 11
6 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total:l $45.00|

Iltem Notes: 5645 Shadow Bend Place
The Woodlands, TX 77381

Mowable Area SQ FT: 1,307
Approximate Acreage: 0.03

7 | LIFT STATION NO. 12
7 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: __ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |

Iltem Notes: 1903 Lake Robbins
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 3,049
Approximate Acreage: 0.07

7 | LIFT STATION NO. 13
8 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total:l $45.00|

Item Notes: 5250 Flintridge
The Woodlands, TX 77381

Mowable Area SQ FT: 3,049
Approximate Acreage: 0.07

7 | LIFT STATION NO. 14
9 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total:l $45.00|

Iltem Notes: 2600 Lake Woodlands Dir.
The Woodlands, TX 77381

Mowable Area SQ FT: 1,742
Approximate Acreage: 0.04

8 | LIFT STATION NO. 16
0| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $60.00| Total: | $60.00 |

Iltem Notes: 76 Shannon Green Ct.
The Woodlands, TX 77384

Mowable Area SQ FT: 22,216
Approximate Acreage: 0.51

Page 11 of 18 pages Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and 26-0007 Addendum 1
Maintenance LLC




= 00

LIFT STATION NO. 17
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

$45.00| Total:|

$45.00 |

Item Notes: 123 Northgate
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 5,227
Approximate Acreage: 0.12

LIFT STATION NO. 18
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

$45.00| Total: |

$45.00 |

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

Iltem Notes: 2821 North Millbend Dr.
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 436
Approximate Acreage: 0.01

LIFT STATION NO. 19
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

$45.00| Total:|

$45.00 |

Iltem Notes: 3120 North Millbend Dr.
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 436
Approximate Acreage: 0.01

00

LIFT STATION NO. 20
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

$45.00| Total:|

$45.00 |

Iltem Notes: 13002 South Park. Dr.
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 2,614
Approximate Acreage: 0.06

LIFT STATION NO. 21
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price:

$45.00| Total: |

$45.00 |

Item Notes: 25219 Grogans Mill Rd.
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 3,485
Approximate Acreage: 0.08

Page 12 of 18 pages

Maintenance LLC

Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and

26-0007 Addendum 1




LIFT STATION NO. 22

6 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |
Iltem Notes: 32 Woodhaven Wood Dr.
The Woodlands, TX 77380
Mowable Area SQ FT: 871
Approximate Acreage: 0.02
8 | LIFT STATION NO. 23
7| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |
Item Notes: 9150 Grogans Mill
The Woodlands, TX 77380
Mowable Area SQ FT: 2,178
Approximate Acreage: 0.05
8 [ LIFT STATION NO. 24 (GATED)
8 [ Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $65.00| Total:l $65.00|
Item Notes: 7001 Flintridge
The Woodlands, TX 77382
Mowable Area SQ FT:21,780
Approximate Acreage: 0.50
8 | LIFT STATION NO. 25
9 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $50.00| Total: | $50.00 |
Item Notes: 3108 College Park. Dr.
The Woodlands, TX 77384
Mowable Area SQ FT: 6,970
Approximate Acreage: 0.16
9 | LIFT STATION NO. 26
0| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total:l $45.00|
Item Notes: 8426 Technology Forest Place
The Woodlands, TX 77381
Mowable Area SQ FT: 2,614
Approximate Acreage: 0.06
9 | LIFT STATION NO. 27
1| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total:l $45.00|

Item Notes: 144 South Tranquil Path
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 4,792
Approximate Acreage: 0.11

Page 13 of 18 pages

Maintenance LLC

Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and

26-0007 Addendum 1




9 | LIFT STATION NO. 28
2 [ Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |

Iltem Notes: 2690 Sawdust Rd.
The Woodlands, TX 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 3,485
Approximate Acreage: 0.08

9 | LIFT STATION NO. 29
3| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $65.00| Total:l $65.00|

Item Notes: 11402 West Branch Crossing
The Woodlands, TX 77354

Mowable Area SQ FT: 24,829
Approximate Acreage: 0.57

LIFT STATION NO. 30
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $55.00| Total:l $55.00|

HO

Item Notes: 222 Greylake Place
Magnolia, TX 77354

Mowable Area SQ FT: 7,405
Approximate Acreage: 0.17

9 | ELEVATED STORAGE TANK (EST) NO. 1
S | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |

Iltem Notes: 3310 South Panther Creek Dr.
The Woodlands, Tx 77381

Mowable Area SQ FT: 6,086
Approximate Acreage: 0.14

9 | ELEVATED STORAGE TANK (EST) NO. 2
6 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $60.00| Total:l $60.00|

Iltem Notes: 100 Lake Front Circle
The Woodlands, Tx 77380

Mowable Area SQ FT: 21,769
Approximate Acreage: 0.50

9 | ELEVATED STORAGE TANK (EST) NO. 3; WATER WELL NOS. 9 & 10
7| Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $60.00| Total: | $60.00 |

Iltem Notes: 7100 Research Forest Dr.
The Woodlands, Tx 77381

Mowable Area SQ FT: 22,967
Approximate Acreage: 0.53

Page 14 of 18 pages Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and 26-0007 Addendum 1
Maintenance LLC




9 | ELEVATED STORAGE TANK (EST) NO.4
8 | Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $50.00| Total:l $50.00|

Item Notes: 5465 Woodlands Parkway
The Woodlands, Tx 77381

Mowable Area SQ FT: 12,494
Approximate Acreage: 0.29

9 | ELEVATED STORAGE TANK (EST) NO. 5; WATER WELL NOS. 25 & 26
9 [ Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $65.00| Total:l $65.00|

Item Notes: 8581 Woodlands Parkway
The Woodlands, Tx 77382

Mowable Area SQ FT:25,279
Approximate Acreage: 0.58

ELEVATED STORAGE TANK (EST) NO.6 (FUTURE)
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal - MAINTAIN AREA THAT HAS BEEN CLEARED UNTIL

CONSTRUCTION STARTS
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: | $70.00| Total: | $70.00 |

(=J=L 0

ltem Notes: 7535 Lauravale Drive
The Woodlands, Tx 77382

Mowable Area SQ FT: N/A
Approximate Acreage:1.00

ELEVATED STORAGE TANK (EST) NO. 7; WATER WELL NOS. 33 & 34
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $65.00| Total:l $65.00|

O

Item Notes: 550 Trade Center Parkway
The Woodlands, Tx 77385

Mowable Area SQ FT: 28,242
Approximate Acreage: 0.65

WATER WELL NO. 3
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Quantity: __ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |

Item Notes: 10999 Winterberry
The Woodlands, Tx 77380

NO =

Mowable Area SQ FT:2,056
Approximate Acreage: 0.05

Page 15 of 18 pages Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and 26-0007 Addendum 1
Maintenance LLC




Wo =

WATER WELL NO. 4
Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal

Item Notes: 5755 Alden Bridge Rd.
The Woodlands, Tx 77382

Mowable Area SQ FT: 26,011
Approximate Acreage: 0.60

Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $50.00 | Total: | $50.00 |
Iltem Notes: 2701 North Millbend Dr.
The Woodlands, Tx 77380
Mowable Area SQ FT: 10,220
Approximate Acreage: 0.23
1 | WATER WELL NOS. 7 &8
2 Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $55.00 | Total: | $55.00 |
Item Notes: 10003 Gosling
The Woodlands, Tx 77381
Mowable Area SQ FT:13,819
Approximate Acreage: 0.32
1 | WATER WELL NOS. 11 & 12
g Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00 | Total: | $45.00 |
Item Notes: 4747 Woodlands Parkway
The Woodlands, Tx 77381
Mowable Area SQ FT: 6,693
Approximate Acreage: 0.15
1 | WATER WELL NOS. 15 & 16
g Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00| Total: | $45.00 |
Iltem Notes: 2651 Research Forest Dr.
The Woodlands, Tx 77381
Mowable Area SQ FT: 5,357
Approximate Acreage: 0.12
1 | WATER WELL NOS. 17 & 18
9 Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $45.00 | Total: | $45.00 |
Item Notes: 1320 Many Pines Rd.
The Woodlands, Tx 77380
Mowable Area SQ FT:6,380
Approximate Acreage: 0.15
1 | WATER WELL NOS. 19 & 20
g Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $65.00| Total:l $65.00|

Page 16 of 18 pages

Maintenance LLC

Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and

26-0007 Addendum 1




1 | WATER WELL NOS. 21 & 22
g Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $55.00| Total: | $55.00 |
Iltem Notes: 4111 Marisco Rd.
The Woodlands, Tx 77384
Mowable Area SQ FT:16,626
Approximate Acreage: 0.38
1 | WATER WELL NOS. 23 & 24
3 Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $65.00 | Total: | $65.00 |
Item Notes: 8902 Research Forest Dr.
The Woodlands, Tx 77382
Mowable Area SQ FT: 27,082
Approximate Acreage: 0.62
1 | WATER WELL NOS. 31 & 32
1 Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $60.00 | Total: | $60.00 |
Item Notes: 7508 Gosling Rd.
The Woodlands, Tx 77384
Mowable Area SQ FT:19,154
Approximate Acreage: 0.44
1 | WATER WELL NOS. 35 & 36
; Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $60.00| Total: | $60.00 |
Item Notes: 7 Shell Port Square
The Woodlands, Tx 77380
Mowable Area SQ FT: 18,857
Approximate Acreage: 0.43
1 | WATER WELL NOS. 37 & 38
g Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: _ 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $50.00 | Total: | $50.00 |
Item Notes: 6919 Woodlands Parkway
The Woodlands, Tx 77382
Mowable Area SQ FT:10,636
Approximate Acreage: 0.24
1 [ WATER WELL NO. 39
1 Turf mowing, Weed Eating, Litter, Trash, Debris Removal
Quantity: 1 UOM: PER MOW Price: $60.00| Total: | $60.00 |
Item Notes: 11482 West Branch Crossing
The Woodlands, Tx 7734
Mowable Area SQ FT: 23,803
Approximate Acreage: 0.55
Page 17 of 18 pages Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and 26-0007 Addendum 1

Maintenance LLC




Q1= =

WOODLANDS - OTHER UNIT PRICED ITEMS

1 Materials and Labor to repair/replace sprinkler head and/or riser assembly to functionanlity
6 | Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
1 Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Tree Bubbler and/or Riser Assembly to functionality
7 | Quantity: 1 uom: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
1 Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Lawn Rotor Head and/or Riser Assembly to functionality
8 | Quantity: 1 uom: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
1 Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace Remote Control Valve to functionality
9 |Quantity: 1 uom: EA Price: | $200.00| Total: | $200.00 |
; Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace/Restore break in irrigation PVC pipe 1" or less.
0 | Quantity: _ 1 UOM: EA Price: | $100.00| Total: | $100.00 |
; Deliver and Install Brown Mulch on Plant Beds
1| Quantity: _ 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $85.00| Total: | $85.00 |
; Deliver and Install 3-4" Bull Rock to SJRA Facilities
2 [ Quantity: _ 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $200.00 | Total: | $200.00 |
; Spread Bermuda Grass Seed by hand
3

Quantity: 1 UOM: SF Price: | $0.25 | Total: | $0.25 |
; Hydro mulch (Bermuda)
4 | Quantity: 1 UOM: SF Price: | $0.15] Total: | $0.15 |
; Delivery and Install Top Soil
5 [ Quantity: _ 1 UOM: CUBIC YARD Price: | $90.00 | Total: | $90.00 |

Response Total: $18,228.20

Page 18 of 18 pages

Vendor: Earthworks Landscape and
Maintenance LLC

26-0007 Addendum 1



PROPOSAL PRICING

G&ADIVISION
Total Annual
Item Price per Price (40
No. Scope of Services Mow MOWS)
Turf mowing, Edging, Weed Eating, Weed Control/Weed Removal, Litter,
Trash, Debris Removal, Fertilizer, Ant Bait Spot Treatment and
1 Pruning/Trimming of Hedges, Shrubs, Trees and Grasses per schedule $100.00 $3,800.00
OTHER UNIT PRICED ITEMS
Item Unit of
No. Description Measure Unit Price
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace Sprinkler head and/or Riser
1 assembly to functionality EA $100.00
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Tree Bubbler and/or Riser
2 Assembly to functionality EA $100.00
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Lawn Rotor Head and/or
3 Riser Assembly to functionality EA $100.00
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace Remote Control Valve to
4 functionality EA $200.00
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace/Restore break in irrigation PVC pipe
5 1" or less. EA $100.00
Deliver and Install Brown Mulch on Plant Beds up to 2" in May, 12 cubic
6 yards. CUBIC YARD $85.00
7 Deliver and Install 3-4" Bull Rock to SJRA Facilities CUBIC YARD $200.00
8 Spread Bermuda Grass Seed by hand SF $0.25
9 Hydro mulch (Bermuda) SF $0.15
10 On-Call Truck Watering for Trees HR $400.00
11 Deliver and Install 30 gallon Shade Tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring EA $400.00
12 Delivery and Install 100-gallon shade tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring EA $1,500.00
Material and Labor to procure and install annual color (include light soil in
13 cost) FLAT $50.00
14 Delivery and Install Top Soil CUBIC YARD $90.00




PROPOSAL PRICING

LAKE CONROE DIVISION
Total Annual
Item Price per |Price (38
No. Scope of Services Mow Mows)
Turf mowing, Edging, Weed Eating, Weed Control/Weed Removal, Litter,
Trash, Debris Removal, Fertilizer, Ant Bait Spot Treatment and
1 Pruning/Trimming of Hedges, Shrubs, Trees and Grasses per schedule $85.00 $3,230.00
Item Price per
No. Scope of Services Tree Total Price
OPTIONAL ITEM Trim and
2 Thin Live Oak Trees along Dam Site Road (58 Trees) $150.00 $8,700.00
OTHER UNIT PRICED ITEMS
Item Unit of
No. Description Measure Unit Price
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace Sprinkler head and/or Riser
1 assembly to functionality EA $100.00
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Tree Bubbler and/or Riser
2 Assembly to functionality EA $100.00
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace-Install Lawn Rotor Head and/or
3 Riser Assembly to functionality EA $100.00
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace Remote Control Valve to
4 functionality EA $200.00
Materials and Labor to Repair/Replace/Restore break in irrigation PVC pipe
5 1" or less. EA $100.00
Deliver and Install Brown Mulch on Plant Beds up to 2" in May, 12 cubic
6 yards. CUBIC YARD $85.00
7 Deliver and Install 3-4" Bull Rock to SJRA Facilities CUBIC YARD $200.00
8 Spread Bermuda Grass Seed by hand SF $0.25
9 Hydro mulch (Bermuda) SF $0.15
10 On-Call Truck Watering for Trees HR $400.00
11 Deliver and Install 30 gallon Shade Tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring EA $400.00
12 Delivery and Install 100-gallon shade tree, T-Posts, Wire and Mulch Ring EA $1,500.00
Material and Labor to procure and install annual color (include light soil in
13 cost) FLAT $50.00
14 Delivery and Install Top Soil CUBIC YARD $90.00




00°08$ advA 219nd 1108 do] neisu| pue A1aanaqg /T
00°06$ 114 (3500 ur10s 3N apnou) 9T
10102 jenuUE )1BISUl pue 81nd04d 0} JoqeT pue 1elale
00°0S$ 1v1d (1500 11108 1y3N 8pmdUl) T
10102 Jenuue )1BIsul pue a1nd0id 0} JoqeT pue 1elale
00°00S‘T$ V3 sury Yo pue aim €T
‘S150d-] ‘@911 apeys uoes-o0T 11eisu| pue A1eAnag
00°007$ V3 sury Yoy pue 1
BlI\ ‘S1S0d-] ‘@911 apeys uones o 11eIsu| pue J1aAnaq
00°00v$ dH $98al] Jo} Bulalepn qoni] 1eD-uo TT
ST°0$ 4S (epnwuag) yoinw oIpAH 0T
5z'0$ 4S puey Aq paas ssel9 epnwiiag pealds 6
00°00Z$ advAa o1gnd 04 VYIS 01204 1ng ,-€ Neisu| pue JaAned 8
00°58% advAa 219n9 Spag jueld uo ydinjy umo.g 11eisu| pue 1saineqg L
00°00T$ 'ssa)40 T did DAd uonegiul ul 9
yealq a101say/a0e)day/lieday 01 Joge pue s\elale
00°00C$ V3 Aneuonouny 01 anjeA 101U0) S
910wy soe)day/ileday 0110geT pue S1eldlely
00°00T$ v3 Amneuonouny 0y Alquiassy Jasiy Jo/pue pesH 1010y 14
umeT 11e1su|-aoe1day/lieday 01 Joge] pue sjelale
00°00T$ v3 Amneuonouny 0} Alquiassy Jasiy Jo/pue Ja1qang €
9al] Neisul-aoe)day/lieday 03 10ge pue sjelale
00°00T$ v3 Ameuonouny 0y Alquiasse 1as1y 1o/pue 4
peay Japjulidg aoejday/lieday 01 JogeT pue sielsle|y
91id Hun 2Inseajy Jo uun uonduasaqg T
‘ON way
Swiay| adlid Hun
00°007°0€$ 1ejo1
00°000°L$ 00°00V‘T$ S T 62/8¢ AMeniga4  [NOSVIS INVIWNHOA
- 11940300
00°009°6T$ 00°00V‘T$ T 4 0¢ Joqwisdas  |NOSY3S ONIMOY9D
-T yosew
1enoway s1igaq ‘ysel] jue)d JUBWIELAI] J81BA 3IBJNS :Z NOILD3S 4
193317 ‘Buned pasp ‘Suimowl Jing
00°000°T$ 00°002$ S T 6¢/8¢ Meniga4  [NOSVIS INVINHOA
- 14800100
00°008‘C$ 00°002$ T 4 0¢ Joqwisdas  |NOSY3S ONIMOY9D
- T yotew
leAoway sligaq ‘usell suipling suoneladQ uiel :T NOILO3IS T
193317 ‘Buned pasp ‘Suimowl Jing
3dlld 1enuuy aoud flyiuow SMO|\ 1810 Yluop/Smo SYJUo S99IAI3S Jo adoog V3I4V/NOILD3S ‘ON way
NOISIAIQ 449

ONIOIdd T¥YSOdOHd




00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAroway sligad| v0°0 [47A81 T8E/LL SeXd] ‘SPUBIPOOAN BYL T 'ON uoneis un €C
‘yses] “4anI7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 9A1IQ SPUBIPOOAN 97 0092

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad|  £0°0 6v0°c T8E/LL SeXd] ‘SPUBIPOOAN BYL €T 'ON uoneisun (44
‘ysel] ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pas ‘sumows ping a8pLund 05es

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad|  £0°0 6v0°c 08€/LL SeXa] ‘SpueIpooN YL CT 'ON uoneisuIn 1%4
‘yses] “4anI7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng suiqqoy ave1 06T

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAroway sligad| €0°0 L0E'T T8E/LL SeXd] ‘SPUBIPOOA BYL TT 'ON UoheIS U 0c
‘ysel ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pas ‘sumows png 90B]d pudg MOpeYS G195

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad|  S0°0 8/1°C 08€/L Sexa] ‘Spue|poon YL 0T "ON uoheIs Ui 61
‘ysel ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pas ‘sumows png peoy Niwmes TOTET

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAroway sligad|  v0°0 [47A81 08€/L Sexa] ‘Spue|poon YL 6 "ON uoheis Ui 8T
‘ysed] 1937 ‘Sune3 paspn ‘Suimowl Jing 90e1d Ydoaquill Z/yT

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad| 00 T8 08€/L Sexa] ‘Spue|poon YL 8 'ON uoheis U LT
‘yses] “4an7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng peoy Niwmes 01T

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad| 60°0 026°c T8E/LL SeXd] ‘SPUBIPOOA BYL L ONUoheIs U 91
‘yses] “4an7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng e ANep 1S9 L

00°000°C $§00°0S $ o jeAnoway sligad|  /£2'0 T9LTT T8E/LL SeXd] ‘SPUBIPOOA BYL (pe1e9) "9 ON UONEIS UIT ST
‘ysed] ‘1o ‘Bunel pasp ‘Suimow Jny 310110 111H 83eIsH €8

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad| 60°0 026°c T8E/LL SeXd] ‘SPUBIPOOA BYL G 'ONuohes U VT
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng AL X201Ud1D 01992

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad| 60°0 026°c 08€/L Sexa] ‘Spue|poon YL ¥ "ON uoheis Ui €T
‘ysel ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pas ‘sumows png peoy NI suesol9 8681t

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad|  £0°0 6v0°c 08€/L Sexa] ‘Spue|poon YL € 'ON uoheisun [4"
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 912410 BUINSS01D 9T6C

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad| 60°0 026°c 08€/L SexXa] ‘Spue|poon YL ¢ 'ONuohes U T
‘ysel ‘1on ‘Suneg pasp ‘sumows png 93pUPIM £090T

00°008‘T $§00°SY $ o jeAnoway sligad| 90°0 19°C 08€/L Sexa] ‘Spue|poon YL T 'ON uoneisun (0]
‘ysel ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pas ‘sumows png peoy NI sueso19 €0T0T

00'706°C $409°¢CL $ o jeAnoway sligad| S9'T €/8'TL ¥8€/LL SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOA BUL 8C B LT 'ON SII3M 131e\ 6
‘yses] “4an7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng Kepy s, N 1S TOSLT G 'ON lueyd Ja1ep

00°088‘S $J00°LrT $ o jeAnoway sligad| Ge'€ 166°SYT ¥SELL SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOM BUL 0€ ® 6C 'ON SN 131\ 8
‘ysel] “4anI7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 9AIIQ 8UISS01D youelg 1S V06T T ¥ "ON 1Ueld 191e M\

00°000‘t $§00°00T $ (014 jleaowsy slgad| £cZ'c 10886 T8E/LL SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOAN BYL 71 R €T 'ON S1IaM 1918\ L
‘yseu] ;eI ‘Bune3 pasn ‘Sumow Uny aALQ 98plg usp1y 8699 € "ON 1ueld J81e/N

00°00¥'C $ 40009 $ (014 jlerowsy sliga@|  LE°T G665 T8ELL SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOAA BYL 98 G "ON S1IaM 1918\ 9
‘yseu] ;e ‘Bune3 pasn ‘Sumow uny a0e1d puag MoOpeyS 0rT9 T ONueld 1818\

00°09L°T $ 100 VY $ (014 jlerowsy stiqad| S6°0 868‘TY 08E€/LL SEX3| ‘SpUeIpoOOAA 3YL C R T 'ON S1IaM 1918\ ]
‘yseu] ;eI ‘Bune3 pasn ‘Sumow Uny auld UselS 6e7TT T "ONlueld J81e/

00°02S‘S $400°88 $ (014 jeaowsy stigad| ¢o0'c 00088 G8E/LL SEeXd| ‘SpUeIpoOOA BYL € "ON Jue1d Juswieal] 191 81SeM 14
‘ysel] ‘1917 ‘Sune paspn ‘Suimowl Jing Remyled 19juad apei] GGG

00°0v9'vC $§ 00919 $ (014 jerowsy stigad| 00°vT 0v€‘009 T8ELL X1 ‘SPUBIPOOA BU L GT 'ON uoneis €
‘ysel] ‘1917 ‘Sune paspn ‘Suimowl Jing 9AlIQ 159104 Y21easay ZovS| MIT T ON lueld Juswieal] Ja1epn 91sepm

00°008‘V $qoo00zt $ (014 jeaowsy stigqad| 00°€ LOLOET 08ELL X1 ‘SPUBIPOOA BU L T 'ON 1ued Juswieal] 191\ 81Se 4
‘ysel] 1917 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Suimowl Jing peoy 1SNpmes 9ev¢

00°09L°T $o0vy $ (014 jeAowsy sligaqg V/N V/N 08ELL X1 ‘SPUBIPOOA BU L S32jJ0 uohensiulwpy T
‘ysel] ‘1917 ‘Sune paspn ‘Suimowl Jing peoy 1SNpMes 9evg T "ON JUB|d JuBLeal] I91BAN J91Sep

uoneoo) Jadielolgns] Mo 19d 3dlid 1B3A/SMO S99IAI13S Jo adoog *xoiddy ealy SSaIppy fnoeq *ON way|

payioads, ageasoy | a1gemopy
1408
NOISIAIQ SANYTAOOM

ONIOIdd T¥SOd0dd




00°002‘C 00°SS oy jeAroway sugad| €0 618°CT T8ELL SEXd] ‘SPUBIPOOA By L 873 L 'SON S9N 1818\ 514
‘ysed] 1917 ‘Suned paspn ‘Suimow Jing peoy 3unso9 £000T

00°000°C 00°0S oy leArowsy sugad|  €2°0 0zzotT 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop 8y ¥ "ON 113 4818 Ly
‘ysel] ‘49NN ‘Bunel pas ‘Suimow Jng 8Nl puaqNiN YUHON TOLZ

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy jeAroway sugad| GO0 950 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop 8y € "ON 113 4818 o
‘ysel] ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pas ‘sumows png A118g181UIM 6660T

00°009‘C 00°59 oy jearoway sugad| G690 [47A 14 GBELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL 7€ @ €€ "SON SNIdaM 1918 °14
‘yses] “4an7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng Kemylled 191ua apel] 0SS £ "ON (1S3) 3ue] a3el01S paieAa)]

00°008‘C 000 oy learowsy sugad| 00°T V/N T8ELLXL (34nLn4) 144
‘yses] “4an7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng ‘SpPUBIPOOAA BY] "I d1eAeIneT GEGL 9 'ON (1S3) 3ue] a3el01s paieAa)3

00°009‘C 00°59 oy jearoway sugad| 850 6/2'SC C8E/L SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOA BUL 9C 8 GT "SON SNIdaM 191\ 1514
‘ysel ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pas ‘sumows png Aemjied spueipoom 1858 G "ON (1S3) ue] 83el101s paieas)y

00°000°C 00°0S oy learowsy sugad| 62°0 6v‘CT T8ELL SBX3] ‘SPUBIPOOA ¥ "ON (1S3) dlue] a8elois parensly 474
‘yses] “4an7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng Kemdied spuejpoop GovS

00°00¥‘C 00°09 oy leroway sugad|  €5°0 196°CC T8ELL SeXd] ‘SpUuBIPOOM YL 0T '3 6 'SON STaM J81eM 1874
‘yses] “4an7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 9A1IQ 1S9104 YDdJeasay 00TL € "ON (1S3) 3ue] a3el01s paieAa)]

00°00¥‘C 00°09 oy jearoway sugad| 0S50 69L°TC 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL T 'ON (1S3) lue] a8elois parensly oy
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 912410 U044 94e7 00T

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy learowsy sugad|  v1°0 9809 T8ELL SeXd] ‘SpUuBIPOOM YL T 'ON (1S3) yue] a5el01S paiens)y 6¢€
‘ysed] 1937 ‘Sune3 paspn ‘Suimowl Jing AALIQ %9910 Jaylued Uinos 0TEE

00°002‘C 00°SS oy lerowsy sugad|  L1°0 SOv‘L ¥GELL Sexa] ‘enougep 0€ "ON uoneisyI 8¢
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng ?oe|d dekal9 zZe

00°009‘C 00°59 oy jeroway sugad|  £S°0 628'7C YSELL SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOA BUL 6¢ 'ON uoneis yn LE
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 8uIsso1D youeig 1S9\ 2OVTT

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy jearoway sugad| 80°0 s8v'e 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL 8¢ 'ON uoneis yn 9€
‘ysel] “4en7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng peoy 1SNpMes 0692

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy learowsy sugad| TT°0 6Ly 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL LT 'ON uoneis yn S€
‘ysel] “4anI7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng uied 1inbuest yinos vt

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy jeaoway sugad| 90°0 19T T8ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poOp 8y L 9C "'ON uoneis yn e
‘yses] “4an7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 99e1d 12104 A3010Uyd9] 9218

00°000°C 00°0S oy jearoway sugad| 91°0 0469 ¥8€LL SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOM BUL GC 'ON uoneis yn €e
‘ysed] 1o ‘Sune3 paspn ‘Suimow Jing 9AIIQ lJed 9891100 80TE

00°009‘C 00°59 oy jearoway sugad| 0S50 08L°TC C8E/L SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOO BUL (pa1es) g "oN uonels yI 4
‘ysel ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pasp ‘sumows ping a8p1und T00L

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy jearoway sugad| GO0 8/1°C 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL €C 'ON uoneis yn 1€
‘ysed] 1o ‘Sune3 paspn ‘Suimow Jing 111 Suedols 0516

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy jeaoway sugad| 200 T/8 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL CC 'ON uoneis yn 0g
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 9A1IQ POOAN UBABYPOOA ZE

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy jeaoway sugad| 80°0 s8v'e 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL TC "'ON uoneisyIi 6¢
‘ysel ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pas ‘sumows png peoy N suesol9 61252

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy jeaoway sugad| 90°0 19T 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL 0C "ON uoneisyIi 8¢
‘ysel] ‘49NN ‘Bunel pas ‘Buimow Jng SAlIJ ed UInoS Z00ET

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy learowsy sugad| 10°0 9EY 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL 6T 'ON uoneis yn LT
‘ysel] ‘49NN ‘Bunel pas ‘Suimow png 8Nl puaqNiN YHON 0CTE

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy learoway sugad| 10°0 9EY 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop ayL 8T "'ON uoneis yn 9C
‘ysel] ‘49NN ‘Bunel pas ‘Buimow Jng 8Nl puaqNiN YMION TZ8C

00°008‘T 00°Sy oy learowsy sugad| 210 LTTS 08ELL SeXd] ‘Spue|poop 8y LT 'ON uoneis yn 14
‘ysed] 1917 ‘Suned paspn ‘Suimow Jing ‘91e8YMON £2T

00°00¥‘C 00°09 oy learowsy sugad| 150 91Z‘Ce ¥8E€LL SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOO BUL 9T "ON uoneis yn 1’4
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 1D Udal9 uouueys 9/

NOISIAIQ SANYIAO0OM

ONIOIdd T¥SOd0dd




00°06$ advA 219nd 1108 do] neisu| pue A1aanaqg 0T
ST'0$ EN (epnuuag) yanw opAH 6
S2°0$ S puey Aq paag ssel9 epnwiag pealds 3
00°002$ advAoIdnd 004 1Ing . 7-€ 1e1su| pue JaAllag L
00°58$ advA o1dnd spag 9
JUB)d UO YIIN|A| UMOIG 1]BISU| pUB JIBANRQ
00°00T$ v3 'ssa140,T adid OAd [
uonesiu| ulyealq a10isay/eoelday/iieday
01JoqeT pue sjelaie
00°002$ v3 Aeuonouny 0} 8A1eA 1011U0D d10WaY 4
aoe)day/lieday 01 Joge pue s\elale|
00°00T$ V3 Ameuonouny 01 Aiquiassy €
13s1Y Jo/pue peaH 1010y UumeT 11elsu|
-9oe1day/iieday 01 JogeT pue sjelaie|y
00°00T$ V3 Ameuonouny 01 Aiquiassy 4
13s1y Jo/pue 1a)qaqng aal] N1eisu|
-9oe1day/iieday 01 JogeT pue sjelsie|y
00'00T$ V3 Ameuonouny T
01 Alquiasse Jasiy Jo/pue peay Jepjuiids
aoe)day/lieday 01 Joge pue s\eale|
aald uun 3Inseajy Jo uun uonduasaqg *ON Way
SW3LI LSO LINN H3H10
00'v9V‘1ST 0cee LT°0V 282°L69°T 1e10]]
00°00¥‘C 0009 o jeAnoway sligad|  SS°0 €08°€C ¥SELL Sexa] ‘Spuejpoop ayL 6€ 'ON NI3aM J31eM\ 89
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng 8uISs01D youeig 1S9\ Z8PTT
000002 00°0S o jeAnoway sligad| 2’0 9£9°0T T8E// SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOM By L 8€ B LE "SON SISM I81EM\ LS
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng Kemyied spuejpoop 6169
00°00¥‘C 00°09 o jeAroway sligad|  €v°0 15881 08€/L Sexa] ‘Spue|poon 3yl 9O€ B GE "SON SII3M J81eM\ 98
‘ysel] “4anI7 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng a1enbs 110d 119US £
00°00¥‘C 0009 o jeArowsy sligad|  vv'0 YST'6T ¥8E// Sex3] ‘SpueIPOO CE R TE 'SON SN3M J81eM\ i}
‘ysel ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pasp ‘sumows ping ayL peoy 8unso9 80s.L
00°009°C 00°S9 o jeAnoway sligad| <290 280°LC T8E// SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOM By L ¢ R €C "SON SII3M 181eM\ 14
‘ysed] 1937 ‘Sune3 paspn ‘Suimowl Jing 911 153104 U21e3SaY 2068
000022 00°SS o jeAoway sligad| 8€'0 92991 ¥8€// SEX3] ‘SPUBIPOOM B L CC R TC 'SON SNI3M 181eM\ €S
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng peoy 02ISIeN TTTY
00°009°C 00°S9 oy jeAnoway sligad| 09°0 1109¢ C8E// SeX3] ‘SPUBIPOOM 0C ® 6T 'SON SNI9M 131\ [4°]
‘ysel ‘1on7 ‘Suneg pas ‘sumows png El ‘peoy a8p1g UBPIY GLLS
00°008‘T 00°SYy o jeAroway sligad| ST'0 089 08€/L SeXa] ‘SpueIpoon YL 8T B LT "SON SII3M I81eM\ 18
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng peoy sauld Aue 0ZET
00°008‘T 00°'SYy o jeAroway sligad| C¢r'o L5€°S T8E/LL SeXd] ‘SPUBIPOOAN BYL OT B GT "SON SN3M J81eM\ 0S
‘ysed] 19317 ‘Sune3 paspn ‘Suimowl Jing 911 153104 UY21e3SaY TG9Z
00°008‘T 00°SYy o jeAroway sligad| ST'0 €699 T8E// SBX3] ‘SPUBIPOOM CT R TT 'SON SN3M J81eM\ 514
‘yses] “4an17 ‘Sunel paspn ‘Sumowl Jng ayl ‘Aemyled SPUBIPOOM L.
NOISIAIQ SANYTAOOM

ONIOIdd T¥SOd0dd




CERTIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The undersigned, as an authorized agent of the Respondent, hereby certifies:
The Respondent is in receipt of Addendum No. 1 addenda.
The Respondent certifies:

» that (i) it does not Boycott Israel; and (ii) will not Boycott Israel during the term of the Contract. This section does
not apply if the Company is a sole proprietor, a non-profit entity or a governmental entity; and only applies if: (i)
the Company has ten (10) or more fulltime employees and (ii) this Contract has a value of $100,000.00 or more to
be paid under the terms of this Contract pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2271, Section 2271.002.

» that it does not do business with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization pursuant to Texas Government
Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.153.

> that it does not boycott energy companies, and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the
Agreement pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2276, Section 2276.002.

> that it (i) does not have a practice, policy, guidance or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or
firearm trade association; and (ii) will not discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association during
the term of the Agreement pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2274, Section 2274.002.

» that it is not (i) owned or controlled by (a) individuals who are citizens of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a
designated country; or (b) a company or other entity, including a governmental entity, that is owned or controlled
by citizens of or is directly controlled by the government of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated
country; or (ii) headquartered in China, Iran, North Korea, Russia or a designated country pursuant to Texas
Government Code, Chapter 2275.

» that it is qualified to perform the work and services outlined in this RFP.

» that the SOQ has been arrived at independently and submitted without collusion with any other Respondent, SJIRA
staff or SJIRA contractor, and the contents of the SOQ have not been communicated by the Respondent or, to the
Respondent’s best knowledge and belief, by any one of its employees or agents to any person not an employee or
agent of the Respondent, and will not be communicated to any person prior to SJRA’s final action on this RFQ prior
to contract award. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to prevent or preclude two or more companies
or persons from joining together to submit a SOQ for the work.

» that the offers, terms and conditions of the SOQ will remain valid and effective and may be relied upon by SIRA
for a period of ninety (90) days following the SOQ closing date and time as identified in this RFQ or addenda.

» that it has provided disclosure of all known claims for losses, damages, or indemnification, including any settled,
threatened, or ongoing litigation, as required in Submission Requirements.

Signed By: ,%Wj—ﬂ i Title: Owner
EARTHWORKS LANDSCAPE AND

Typed Name: Garret Ashton Company Name: MAINTENANCE, LLC
Phone No.: (936)648-5593 Email: garret@earthworkstexas.com

P.O. Box or Street City State Zip
Remit Address: 13511 Greenlow Drive, Houston, Texas 77067

P.O. Box or Street City State Zip
Federal Tax ID No.: 464729662 DUNS No.: 052080519
Date: January 15, 2026
San Jacinto River Authority Page | 32

RFP No. 26-0007 MOWING & LANDSCAPING SERVICES 06.2025



SJRA=—

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

ADDENDUM NO. 1
RFP # 26-0007

Date: January 7, 2026

To: All Interested Parties
From: Megan Morris, Buyer
Re: RFP # 26-0007

Mowing and Landscaping Services
The following additions, deletions, changes, or clarifications to RFP #26-0007 are hereby made as part of the

originally issued solicitation documents for the above-mentioned project as fully and as completely as though the
same were included therein.

QUESTIONS:
1. Question: Good morning, May we have a copy of the current contract?
SJRA Response: Please send all public records request to openrecords@sjra.net.

2. Question: What company is currently servicing the contract of each division and what are the amounts of each
contract?

SJRA Response: Please send all public records request to openrecords@sjra.net.

3. Question: Could you clarify (from the matrix) what it means that edging (curbs and aprons) at the GRP is an
extra service item?

SJRA Response: Generally, contractors use a weed eater for cleaning up around curbs, sidewalks and aprons. If
we ask that they use an ‘edger’, that has been additional in the past. But it would be on request that we want
edging vs. weed eating.

All provisions that are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect.

Please acknowledge receipt of this addendum with signature and date and return with completed RFP. Failure to
do so may cause your proposal to be considered as non-responsive.

Receipt of this Addendum No. 1 is hereby acknowledged

%‘"“@t%@ January 15, 2026

Authorized Signature Date

EARTHWORKS LANDSCAPE AND MAINTENANCE, LLC
Company Name

Page 1 of 1



EXHIBIT B
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

For purposes of this Exhibit B, “ISO” means Insurance Services Office.

1.0

11

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Contractor Insurance Representations to SJRA.
It is expressly understood and agreed that the insurance coverages required herein:

1.1.1 Represent SJRA’s minimum requirements and are not to be construed to void or limit Contractor’s
indemnity obligations as contained in the Contract, nor represent in any manner a determination of the
insurance coverages Contractor should or should not maintain for its own protection; and

1.1.2 Are being, or have been, obtained by Contractor in support of Contractor’s liability and indemnity
obligations under the Contract. Irrespective of the requirements as to insurance to be carried as provided
for herein, the insolvency, bankruptcy or failure of any insurance company carrying insurance of
Contractor, or the failure of any insurance company to pay claims accruing, shall not be held to affect,
negate or waive any of the provisions of the Contract.

Failure to obtain and maintain the required insurance shall constitute a material breach of, and default under, this
Contract. If Contractor shall fail to remedy such breach, Contractor will be liable for any and all costs, liabilities,
damages and penalties resulting to SIRA from such breach, unless a written waiver of the specific insurance
requirement(s) is provided to Contractor by SIRA. In the event of any failure by Contractor to comply with the
insurance requirements of the Contract, SJIRA may, without in any way compromising or waiving any right or
remedy at law or in equity, on notice to Contractor, purchase such insurance, at Contractor’s expense, provided
that SJRA shall have no obligation to do so and if SJIRA shall do so, Contractor shall not be relieved of or excused
from the obligation to obtain and maintain such insurance amounts and coverages.

Conditions Affecting All Insurance Required Herein.

Cost of Insurance. All insurance coverage shall be provided at Contractor’s sole expense.

Maintenance of Insurance. All insurance coverage shall be maintained in effect with limits not less than those set

forth below at all times during the performance of the Work and through the correction period of paragraph 5.13
of the Agreement, and for such longer periods of time as may be set forth herein.

Status and Rating of Insurance Company. All insurance coverage shall be written through insurance companies

authorized to do business in the State of Texas and rated no less than A-: VIl in the most current edition of A. M.
Best’s Key Rating Guide.

Restrictive, Limiting, or Exclusionary Endorsements. All insurance coverage shall be provided to SJRA in compliance
with the requirements herein.

Limits of Liability. The limits of liability may be provided by a single policy of insurance or by a combination of
primary and umbrella policies, but in no event shall the total limits of liability available for any one occurrence or
accident be less than the amount required herein.

Notice of Cancellation or Material Change in Coverage. Contractor and the insurer shall provide SJIRA with thirty
days prior written notice of cancellation or material change in coverage.

Waiver of Rights of Recovery and Subrogation. The Contractor hereby waives its rights of recovery from the SIRA
with regard to all causes of property and/or liability loss and shall cause a waiver of subrogation endorsement to
be provided in favor of SJRA on all insurance coverage carried by the Contractor, whether required herein or not.

Deductible/Retention. Except as otherwise specified herein, no insurance required herein shall contain a
deductible or self-insured retention in excess of $10,000 without prior written approval of SJRA. All deductibles
and/or retentions shall be paid by, assumed by, for the account of, and at Contractor’s sole risk. Contractor shall

Facilities Mowing & Landscaping SJRA General Services Agreement
Contract No. 26-0007 2025



not be reimbursed for same. If the insurance contains a self-insured retention, the policy shall allow the self-
insured retention to be paid or satisfied by a party other than the named insured.
2.9 Minimum Limits. The inclusion of required minimum insurance limits in the Contract Documents shall not be
construed as limiting the SIRA’s or other additional insured’s rights under any policy with higher limits. The
minimum insurance limits set forth in this Exhibit D shall be deemed to be amended to any higher limits actually
contained in Contractor’s insurance policies.

3.0 Intentionally Omitted.
4.0 Insurance Required.
4.1 The following insurance shall be maintained in effect with limits not less than those set forth below at all times

during the term of the Agreement and thereafter as required.

PLEASE NOTE: These requirements should provide general guidance only, additional requirements based on project specifics of the contract
may be required. Contract amounts over limits will require excess coverage to cover the difference. Combined single limits and excess
coverage must equal the Contract Amount (CA).

Risk Level Contract Amount
Coverage <=$25k >325k- >§75k- >=SIM-  >SZM
TIER 1 £75k $1M S2M
Earh Oceurrence $300k $500K 1M $15M =§M
Commercial Fire Damage $100k  $250k $1M $15M  =$2M
Administrative/ General Liability Personal & ADV Injury §300k  $500k  $IM $15M =$2M
General Business Services . (caL) Aggregate S600K  $750k  $2M $3M =$4M
(Premises/Completed Premises/Operatlons §300k  $500k  $IM $1EM  =$2M
Services: Operations) " .
m egularly scheduled Products/Completed Operations $300K  $500k 1M $15M =$M
ervi ch as landscaping,
;at:t:::;]su ey Per occurrence bodily injury $500k  $500k 3500k $500k  $500k
i 1ce- elev: Workers
SRR PR Compensation Per occurrence bodily injury by disease $500k  $500k  $500k  $500k  $500k
Contract Type: Policy Limit for Bodily Injury Disease $500k  $500k  $500k  §s00k  $500k
# (General Services Contract
. . Business Auto Bodily [njury $250k $500k  $500k S1M =$iMm
i Liability Property Damage stook  $500k S500k  $1M  =§aM
Ovmned, Non-Owned,
Hired, Injury and Comblned Single Limit (Bodily & Property _
Property coverage for amest $s00k 1M $IM $2M =§2M
all
Professional Professional reguired based on the scope of : ; _
Liability o §250k  $500k  §IM $2M  =§2M
Cyber Liability Cyberrequired based on the scope of work | $250k  $500k  $IM $2IM =$2M

4.2 Commercial General Liability Insurance

4.2.1

Coverage. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of all locations and operations of Contractor,

including but not limited to liability assumed under the Contract Documents (including the tort liability of

another assumed in a business contract).

included within the limit of liability.

4.2.2

Defense shall be provided as an additional benefit and not

Form. Commercial General Liability Occurrence form (at least as broad as an unmodified current I1SO

edition of CG 00 01) to include, but not be limited to, coverage for the Contractor’s premises, operations
(including completed operations), products, and contractual assumption of tort liability.

4.2.3 Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with limits of not less than the above stated table.

4.2.4 Required Endorsements.

Facilities Mowing & Landscaping
Contract No. 26-0007

SJRA General Services Agreement
2025



4.3

4.2.5

a. Additional Insured. Additional insured status shall be provided in favor of the SJRA on a combination
of ISO forms CG 20 10 10 01 and CG 20 37 10 01 or their combined equivalent. It is the intent of the
parties to this Agreement that this Additional Insured status shall include coverage for completed
operations and for the SIRA’s concurrent and sole negligence. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
Subchapter C of Chapter 151 of the Texas Insurance Code applies to the Contract, this Additional
Insured obligation shall not require or provide coverage the scope of which is prohibited under
Subchapter C of Chapter 151 of the Texas Insurance Code for an agreement to indemnify, hold
harmless or defend.

b. Designated Construction Project(s) Aggregate Limit. The aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
Agreement through use of an ISO CG 25 03 05 09 endorsement or its equivalent.

c. Notice of Cancellation or Material Change in Coverage, as required in 2.6, above.

d. Primary and Non-Contributing Liability. All insurance coverage required of the Contractor shall be
primary to and shall seek no contribution from all insurance available to SIRA, with SIRA’s insurance
being excess, secondary and non-contributing. This CGL coverage shall be endorsed to provide such
primary and non-contributing liability coverage.

e. Waiver of Rights of Recovery and Subrogation, as required in 2.7, above.

Continuing Commercial General Liability Insurance. Contractor shall maintain such insurance in identical
coverage, form and amount, including required endorsements, for at least three (3) years following Date
of Final Completion of the Work to be performed under the Contract.

Auto Liability Insurance

43.1

4.3.2

433

434

Coverage. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of any auto (including owned, hired, and non-
owned).

Form. Business Auto form (at least as broad as an unmodified current I1SO edition of CA 00 01).

Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with a limit of not less than the above stated table.

Required Endorsements.

a. Notice of Cancellation or Material Change in Coverage, as required in 2.6, above.

b.  Waiver of Rights of Recovery and Subrogation, as required in 2.7, above.

c. Additional insured status in favor of the SIRA. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Subchapter C of
Chapter 151 of the Texas Insurance Code applied to the Contract, this Additional Insured obligation
shall not require or provide coverage the scope of which is prohibited under Subchapter C of Chapter
151 of the Texas Insurance Code for an agreement to indemnify, hold harmless or defend.

d. Primary and Non-Contributing Liability. All insurance coverage required of the Contractor shall be
primary to and shall seek no contribution from all insurance available to SIRA, with SIRA’s insurance
being excess, secondary and non-contributing. This Auto Liability Insurance coverage shall be
endorsed to provide such primary and non-contributing liability coverage.

4.4 Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability Insurance

441

Amounts of coverage shall be no less than Statutory Limits; each Accident and Disease (see requirements
stated in table above).

4.5 Excess Liability Insurance

Facilities Mowing & Landscaping SJRA General Services Agreement
Contract No. 26-0007 2025



5.0

5.1

5.2

4.5.1 Coverage. Such insurance shall be excess over and be no less broad than all coverages described above
(with the exception of Worker’s Compensation) and shall include a drop-down provision.

4.5.2 Form. This policy shall have the same inception and expiration dates as the Commercial General Liability
insurance required above.

4.5.3 Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with a limit of not less than the above stated table.

4.5.4 Continuing Excess Liability Insurance. Contractor shall maintain such insurance in identical coverage, form
and amount, including required endorsements, for at least three (3) years following Date of Final
Completion of the Work to be performed under the Contract.

4.5.5 Additional insured status shall be provided in favor of the SJRA. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
Subchapter C of Chapter 151 of the Texas Insurance Code applies to the Contract, this Additional Insured
obligation shall not require or provide coverage the scope of which is prohibited under Subchapter C of
Chapter 151 of the Texas Insurance Code for an agreement to indemnify, hold harmless or defend. This
Excess Liability Insurance shall be primary to and shall seek no contribution from all insurance available to
the SJIRA, with SJRA’s insurance being excess, secondary and non-contributing.

Evidence of Insurance.

Provision of Evidence. Evidence of the insurance coverage required to be maintained by Contractor, represented

by certificates of insurance, evidence of insurance consistent with the requirements of Chapter 1811 of the Texas
Insurance Code, and endorsements issued by the insurance company or its legal agent, must be furnished to SJRA
not later than 15 days prior to commencement of Work. New certificates of insurance, evidence of insurance, and
endorsements shall be provided to SIRA prior to the termination date of the current certificates of insurance,
evidence of insurance, and endorsements.

Form. All liability insurance required herein shall be evidenced by ACORD form 25, “Certificate of Insurance”, or if

such form is not filed with and approved or deemed approved by the Texas Department of Insurance, then on a
form filed with and approved by or deemed approved by the Texas Department of Insurance and acceptable to
SIRA.

5.3 Specifications. Such certificates of insurance, evidence of insurance, and endorsements shall specify the following,

5.4

5.5

excluding, however, any such specifications as may be prohibited under Chapter 1811 of the Texas Insurance Code:

5.3.1 SJRA as a certificate holder with correct mailing address.

5.3.2 Insured’s name, which must match that on this Contract.

5.3.3 Insurance companies affording each coverage, policy number of each coverage, policy dates of each
coverage, all coverages and limits described herein, and signature of authorized representative of
insurance company.

5.3.4 Producer of the certificate with correct address and phone number listed.

5.3.5 Additional insured status required herein.

5.3.6  Amount of any deductibles and/or retentions.

5.3.7 Cancellation and material change in coverage notification as required by the policy or any endorsement
thereto in accordance with Section 3.6 of this Exhibit D.

5.3.8 Designated Construction Project Aggregate Limits required herein.

5.3.9 Primary and non-contributing status required herein.

5.3.10 Waivers of subrogation required herein.

Required Endorsements. A copy of the Commercial General Liability additional insured, waiver of subrogation and
primary/noncontributing endorsement(s) or policy language shall also be provided.

Failure to Obtain. Failure of SIRA to demand such certificate or other evidence of full compliance with these
insurance requirements or failure of SIRA to identify a deficiency from evidence that is provided shall not be
construed as a waiver of Contractor’s obligation to maintain such insurance.

Facilities Mowing & Landscaping SJRA General Services Agreement
Contract No. 26-0007 2025



5.6

5.7

6.0

7.0

7.1

7.2

8.0

Copies. Upon request of SIRA, Contractor shall provide to SJRA a copy of all insurance policies required herein
within ten (10) days of any such request. Renewal policies, if necessary, shall be delivered to SIRA at least ten (10)
days prior to the expiration of the previous policy.

Commencement of Work. Commencement of Work without provision of the required certificate of insurance,
evidence of insurance and/or required endorsements, or without compliance with any other provision of this
Contract, shall not constitute a waiver by SIRA of any rights of SJRA. SJRA shall have the right, but not the
obligation, of prohibiting Contractor or any subcontractor from performing any Work until such certificate of
insurance, evidence of insurance and/or required endorsements are received and approved by SJRA.

Intentionally Omitted.
Insurance Requirements of Contractor’s Subcontractors and for Contractor’s Property and Equipment.

Insurance similar to that required of Contractor shall be provided by all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors (or
provided by Contractor on behalf of subcontractors or sub-subcontractors) to cover operations performed under
any subcontract agreement. Limits of subcontractors’ coverage shall be per Contractor’s standard requirements.
Contractor shall be held responsible for any modification in these insurance requirements as they apply to
subcontractors and sub-subcontractors. Contractor shall maintain certificates of insurance from all subcontractors
and sub-subcontractors containing provisions similar to those listed herein (modified to recognize that the
certificate is from a subcontractor or sub-subcontractor) enumerating, among other things, the waivers of
subrogation, additional insured status, and primary liability as required herein, and make them available to SJRA
upon request. Subcontractor’s Commercial General Liability insurance policies shall name the SIRA as an
additional insured.

Contractor is fully responsible for loss and damage to its property on the site, including tools and equipment, and
shall take necessary precautions to prevent vandalism, theft, burglary, pilferage and unexplained disappearance
of property. Any insurance covering Contractor’s or its subcontractor’s property shall be Contractor’s and its
subcontractor’s sole and complete means or recovery for any such loss. To the extent any loss is not covered by
said insurance or subject to any deductible or co-insurance, Contractor shall not be reimbursed for same. Should
Contractor or its subcontractors choose to self-insure this risk, it is expressly agreed that Contractor hereby waives,
and shall cause its subcontractors to waive, any claim for damage or loss to said property in favor of SJRA.

Release and Waiver.

Contractor hereby releases, and shall cause its subcontractors and sub-subcontractors to release, SIRA from any
and all claims or causes of action whatsoever which Contractor and/or its subcontractors or sub-subcontractors
might otherwise now or hereafter possess resulting in or from or in any way connected with any loss covered by
insurance, whether required herein or not, or which should have been covered by insurance required herein,
including the deductible and/or uninsured portion thereof, maintained and/or required to be maintained by
Contractor and/or its subcontractors and sub-subcontractors pursuant to this Contract. Contractor shall be
responsible for any Builder’s Risk deductible applicable to the Work. Contractor waives all damages and rights of
recovery against the SJRA and SJRA’s separate contractors for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss to
the extent covered by any Builder’s Risk property insurance applicable to the Contractor’s work under the
Contract, except such rights as Contractor may have to proceeds of such insurance as Contractor’s interest may
appear.

Facilities Mowing & Landscaping SJRA General Services Agreement
Contract No. 26-0007 2025



CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE FORM CIQ

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session. OFFICE USE ONLY

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor who
has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and the
vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

Date Received

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later
than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be
filed. See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An
offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

1] Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

EARTHWORKS LANDSCAPE AND MAINTENANCE LLC

2]

Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an updated
completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date on which
you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3] Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

NONE

Name of Officer

4] Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the
officer, as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A). Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer.
Complete subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described. Attach additional pages to this Form
CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,
other than investment income, from the vendor?

I:l Yes QNO

B. Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the direction
of the local government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the
local governmental entity?

I:l Yes IZ No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a corporation or
other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an
ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

I:l Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts
as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7

Y Y 12/16/25

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Revised 11/30/2015



SJRA=—

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Item No. Agenda Item Date

6.4 Consider authorizing the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Work | 02/26/2026
Order No. 1 with Diaz Engineering, LLC, for engineering design of Structure 2 and
South Canal Bypass Levee Improvements for the Highlands Division.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Board Communication

Firm Name: Diaz Engineering, LLC
Project: Structure 2 and South Canal Bypass Levee Improvements
Type of Agreement: Professional Services Agreement

(Contract No. 24-0039-A)

Project Description/Justification:

Improvements to Structure 2 and the South Canal Bypass were identified to enhance infrastructure, improve access
and maintenance abilities, and continue reliable conveyance of raw water to customers. Structure 2 is a critical piece
of infrastructure that serves as the primary control structure for the transfer of water from the Main Canal into the
Reservoir. The culverts are currently undersized and the slide gates on this structure do not adequately seal, making
it difficult to control flow to the Reservoir. The South Canal Bypass, particularly the first 150 feet past Structure 3, is
severely eroded and has limited access for maintenance along the levees.

Work Order Scope:

Work Order No. 1 was approved on January 23, 2025, and included preliminary and final design for improvements
to Structure 2 and the entire length of the South Canal Bypass. However, following assessment of the infrastructure,
and due to current funding limitations, final design will only proceed on replacement of Structure 2 and the first 150
feet of the canal bypass past Structure 3. Amendment No. 1 removes the final design task for the remaining length
of the South Canal Bypass. Also, the date of completion has been extended by 223 days. It is anticipated that the
remaining work on the rest of the canal bypass will occur within the next 5 years.

Key Deliverable(s): Due Date(s):
60% Design Submittal Package February 27, 2026
90% Design Submittal Package April 3, 2026
Final Design Submittal Package May 11, 2026
Type of Comp. WO1/AM1/Amt.: Lump Sum/$(48,140.00)
Original Fee for Work Order No. 1: $483,500.00 (Board Approved January 23, 2025)
Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 1: $(48.140.00) (Recommended Action)
Total Amount of Work Order No. 1: $435,360.00
Construction Cost: $1,005,597.00 (Est.)
Anticipated Completion Date: August 11, 2026
FUNDING SOURCE: R&R Fund
ATTACHMENTS: Map, Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 1, Level of Effort, Schedule
RECOMMENDED ACTION

Authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 1 in the amount of $(48,140.00)
with Diaz Engineering, LLC, for engineering design of Structure 2 and South Canal Bypass Levee Improvements for
the Highlands Division.




xude'dwy 99A97 ssedAg |eue) S pue z ainpnis\dw] 99437 ssedAg [eue) S pue g a1npnas\sjuswanoldw] 39437 ssedAg [puED) S pue g 24njonaS\JIOMIpUIYDS \SPURIPOOM\SISINbaY\ Y :UO[RRd0T JusWNd0q

WY £1:8 §202/£/T :83eQ Juswndoq

“_.QQH_ wD [—

Y

SjuswaAoldw| 89A87

0001 00S 0
z ssedAg |jeue) yinog pue g ainonns
m m m 2UED VS —— umojAegq
9 suwn pafoid 771
m anpnas @ M3IAJoUUBYD
pusba
m B %m (%9}
mv.r
m E uojsnoH
m aye7]
=
HaAIND
mwmnam
LA II SIS SIS IS SIS SIS IS, 777 08 UL §
2 775777777777 L
z uoydis 7 g %
N
2 &
7 ﬁ hsgeieqied
.
7
7 g
ssedAg g
pﬂ Jeue) ynos
JONEEER] 7
spuelybigj 7 L L L 77777, IS
L d bl 7555555777777 777, \NN\.&
@ 4<4jeue)
AIOAI9SOY yinos 0}
spuejybiH 03 € 24n3onans

Z 24njonans




San Jacinto River Authority
Structure 2 and South Canal Bypass Levee Improvements
Work Order No. 1 Amendment No. 1

This Amendment revises Work Order 1 to amend Structure 2 and South Canal Bypass Levee
Improvements to reduce the final design scope of the south canal bypass levee improvements portion of
the project.

This Work Order Amendment is issued subject to and is governed by that certain Professional Services
Agreement, Contract No. 24-0039-A, between SJRA and CONSULTANT (Diaz Engineering, LLC)
effective January 23, 2025.

Agreement Date:  January 23, 2025

Work Order Date: January 23, 2025

Amendment No. 1 Date: February 26, 2026

CONSULTANT: Diaz Engineering, LL.C
Type of Compensation: Lump Sum

Compensation: $(48,140.00) Completion Date: August 11, 2026

Description: This work order was for the Consultant to provide project management, preliminary
engineering, final design, subconsultant services and procurement assistance for improvements to
Structure 2 and the South Canal Bypass Levees. Due to funding constraints, the design of the bypass
canal levees will be reduced to just 150 feet east of Structure 3 which has significant erosion. The
reduction in scope will reduce the overall fee by $48,140.00 to a new total fee of $435,360.00.

Agreed to by:
SJRA

By:

Name: Aubrey A. Spear, P.E.

Title:  General Manager

and
Diaz Engineering, LLC

By:

Name: Imelda Diaz, P.E.

Title:  President

San Jacinto River Authority Page 1 of 7
Highlands Division Contract No. 24-0039-A WO1 AM1

January 2026



SCOPE OF WORK (Modified Scope in Bold Italics)*
*Only Tasks with Modifications Shown

General

The Scope of Work is for the Consultant to prepare construction documents for the replacement of Structure
2 and levee improvements along the bypass channel from Structure 3 to approximately 150 feet
downstream to Station 348+10 (the Project), owned and maintained by the San Jacinto River Authority
(SJRA). The replacement for Structure 2 will include new pipes, intake and discharge structures with
integrated stop log slots, and the installation of actuated control gates to enhance flow regulation and
operational efficiency. Additionally, the Consultant will re-evaluate the alternatives recommended in the
2017 Preliminary Engineering Report, focusing on the feasibility of implementing Alternative 1 & 5.
Alternative 1 involves reconstructing a shared levee between the Harris County Flood Control District
(HCFCD) and the Bypass Canal and along Segment A as shown in Exhibit “A”. The evaluation will also
reassess Alternative 5, which includes shifting the levees/embankments further north to address SJRA’s
maintenance and operational concerns while maintaining levee functionality and minimizing impacts on
the adjacent HCFCD drainage channel along Segment A. The scope will include an evaluation of the South
Canal Bypass levees from Structure 3 to Siphon 24 to identify low spots requiring raising to meet
conveyance demands while ensuring adequate freeboard. Construction plans will also provide details for
addressing extensive erosion in specific areas along the bypass channel from Structure 3 headwalls to
approximately 150 feet downstream to Station 348+10. Additionally, recommendations for construction
phasing and care and control of water during construction will be provided.

Task 1103 — Structure 2 Final Engineering Design
HDS21.1103.0080

1. The Consultant shall perform Final Design for the replacement of Structure 2. Construction Drawings
will be combined with those of Bypass Channel levee improvements. Final Design shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

1.1 Prepare and submit 60%, 90% and final construction plans, specifications, and contract
documents, conforming to the SIRA Design Standards & Criteria Manual, Project Management
Plan, and other manuals as provided by the SIRA. Address all review comments from prior design
submittals and return prior review comments when making the next required design submittals. It
is anticipated that the competitively sealed proposal delivery methodology will be utilized to
procure construction contractor services. Accordingly, Consultant to provide competitive seal
proposal (CSP)-compatible proposal form. All other front-end documents will be, compiled by
SJRA. This Scope of Work is based on no modifications being made to the front-end bidding
documents by the Consultant, with the exception of the CSP compatible proposal form. Prepare
and submit electronic (.pdf) files of the drawings and specifications for the 60%, 90%, and final
Milestone Submittal drawings for STRA Project Team review and approval via the project specific
Procore® site. After each milestone submittal, the SJRA will consolidate one (1) set of submittal
review comments and provide to the Consultant within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of
the design submittal. The Consultant shall produce a matrix for each comment, noting the
comment, reviewers name, and drawing or specification page/section. The Consultant shall
respond to and complete comment matrix by providing responses/answers to each comment and
documenting that each comment was addressed. Review comments received as part of the one (1)
compilation shall be incorporated into the next milestone deliverable and considered “frozen”.
Construction documents including plans, details, and specifications shall, at a minimum, include
the following:

a. General sheets, including cover page, index and general notes

San Jacinto River Authority Page 2 of 7
Highlands Division Contract No. 24-0039-A WO1 AM1
January 2026



1.

Project, access, and laydown layout sheets
Structure 2 Plan & Profiles

Structure 2 Cross Sections

Volume quantities

Typical detail sheets

Demolition sheets for existing Structure 2
Structural improvement sheets

SCADA Details

1.2. The plans and specifications must conform to the SIRA CAD Standards. Construction drawings
will be prepared using AutoCAD 2018 (or newer) software. The plans, specifications, and contract
documents must include, but is not limited to the following design considerations. Structure 2
replacement, care of water scenarios, levee rehabilitation, TCE construction if needed, Site access
and phasing for construction

1.3.Prepare and submit all necessary plan review applications, fees, and reports required for all
applicable authorities, such as but not limited to, local, state and federal authorities, public and
private pipeline companies, and utilities, but excluding environmental permitting.

1.4. Prepare and provide an Engineer’s opinion of probable construction cost (EOPCC) and
construction contract duration at the 60%, 90%, and final submittal milestones.

Deliverables.:

a) 60% Submittal Package
b) 90% Submittal Package
¢) Final Submittal Package
d) 60%, 90%, Final EOPCC

Due Dates:

February 27,2026

April 3, 2026

May 11, 2026

With Submittal Packages

Task 1107 — Bypass Channel Levee Improvements Final Engineering Design
HL324.1107.0080

1. The Consultant shall perform Final Design for the South Canal Levee Improvements between Structure
3 to approximately 150 feet downstream to Station 348+10. Construction Drawings will be combined with
those of Structure 2 replacement. Final Design shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

1.1 Prepare and submit 60%, 90% Prepare and provide 60%, 90% and final plans, specifications,
front-end documents, and contract documents, conforming to the SJRA Design Standards &
Criteria Manual, Project Management Plan, and other manuals as provided by the SJRA.
Address all review comments from prior design submittals and return prior review comments
when making the next required design submittals. It is anticipated that the competitively sealed
proposal delivery methodology will be utilized to procure construction contractor services.

San Jacinto River Authority

Highlands Division

January 2026

Page 3 of 7
Contract No. 24-0039-A WO1 AM1



Accordingly, Consultant to provide competitive sealed proposal (CSP)-compatible proposal
form. . All other front-end documents will be provided and amended to the project manual by
the SJRA. This Scope of Work is based on no modifications being made to the front-end
bidding documents by the Consultant, with the exception of the CSP compatible proposal form.
Prepare and submit electronic (.pdf) files of the drawings and specifications for the 60%, 90%,
and final Milestone Submittal drawings for SJRA Project Team review and approval via the
project specific Procore® site. After each milestone submittal, the SJRA will consolidate one
(1) set of submittal review comments and provide to the Consultant within fourteen (14)
calendar days of receipt of the design submittal. The Consultant shall produce a matrix for each
comment, noting the comment, reviewers name, and drawing or specification page/section.
The Consultant shall attend a comment review workshop with SJRA to review these comments.
The Consultant shall respond to and complete comment matrix by providing responses/answers
to each comment and documenting that each comment was addressed. Review comments
received as part of the one (1) compilation shall be incorporated into the next milestone
deliverable and considered “frozen”. Construction documents including plans, details, and
specifications shall, at a minimum, include the following:

a. General sheets, including cover page, index and general notes
b. Project, access, and laydown layout sheets

c. Plan & Profiles

d. Cross Sections

e. Volume quantities

f. Typical details sheets

g. The plans and specifications must conform to the SJRA CAD Standards. Construction
drawings will be prepared using AutoCAD 2018 (or newer) software. The plans,
specifications, front-end documents, and contract documents must include, but is not
limited to the following design considerations: Structure 2 replacement, care of water
scenarios, levee rehabilitation, Verify the need of TCE for construction, Site access and
phasing for construction existing utility verification, maintenance access dimensions and
clearances.

h. Prepare and submit all necessary plan review applications, fees, and reports required for
all applicable authorities, such as but not limited to, local, state and federal authorities,
public and private pipeline companies, and utilities, but excluding environmental.

i. Prepare and provide an Engineer’s opinion of probable construction cost (EOPCC) and
construction contract duration at the 60%, 90%, and final submittal milestones.

Deliverables: Due Dates:

a) 60% Submittal Package February 27, 2026

b) 90% Submittal Package April 3, 2026

¢) Final Submittal Package May 11, 2026
San Jacinto River Authority Page 4 of 7
Highlands Division Contract No. 24-0039-A WO1 AM1

January 2026



d) 60%, 90%, Final EOPCC With Submittal Packages
Subconsultant Services

Task 1109 — Subconsultant Services- Structure 2
HDS21.1109.0021

1. Topographic Survey - Consultant shall provide a topographic survey to capture topographic features,
SJRA provided easement and property boundaries, as well as adjacent property information at Structure 2
within Highlands Reservoir. Survey items should include, but are not necessarily limited to, existing
structure, existing road culverts diameter and flowlines, water surface elevation, and existing elevations of
reservoir and adjacent drainage channels. Survey data shall be sufficient to adequately perform preliminary
and final design of the channel improvements.

1.1 Survey shall be processed and provided to SJRA using AutoCAD Civil 3D (version 2021
or later) native files(s) in .dwg format. Survey drawing should include topographic
contours with true elevations assigned along with an existing ground surface built using
survey data in Civil3D. Survey drawing layers shall be per SJRA BMP standards. Surveyor
will be tasked with locating surface utilities and performing 811- one call to locate all
utilities within E. Houston St. ROW and along the canal levees within the project scope.
Submit one electronic copy (pdf) via Procore® of the draft topographic survey to SJRA
Project Team for review and comment. Submit one electronic copy (pdf) via Procore®
site of the final package to the SJRA.

a) Provide all CAD (AutoCAD) files in accordance with the requirements of the SJRA
Design Standards and Criterial Manual. Provide all CAD data from the project in the
format of AutoCAD Civil 3D (AutoCAD 2012 or more recent) .dwg files with the
projection specified in accordance with the requirements of the SJRA Design Standards
and Criteria Manual. Provide all CAD and other electronic files as necessary to
facilitate implementation of SJRA’s GIS system.

Provide all GIS data from the project in the format of either shapefiles (.shp) or
geodatabase (.gdb). Projection to be NAD83 State Plane Texas South Central FIPS
4204 (US Feet). Reference the GIS Spatial Data Standards document (hard copy
provided or located on the SJRA Specification site in Procore®) for further details.

Deliverables: Due Dates:

a) Draft Topographic Survey March 7, 2025

b) Final Topographic Survey Three weeks after receipt of SJRA review comments
¢) Native files (GIS and CAD) With Deliverables

2. Hydraulic Modeling
2.1 Consultant shall coordinate and assist SJRA in utilizing Highlands Canal System InfoWorks
ICM to verify the hydraulic modeling results prepared as part of Bypass Channel preliminary
engineering. Consultant shall calibrate the model and develop an existing baseline for design.
The consultant shall attend up to four meetings with SJRA to review flow scenarios, model
results, and care of water plans. Consultant shall also summarize model updates, alternatives,
and recommendations in the Technical Memorandum. Model shall be used to perform the

following:
San Jacinto River Authority Page 5 of 7
Highlands Division Contract No. 24-0039-A WO1 AM1

January 2026



a. Evaluate proposed size, hydraulic capacity and design of Structure 2 to meet demand and
redundancy.

b. In conjunction with bypass levee simulate four design flow scenarios

Evaluate construction care of water and bypass options for up to two scenarios.

d. In conjunction with Bypass channel design verify canal flow capacity and levee freeboard
requirements during construction, normal operation, and maintenance, and for future

°©

demands.
Deliverables: Due Dates:
a) Final Calibrated InfoWorks model June 30, 2025
b) Technical Memorandum support January 16, 2026
¢) InfoWorks design conditions model November 11, 2025

3. Geotechnical Investigation

3.1 Consultant shall obtain field and lab data and incorporate findings from previous borings to
prepare a geotechnical report documenting findings and recommendations for the replacement
of structure 2. Geotechnical data shall be sufficient to adequately perform the replacement of
Structure 2 final design as well as a settlement analysis for intake and discharge structures. A
total of 2 borings will be taken within the replacement of Structure 2 area (B-1 & B-2).
Consultant shall Provide recommendation for new structure including foundation design,
lateral earth pressure, and subgrade preparation if settlement exceeds the recommendations
by geotechnical engineer. Consultant shall also provide groundwater control
recommendations for proposed improvements. Report will be prepared utilizing SJRA
standards.

a) Submit via Procore® all geotechnical boring plans, reports, recommendations, and any other
data to SJRA in electronic (.pdf) format per attached scope of work.

Deliverables: Due Dates:
a) Draft geotechnical report 12 weeks following NTP
b) Final geotechnical report 2 weeks after receipt of SIJRA review comments

4. Environmental Services

4.1 Consultant will participate in project kick off meeting and initiate discussion and coordination
with the USACE to discuss Highlands Reservoir and proposed Structure 2 replacement. On
an as needed basis and after approval from SJRA the Consultant will provide services related
to the Wetland and OHWM delineation of the project area. The work will be performed by
a qualified biologist to apply USACE methods and procedures to identify and delineate
wetlands and ordinary highwater mark . Consultant will prepare a report supporting any
Nationwide permitting requirements for features that are deemed under the jurisdiction of
USACE. Consultant will evaluate impacts of proposed structures on regulated areas, estimate
fill material and recommend permit types if required. As needed and approved by the owner,
Environmental sub-consultant will also prepare NPW Verification request, as ESA PhA as
required by USACE. Permitting is not included as part of this scope. Consultant shall
coordinate with TCEQ for impacts as result of the recommended design.

Deliverables.: Due Dates:

a) Wetland Delineation Report Included with Technical Memorandum

b) Field observation sheets, site photos, Included with Technical Memorandum
San Jacinto River Authority Page 6 of 7
Highlands Division Contract No. 24-0039-A WO1 AM1

January 2026



¢) NPW Verification Request, ESA PHA
Memorandum

5. Structure 2 Structural Design
5.1 Consultant shall perform the design of Structure 2 in conjunction with the preparation of the
60%, 90% and 100% design submittal. The Consultant will prepare all necessary detail sheets,
cross section, and plan and profile sheets to adequately construct the new structure
configuration recommended in the Technical Memo. Design drawings conform to the SJRA
Design Standards & Criteria Manual. Consultant will address all review comments from prior
design submittals and return prior review comments when making the next required design
submittals via a comment matrix by providing responses/answers to each item in the matrix
directed to the structure 2 design. Consultant shall attend design and h&h workshops
associated with hydraulic modeling and care of water for the design and construction of
structure 2.

Deliverables:

a) 60% Submittal Package
b) 90% Submittal Package
¢) Final Submittal Package

Task

1101 -
Design
1102 — Bypass
Improvements
1103 - Bypass
Improvements
1104 - Bypass
Improvements
1105 - Bypass
Improvements
1106 — Bypass
Improvements
1107 — Bypass
Improvements
1108 — Bypass
Improvements
1109 - S2
Consultants
11010 — Bypass
Improvements
Consultants

Structure 2

Levee

Levee

Levee

Levee

Levee

Levee

Levee

Sub

Levee
Sub

San Jacinto River Authority

Highlands Division
January 2026

Included as- needed with Technical

Due Dates:

February 27, 2026

April 3, 2026
May 11, 2026

Scope of Work Summary Table

Compensation
Type
Lump Sum
Lump Sum
Lump Sum
Lump Sum
Lump Sum
Lump Sum
Lump Sum
Lump Sum
Cost Plus Multiplier
Cost Plus Multiplier

Total
Compensation:

Original Fee
$17,053.00
$31,371.00
$36,748.00
$3,695.00
$16,318.00
$34,811.00
$49,052.00
$5,632.00
$109,902.00

$178,918.00

$483,500.00

Amended
Amount
$17,053.00
$31,371.00
$36,748.00
$3,695.00
$16,318.00
$34,811.00
$38,862.00
$5,632.00

$109,902.00

$140,968.00

$435,360.00

Amendment
No. 1 Delta

5(10,190.00)

$(37,950.00)

$(48,140.00)

Page 7 of 7

Contract No. 24-0039-A WO1 AM1



9T0z/LLIe

uoOd | IV Zeld 307 LOM\SIUBWNd0Q pieog\zela\pz uoydis pue ¢ 41 usamiaq sjuawanosdw| 89Aa7 9S HZETH QH\SPUBIYBIHGO\(Y) SrZUMINMAIOI08IQ PAINOAS JOSM\SSIN0SAY PAIOUISaN\ | OSells\\

zioL
[osg's s . os8's  §| et g 0z 9 z g (539945 1) 158U UE[d S|USWISAOIAW] 80A5T P
€10'e $] - 8 o $ €10t $] 4 9 Z S I € (s399ys z) sieus siiejep [ealdAL Bl
LL6') s| - $ 5 $ e $ 1 € z I 12 | s1eays Aening siydesbodo q
016t $ 01s°I $ 6 € 4 l [4 I Sealy umopAeT 3 ue|d sSa3dy
= ] e ~ = = (s198ys 9) sejou jessusb =
.Qm e sl - $ - $ m_wm € ) m ) 24 €l S b (4 pue xapui ‘abed 49100 Buipnjoul ‘S|e8ys [E1aUs5)
| - $ - $ Buimesqg uopon. o (re)z
Virs
ay) Aq papinoid Se S|ienuepy Jeujo pue ‘dnd ‘lenuep
Lor's $ = $ ™ $ Lov's $ 9 €l 14 8 eLBL) B SPIEPUE]S UBISeQ VIS aU) 0} Buiiiojuod t
‘S)UBLINJOP JOBHUOD PUB ‘pud-juoy) ‘suoeoyioads
‘sue|d jeuy pue ‘%06 ‘%09 apinoid pue asedald
S $ ubjseq Jeuly 01 a
sjuawanoidw) ssedAg aane] ubisaq jeuly
ZLi$ 0zL$ 822% 822% orL$ 1€28 v2$
§:74 STE sZTe see -14 sT¢€ sTe
yoy3 yoy3 yoy3z 0g¥es 00268 00028 000.8 00EVS 00°128 00'sL8 |e1oads
Hoy3 |ejor ans [ejol o9juels abneg s3Iy HieH dioD 1D asuadx3 [e10.1 SS|IN se94 bumiwied 10qe jejoL SINOH |ejo L R L o e o i oo uonduosaq ysel 10 91588 jse] aseyd
Jojesedp pen MMW_%“”MM Jeeuibug oynespA | sesuibu3 ubiseq .S_HNHHZ JeBeuey Josloid us :m_“”_mﬂ.mmﬂ
1ejor sjuejnsuodqng sesuedxg Joqe syse|
sayjey pjog ul umoys sabuey? OLLL PUV L0L} YSVL - 3dOOS A30NAIA - 301
0.62zz__ s | 81681 $Z0L0v  § | vLLOL S €219 § Gvviz  § ¥818E S| - s - - $ [esoev___§ $ [2258  § [S60L § |- ¢ |8s0ct § 8¥89  § 0009 $ 158§ [uopaieor
$ | 200°LE $  ovl'e $ | €0L'SS $  0S6'vT $  8SZ'st $ 86¢C 9L 6S - £S (34 9T SE Anuenp | SINOH [ejoL
- $ - $ - $ - $
20.'0p $ | cos'op $ 200'LE - $ SJIAIRS [BJUSWIUOIIAUT
viL'0L (3 KA $ orL'6 - $ uoReuipood Aumn
€22'19 $|eLzi9 $ £024'6S - $ uonebisaau| |3)uyoel099
Svy'sT $ | svv'ie $ 056'v2 E $ Buliepon H2H
¥82'8€ ¢ | veL'se $ 852'6E - $ Kening
) Sjuauienoid]
B $ $ 80A97 jouuey) ssedAg -saojAles Jue)nsuoogng ObL | 4
“SOUOIS3|IW [EJIUQNS [BUl PUB %06
096'% $] - $ e $ 096y $ 92 8 4 9 ‘%09 SU} & S}S0D UORINIISUOO 8]qeqoid o Uojuido 9
Aseunuieid sgesuibug ue apiroid pue asedeld
- s| - $ - $ - $ s s
PJEPUE]S) "SWLIO} PIEPUB)S 193[0.d V'S Juswajduwy
5 “18)397 [epIWSuel |
D301 ‘seyjun pue ‘seiuedwod suijadid ajeand pue
Lp0'L $ - $ - $ 1v0'L $ 9 ¥ 72 21jqnd ‘speoJjjes ‘juswpedap Aemybiy ‘s: b
|eiape) pue ‘Slels ‘|edo| j|e J0j UONEBZLIOYIN. 10}
suodas pue suonedijdde ywiad ywqns pue aiedald
629'¢ $ - $ - $ 6.9'€ $ 61 S 8 € € uoneoyeds pue [enueyy 1sloid €
€6€'L $ €6€'L $ 0oL S € 3 3 183Yg j04u0) diyel | !
2SL'L $ - $ - $ ZSLL $ 8 S 3 3 13 183US dddMS Yy
Sy’ $ ¥Sy'Z $ Sl 14 S 4 4 Z Sejgel |4And ]
W'y $ 19y $ o€ 01 0ok S € (4 (s198ys 8) suopoag ssoi) sena |eued 3
£€69'6 $ €69'6 $ ¥9 St [ 9 oL € (s1eays |) 1eeus ue|d sjuswienosdu) aene P
6€8't $] - $ - $ 6E8't $ €€ 8l 9 S ! € (s198us 6) sieeys sjielap dIdAL )
126} $] - $ - $ 126 $ i € 2 I v 1 sjeays Asaing oiydeibodo q
0is't $ 015l $ 6 € 4 3 4 I sealy umopAe @ uejd ssaddy
. . (s198ys g) sejou feieusl 5
ELEE $ : $ : $ ELEE $ i €l S 4 4 pue xepu} ‘abed Jenod Bulpnjoul ‘sjeays |esausg
- $ - $ Buimesg uogon. o) (re)z
Wirs
8y} Aq papinoid se s{enuepy Jayio pue ‘diid ‘[enuepy
Lov'8 $ » $ = $ Lov'e $ 14 €l 14 8 euajLY @ spJepuels ubiseq IS aul o) Buiwiouco [}
‘S)USWINJOP JOBAUOD PUB ‘pus-juoy) ‘suonesyioads
‘sueid [eulj pue ‘%06 ‘%09 apioid pue asedeld
= $ ubjseq jeutd L | a
sjuawanosdw) ssedAg aaae] ubisaq jeuly
4153 0zL$ 822% 822% oris 1€2$ [543
sze -74] sTe sze sze sze sTe
uou3 @ uoy3 6 yoyz 05'¥ES 00°288 0008 00028 00°EVS 00°12$ 00528 4 |e1oadg
wopzreoL | oo etor o3juelS abneg saliny HleH 00 M0 | 4euadxg fesoL saIIN seag bumued | o e eloy | SMOH IBIOL e e aEany s L SR uonduosaq yse) 10 aiseg  ¥SEL oseud|
sopeiodg peo peliuoel | seoubug omespdyy | seoutu3 ubseq sw_““_ﬂnn_m( JoBeuen 100l0id IS :m_“oamﬂ.w@._
1ejol1 Sjuejnsuodqng sasuadxgy Joqe Syse]|
O0LLL PUY LOLL MSVL - 3OS TVNIORIO - 301 _
ovL'sy $ (uonjonpay) ejjaq Juswpuswy umopyealg 309 pajie}eg
0€8'6.1 $ } "ON jusawipuauily | "ON Japi0 YJOM
. sjusmaA01dur] 39437
sosort 8 _»Es_oﬁ&m_.a ISuoD qns - 0111
. uois43/| paonpay - UV SULIWSU [eul]
98'8¢ $ sjuomaAoIdur] 99497 [oumey) ssedAq - 0] ]
0.6'222 $
. sjusmaA01dur] 3043
BlERLL $ Jouey) ssedAg - SITENNSUOD qS - 0111
. UOISISA [eUISHQ - uSiso Sunsomsug rem|
250’6y $ sjusmaAoxdur] 33497 [auuey) ssedAg - 011
sjuawanosdui] aana] ssedAg
Asewnwung 934 393loid Virs

*au| “Jape) sauop



920Z/L b UORIOd | NV Zeld 30T LOM\SIUWNO0Q pIeog\Zela\pZ uoydis Pue € S Usamiaq sjuawanoidw| 99497 OS™ HZETH GH\SPUEIYBIH™GONN) SrZUpNM 1a p S 498N\ j\Lossedls\\ zZPz

ocg'eLl  $]sgsort S| - $ | z08's $ [viL'ol $ | €22°19 $ [ s6E‘lz  $ | v8L'8E s - $| - $! - ¢ | z98‘se $ |nEamaaa - S |9%0S $ | 069 $ |- S [0Z60L §$ 6009 $ [vSL'Y S | vv08 $ [Hoy3 |ejoL |
T B 2 $ 2008 $ | ovL'e $ | €0L'sS $ | osv'6lL $ | 8sz'se $ [P e 922 & [12 6€ - (12 £ 8l €€ Ayuenp | sinoH [ejoL
g S| - - $ 5 $
2088 2088 $ 5
vLL0L $|vizo .
€12°19 €2'19 .
g6E'LT 5 | s6€1z 5
¥8.'8€ $ | v8L'se $ S $
R N g $
£00'€ sl - $ . $ £00'E $ 9l
: s| - $ - $ - $
1901 s| - $ = $ 1901 $ 9
ZLL'E 5 $ S $ zLl'e 9l
ve8 [Z4] ] S
918 = $ 5 $ o8 S
182°1 16L°) 4 6
9L’y 9L’y 9z
ZL1S$ 0z1$ 822$ 8228 ovL$ 1€2$ S
‘uoy3 Hoy3 yoy3 jerdads
woyzEioL | o) o9juBlS abneo sajny BIEH diod MO |ocuodxg jeroy| SO se94 Bumiwied soqeq mioy, | SMOH 0L uonduosaq yseL 10 aiseg | YSEL 9sEUd

weRIeoL ] S R A e e S S e e R SIU eI NSUODqNG T

ovL'sy $ (uononpay) eyjeq Juswpuswy|

0€8'6LL $

896'0V1

»
Ns.wmw
[0z672z_$

816'8.L $

250'61

*ou] ‘sopeQ seuop



sjuswanosdw| 39Aa7 ssedAg |eue) Yinos pue g ainynais

& SUOIS|IN [eUIdIXT ] Aewwns jenuepy | 1 Kewwns aapeu] 1 Klewwns
ssaiboud |enue SYSe| |eulo)X] e dn||0Yy AlEWWNS [ENUBIA] BUOIS3|IN SAIdeU| * 9UO0lSa|IN 92/11/2 pPam :91eQ

ssaiboud C Ajuo-ysiui4 Ajuo-uoneing JSB) DAIPIRU|  rrrrrrteeniiiiiin yds

1+ autjpeaQ 5| Auo-yers  p— AsepjenueN | Kewwns afold  ——— Asel
137 LT/6/S uns 9z/8/81es  shep s/z uonnIIsuo) 3foid ¥ 4 44
134 9z/L/8 14 9z/ve/L 14 shep gt Sue|d UO13INIISUO) 104 Panss| = 3%
] Lz/6/s uns 9z/ve/L1d  shep o6t uoiIdNIISU0) :90TT YseL = a4
r ov 9z/€e/L nyL 9z/€e/L Yyl Aept pieog Aq panoiddy 10e13U0) UOIIINIISUO) ¥ R4
8¢ 9z/0T/L 14 9z/tz/9uns  shep ot S3UBWNI0Q P3WI0JU0) &= or
8¢ 9z/0T/L M4 92/12/9 uns shep 02 sjuawndo(Q pieog asedasd/sjesodoid mainay ta 6€
LE 92/02/9 1es 9z/tt/9nyL  shepot s|esodo.d @1en|eA3/anaday - [F] ec
S€  9z/ot/9pam  9z/zr/senL  shepog Buisnuanpy - [H
9z/02/9 1es gz/er/sanL  shep op UBWASIIIAAPY [esodoud = 9
442€  9¢/T1/S UON 9z/t/ses  shep o1 syuawndoq Sulppig 3313|dwo) = 13
9z/ot/L 14 9z/z/sies  shepos 2JUR)SISSY SIUAWAINI0I - SOTT YSel = ve
0f  97/sT/Suow 9z/11/v3eS  shepgy Sunyuuad Auno) siusey ¥ 133
I1€  97/TT/SUON  9z/6T/vuns  shep gz agexded [eniwqgns (euty @ [E
0€ 97/81/v 1eS 9z/v/vies  shep gt M3INSY VHIS ¥ 4 L€
6C 9z/€/v 14 9z/Lt/eanL  shep gt [e31WqnS %06 €= o€
shep z+s48¢  9¢/9T/€ UO 9z/t/euoN  shep ST M3IN3Y VYIS = 62
45 9z/LT/T 4 sz/Lt/99nL  shep 9sg [e3Wqns % 09 = 8z
[ 1 9z/sz/s uon sz/L1/99ny  shep gpe usisaq |euld - YOTT yselL = 12
ST ST/1e/y uon ST/IT/vud M ST Hoday HgH |euty @ [F] 9
shep L+s4z  Sz/OT/vnyL  Sz/oT/tuoN  sAep o9 Hoday HgH Jela - [H] sz
sz/tz/vuoN  sz/ot/TtuoN  sAep 5oL 8uilapoW d1ynespAH - €0TT yselL = 4
¢ st/ot/vnyL ST/t/panL  SIMEY'T Hoday [euawuoliaug [euly @ [ e
shep L+S4z  ST/TE/EUON  SZ/OT/TUON  SHMYTL Moday [ejuawuoliAug e - [F =
sz/ot/ynyL  sz/ot/tuoN  shep o9 |ejuawuo4iaug - €0TT Ysel <= 1z
6T S¢/ot/v nuL SZ/T/venL  SIMEP'T Hoday |ea1uyaaioan |euty @ [= oz
shep £+S4T  ST/TE/EUON  SZ/OT/TUON  SYMYT'L Hoday [ed1uyasi0an yeiq @ [F el
sz/ot/ynylL  sz/ot/tuow  shAep 09 Sunzaul3u3 |ea1uyIN0an - E0TT dsel = 8L
91 st/9/enuL  Sz/oz/tnyl  shep st Asnung aiydesdodoy (eutd @ [EH u
shep £+547  ST/6T/TPeM  ST/OT/TUON  shep OT Aanins owydeidodoy yeiq @ [H o
sz/o9/enyl  sz/or/tuow  sAep gz Aanuns djydesdodo] - €0TT ysel = Sl
sz/tz/vuon  Sz/oT/zuoN  sAep 5oL $321A495 Hoddns - €0TT yseL = vl
T Sz/0g/9 uon sg/Lt/9any  shep pT [EIHWANS WNPUBIOWB|A [BI1UYI3] [euld @ [ o
M. shep z+S4TT  SZ/9T/9UOW  SZ/9T/9 UON Aept doys>JoM dAIRUIRYY PIPUBWIWOIBY ¥ 4 zL
01 ST/€T/9 144 Sz/v/9pam  shep Ot M3INDY VYIS = L
6 Ssz/g/9 ant s¢/v/tenl  shep oz1 WwnNpueJOWSI|A |ea1uyda| ¥ oL
shep G+542 Sz/€/t uon sz/€/T uon éhept doysy4o/ $40x21y /uoieniea3 alnespAy ¥ 6
[ I SzZ/0€/9 uow sz/e/tuon  ¢shep gpT usisaq Aseuwijaid - ZOTT dseL = 8
T St/te/e uonN sz/e/tuon  shep zeg saInuIA Sunaain Alyauoy - [H .
z  st/tz/euonw Sz/e/tuoN  shep zeg sHoday ssaidoid Alyauo @ [F o9
14 st/L/Tid Sz/€/t uon shep g 3|npayos 13foud = S
z st/LfTid St/€/t uonw shep g ue|d JD/VO - [ v
[ ] ¢ st/tz/euonw sz/e/cuon  shAep zee juawaseuel\ 193f0id :TOTT Hsel = €
M\Nﬁ Sz/e/T uon sz/€/t uon shep o paadoid 03 3130N/uonezuoyiny @ [H
) Lz/6/suns  sz/g/zuow iskep 928 sjuawanoidw) 33A37 ssedAg pue ZS VIS < P

Ae ad Je E] ue BE] AO| ot da bn N un Ae] ad Je E] ue pE] AO da bn n unf [Ae aa Je E) ue,
_hNo_\N,_ _N bM " NMOM_ _.b% ‘ _wNo—M “._mv ° _QNOM m_bmu _. _wwo_\m‘ _N ._uM ﬁw l b% ¢ _mmow_ wu._UuﬁHuu ° _mNoM m_:Mu _. _mmo_\m,_ _N :<O " mMOM L ._uﬁ_,u s10ssad9pald ysiui4 yels uoneing awep yse], wnwh\.,__. e al




SJRA=—

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY Board Communication
Item No. Agenda Item Date
6.5 Consider authorizing the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Work | 02/26/2026

Order No. 2 with Halff Associates, Inc., for final design of Elevated Storage Tank
No. 6 for the Woodlands Division.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Firm Name: Halff Associates, Inc.
Project: Elevated Storage Tank No. 6
Type of Agreement: Professional Services Agreement

(Contract No. 23-0030-A WO 2)

Project Description/Justification:

Final Design is ongoing for a proposed elevated storage tank (EST) at a site owned by SJRA in northwest Woodlands,
at the intersection of Egypt Lane and Research Forest. The proposed site will include a 1 MG composite elevated
storage tank, a site for a future water well, a building for controls and a generator, associated on-site water and storm
lines, and underground electrical. The elevated storage tank piping will connect to an existing SJRA 16-inch water
line. An amendment is needed to accommodate permanent benchmarking for the project and will provide coordinate
references for any future construction needed on the site of the EST. This amendment will not add to the project
schedule as the survey subconsultant responsible for the permanent benchmarking will work on it in parallel to the
continued final design of EST No. 6.

Amendment No. 1 Scope:

Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 2 adds the funds to the existing Task 1207 for SIRA Directed Services needed
for the subconsultant to complete the work necessary for permanent benchmarking and site control. An additional
$1,409.37 is needed to account for the need for permanent benchmarking to establish site control for the EST No. 6
site as part of Work Order No. 2. This work will include a permanent benchmark, 2 temporary benchmarks, and 2
control points.

Key Deliverable(s): Due Date(s):
90% Submittal April 16, 2026
100% Submittal July 16, 2026
Type of Compensation/Amount: Cost Plus Multiplier with Not-to-Exceed/$1,409.37
Original Fee for Work Order No. 2: $496,931.00 (Board Approved June 26, 2025)
Amendment No. 1: $1,409.37 (Recommended Action)
Total Amount: $498,340.37
Construction Cost: $9,884,000.00 (Est.)
Anticipated Completion Date: December 6, 2026

*See attached Exhibit 1 for additional information on prior work orders and amendments.

FUNDING SOURCE: R&R Fund

ATTACHMENTS: Exhibit 1, Map, Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 2, Level of Effort, Subconsultant
Proposal

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 2 in an amount not to exceed
$1,409.37 with Halff Associates, Inc., for final design of Elevated Storage Tank No. 6 for the Woodlands Division.




09°08L°S68$

SYHAUO MIAOM SNOIATHd JOA LINNONYV TVLOL

LE 60V TS

UoNeIOPISUO)) 10

‘USSP [euly SuLINp SpIEpUR)S

VIS uodn paseq [01u09 IS 10J SUBIRWoudq juoueurrdd
10J MO[[e 0} /(T ] Sk 0} Spunj Sppe JUSWPUIWEL SIY ],

[ "ON JURWIPpUR WY

00 1£6°967$

$T0T ‘9z dunf

"SPUB[POOA\ OU ], Ul 9 "ON ue] 93eI0}S PAIBAd[]
10J $901A13s 9seyd juswainoold pue uSIsap [euly I0J PIPIAOI]

C "ON 19pIQ IO\

€TOPY LOES

€20C ‘p1 19quaos(

"SPUB[POOAA OU ], Ul 9 'ON ue] d3eI0}S PAIeAd[q
I0J S9O1AISS UIsop Areurturford 10J s991A10s SULIDIUISUD
Areurwr[oid pue JUSWOAITE SIOIAIS [BUOISSIJ0Id I0J PIPIAOI]

[ "ON J_pP.IQ Y10\ PUB V-0€00-£T VSd

junowry

dje( eAoaddy Jageury [BIIUID)

IIPIQ) Y10 A\ /AUIWIIIFY SIIIAIIS [BUOISSIJOI]

9 "ON YUue], 33e.10)S PIeAJ[Y 10}
SIIIAIIS SULIIIUISUY [BUOISSIJOI] 10J SIIMIpUddXY [e)0 ],

I LIGIHXH




Wd ST:€ §202/2/9 :31eq JUswnd0q

|

Proposed Elevated
Storage Tank

Ny g 49,

xide’BunaapIeog.0421n6149 | S3\6uSR|NPIL0gI042INBI49 | ST\UYEN"N\SPURIPOOM\SISSNDIY\ 1Y :LONEIOT JUSWN0Q

(o)
o
Z
X
&
|_
)
(®)]
©
—
O
-+
0p)
©
O
-
©
>
[
L
©
)
(70}
@)
o
o
| -
al




San Jacinto River Authority
Elevated Storage Tank No. 6 Final Design and Procurement Phase
Work Order No. 2 Amendment 1

This Amendment revises Work Order 2 to amend Scope of Work and add funds to Task 1207 to provide
permanent benchmarking survey services to the Final Design of Elevated Storage Tank No. 6.

This Work Order Amendment is issued subject to and is governed by that certain Professional Services
Agreement, Contract No. 23-0030-A, between SJRA and CONSULTANT effective December 14, 2023.

Agreement Date: December 14, 2023
Work Order Date: June 26, 2025
Amendment No. 1 Date: February 26, 2026

CONSULTANT: Halff Associates, Inc.

Type of Compensation: Lump Sum and Cost Plus Multiplier
e Tasks 1201, 1202, and 1203 — Lump Sum
e Tasks 1204, 1205, 1206, and 1207 — Cost Plus Multiplier

Amendment Compensation (Task 1207): $1,409.37 Completion Date: December 6, 2026
Total Work Order Compensation: $498,340.37

Description: Professional Engineering Services for final design and procurement assistance for Elevated
Storage Tank No. 6.

Agreed to by:
SJRA

By:

Name: Aubrey Spear, P.E.

Title: General Manager

and
Halff Associates, Inc.

By:

Name: Andrew Ickert, P.E.

Title:  Senior Vice President

San Jacinto River Authority Page 1 of 3
Woodlands Division Contract No. 23-0030-A WO 2 Amendment 1
February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Elevated Storage Tank No. 6 Final Design and Procurement Phase
Work Order No. 2 Amendment 1

SCOPE OF WORK (Modified Scope in Bold Italics)*
*Only Tasks with Modifications Shown

General

The following scope of work is for the Engineering Consultant (Consultant) to perform project
management, final design, and procurement phase services for the construction of the proposed Elevated
Storage Tank (EST) No. 6 and associated site and offsite (access driveway, water line connection,
communications fiber connection, grading, and drainage culvert) improvements. The EST will be 1 MG of
storage and of the composite construction type. The EST will be constructed upon the SJRA’s existing 1.9-
acre property at the southeast corner of the intersection of Research Forest Drive and Egypt Lane in The
Woodlands. The design will be in accordance with the approved Preliminary Engineering Report for
Elevated Storage Tank No. 6 associated with Work Order No. 1 for Preliminary Design. Other project
features include an access driveway and parking area, detention area, connectivity to the existing 16-inch
water main, electrical/ SCADA/instrumentation/controls, emergency generator, fencing, and security
improvements. The design will be provided to accommodate (but not build) future improvements such as
a control building, larger generator and water well.

The project also includes assistance with procurement of permitting, and assistance with coordination with
agencies as requested by the SJRA.

Task 1207 — SJRA Directed Services
WDPR0144.1002.2N002.3995

2. This task will include establishing site control and control map by setting a minimum of
(2) control points and (2) temporary benchmarks on the existing site for proposed SJRA
Elevated Storage Tank No.6. This task will also include 1 permanent benchmark to
SJRA standards based upon previous benchmark establishment, an updated map
showing new benchmarked location, updated overall map and new data sheet for

proposed benchmark.
San Jacinto River Authority Page 2 of 3
Woodlands Division Contract No. 23-0030-A WO 2 Amendment 1

February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Elevated Storage Tank No. 6 Final Design and Procurement Phase
Work Order No. 2 Amendment 1

Elevated Storage Tank No. 6 Final Design and Procurement Phase Cost Breakdown

Amendment
Description Lump Sum | Cost Plus | Total NTE* | No. 1 Delta
Task 1201 — Project Management $27,158.41 $27,158.41
Task 1202 — Final Design $340,331.22 $340,331.22
Task 1203 — Final Geotechnical Investigation | $39,495.55 $39,495.55
Task 1204 — Permitting $21,198.48 | $21,198.48
Task 1205 — SUE and Survey $44,869.53 | $44,869.53
Task 1206 — Procurement Assistance $13,877.47 | $13,877.47
Task 1207 — SJIRA Directed Services $11,409.37 | $11,409.37 | $1,409.37
Total Compensation: $406,985.18 | $91,354.85 | $498,340.37 | $1,409.37
*Not to Exceed Amount
San Jacinto River Authority Page 3 of 3

Woodlands Division
February 2026

Contract No. 23-0030-A WO 2 Amendment 1




9202/21IT zoL
€5°91€LL $| - $ 08l 0zh 09 09 06 0€ (yoes ¢) suoneo|iddy juwlad ‘g
5671886 $| - $ 08 0lz uojjeulpiood pue sbunea|y Aousby -}
NdD - Bumiwuad - 0z} Ysel
GG'G67'6€$ 08'¥9¥'€ $| 00'8¥9°PE 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 £€0¢} Xsel [ejogng
08'CLl8E $| 08'v9v'e $| 00'8¥9'vE ‘S8|IAY gng
6L 28¢E'L $| - $ 9 ‘JeH
- $ - $ wng dwnT - uoebysaAu| |B21UYD3)}09) |eul] - £0Z) YSel
2T LEe 0veES 00°€€6°9 $| 00°0€€69 8¢l [4°] 091 70l 14 S0 9l¢ el 14 c0c| Xsel [ejoqng
00'S2v‘L $| 00629 $| 00°0S.'9 ‘unjiey gng
v€°619°8S $ - $ 0€ oL [45 14 0l S8 0S ¥e HleH
- $ - $ %001
05'9ZL‘2e $] 051102 $| 00SLL'0C ‘unjiey gng
GG'€€9°6. $ - $ (04 143 514 [43 0l Scl S. 6¢€ HleH
- $ - $ %06
0S°6£6'CY $| 0S'¥66°C $| 00°6¥6'6E ‘unjiey gng
09'¥58°GLL $ - $ 89 [44 08 514 145 S61l S8 S§ HleH
- $ - $ %09
5 $ - $ DD/VO ‘sdjgeIaAleQ ‘000 ‘MaIAey 0ads ‘aav0 ‘sinoAeT ‘suoneinoje - ubiseqg '0gq|
002LLC $| 00'cse $| 00°02S‘c Unjey gng
€1°096°6 $ - $ 9 cl 9 9 0¥ e
) - $ ‘'sbun@aw Jnoy-z ‘(|enuin }sal a8y -uosiad ul LUNjiey ‘unsuy] ‘uoy
$ ‘80Ue) Se)NUIL pUe Jels WIS Yim sdoysxiom maiaal [epiugns ubisep %001 ‘%06 ‘%09 "el
wng dwnA - ubisaq |eutd -Z0Z} Ysel
L8s1 Les 0G'G6¢C $| 00656 0 4 0 0 14 0 4 8G 4 L0Z| XSel [ejoigng
- $
- $ - $ INd pJepuels - uojeoyiiou ainjipuadxs %08 ‘|
- $ - $ INd PJEPUE)S - SWIO} PIEPUE)S YIS jusws|dw] ‘|
- $ - $ Nd PJepuels - [0JjU09 JUBWNO0pP 810D04d 'Y
- $| - $ INd PJepuels - Juswebeuew sjue)nsuod-qng ‘b
05°092°¢C $| 05°50C $| 00650 ‘unjiey gng
9lL'pLL8 $ 144 JeH
) $ - $ sbupesw Inoy-g'| abesany ‘(paswnsse g1) saynuiw pue (jenuin) sbunssw ssaiboid Ajyjuo 4
- $ - $ Nd plepuels - (pawnsse g1 ) spodal ssasboud Ajyjuopy -8
v¥'608°S $ - $ 9l aoueusjulew pue uoneledald sjnpayos 109foid 'p
06°0£9°C $| - $ ol 108l0id Jo} Juswebeuew pue sjuswubISse |auuosiad 0
- $ - $ Nd PJepuelS - SUOIJIPUOD pue SW.8} 0} @oueljdwod wuiuo) *q
- $ - $ INd piepuels - diNd Hwgns pue dojeas( e
- $ - $ uoljedIuUNWWOod pue ‘juswabeuew ‘uoneulpiood josfold 'z
00°066 $| 0006 $| 00°006 Unjey gng
Ly'esL's $ 0¢c 0y 0¢c 08 4 e
) ‘Bunesw unoy
$ Lz “(lenuia 3sa 8y "uostad ul unjey] ‘uisKy| ‘uoy ‘eoueT) sejnuiw pue Buiesw uoneniul 108foid ‘|
wng dwn - Juswabeuepy 30afoid - L0ZL YSel
18202% 89'/vZ$ 29°091% 6v'122¢$ €1°282$ 16°LG1$ 9r'0€2$ 60°€9€$ ¥6°'18€$ (endnin Gz'¢) 8ey bullig
2v'29% 12°9/% Zr6v$ G1'89% 18'98% . °9%$ 16°0,$ cLlLLLS [APA% djey JogeT mey
¢ ¢ ¢ @ @2 g 0@ 2 ¢ v ?
fedd (<2 c - 3, - - " < g - =
m o 0 ° m o = lw) m [} = o) o °
= =9 ) = 5 gm 25 o< m < ® =
3 2 < s © o5 o Q@ o = o] = Q B
@ L0 & o Q < 0 s = < m = m - B
= 2 < = : ol 23 o M @ 2 oo = 5
g 5§ g o o S 38 o @ “o 3 ) o s f
o s 2 8 5 > S 0 = s < Q S (o) jSe] pue saseyd joaloid
=3 a = Q Q 3 > [ 33 > 3 o =
= 2 o 3 3 20 2 23 S 8 K 2
R 2 9 8 20 = 27 . B = 2
S1V1OL SUYNOH-NVIN A3LVINILS3T
CO0NZ'200L'¥¥1L0ddAM
ubBisaq |eulq
O NEL ERRATEN




9coz/elie

cioz

ubBisaq |eulq

o oL SR AR

18°60V°'L1S 1607 LL $| sLzie0l $ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 TVLOL S32IAISS pdjdallg VArs
99°0£6'98Y$ 1/6'€€0°'GL $| 0.°6€€°0S) $ 8¢cl 14 8.1 8Ll 99 (1474 YAL4 144 8 TVLOL S92IAISG diseq
160V LLS 1€607°LL $|SLzie0l $ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 /02| %sel [ejojgns
LE°60¥°LL $| L£60V°'LL $| sL'zie0l $ Buiiewyousg Jusuewlad - pejoslliq Se S8dIAI8S [BUORIPPY L
INdD - S9DIAIDS Pa3d3alIQ VArsS - 2021 dsel
LyL18'CL$ 00'vL¥$ 0007l 'v$ 0 0 0 4 G 0l cl 6 [4 90¢ | %Sel [ejojqns
- $| - $
- $| - $
90°/91°S $| - ¢ oL ¥ Z SJUSWIND0(] UONONJISUOYD 10} PANSS|/PallIojuo)) apIAcld pue aiedald g
- $ - $ JUBWIBSINAAPY VIS @)
00°2Zel'L $| 0020l $| 00°020°L $ Unjey gng
26'v82°L $ - $ 14 3 HleH
- $| - $ epuappy aiedald Pl
00°0LEC $[ 000LC $] 00°00LC $ -Unjey gng
G2'659°C $ - $ [4 [4 14 [4 HleH
- $| - $ suonsenp 0} sesuodsay 0|
00°2Zel'L $| 0020l $| 00020°L $ Unjey gng
y29l2'e $ - $ 14 0¢ HleH
- $| - $ aouaJauo) [esodoid-aigql
- $| - ¢ 189S JUBWaIN00.d Jo} panss| el
NdD - @2UB)SISSY JudWaind0id - 90Z| YSel
€6°698'7v$ 19'926'c$ 0,°992'6€$ 0 0 0 0 0 8 [4 0 0 G0c| Xsel [ejojqns
12°GS.'9 $|LL'¥L9 $] 0L LPL9 $ Yoo pueT gng
80°8€8 $ - $ oY o'l HleH
- $| - $ (z 01 dn) syuswese3 Ayn "¢
09°€02°LL $| LG'8L0°} $| 60°68L°0L $ yoe] pueT ans - 3NS Jo} kening g
95'y€2'se $| S0v62'C $| LG'0¥6'CC $ SAO0Y 9ns s,ydoa | puen
80°8€8 $ - $ (0% 0l HleH
- 3| - g ans
INdD - Asnung pue 3NS - G021 Ysel
87'861°LeS - $ - $ 0 0 8l cl 7l 9 6 44 0 v0cC | %Se]l [ejoigns
18202% 89'/¥2$ 29'091$ 6v'L2c$ €128¢$ 16°1G1$ 91'0€2$ 60°€9€$ ¥6°18€$ (1a11dyinN Gz'¢) e1ey bulliig
2v'29% 12°9/$ v 6v$ G1'89% 18'98% . 9v$ 16°0.$ cLLLLS 2S5 LLLS 9]y J0geT MEey
@ ¢ @ @ w2 g 0@ o @ ~ n
x g g : 2 5 = S 5 9 m 0 &
8 = S g £ : o 33 9 3 m s 2 ]
(7 7} (7] o Q < o = =, < = m= m= -~ o
c = £ c - f o o 3 o m (7 wm m = =
g c 5 s m m o .m o o3 = =3 & S [
3 59 ] 5 5 30 o e o Q S o syse] pue saseyd j29foid
= - =N Q Q 3> W (7] 33 > =} [ =2
8 3 o 5 5 2O A ® S e ? S
= & 8 g 29 : 27 ; : : g
S1V.1OL SHNOH-NVIN d31VINILS3T
COONZ'200Lvri0ddAMm




1315 W. SAM HOUSTON PARKWAY NORTH, Suite 100
L) Houston, Texas 77043

0:713-861-7068 e F: 713-861-4131
www.landtech-inc.com

Jacob Lupher, RPLS
E: jlupher@landtech-inc.com

12 January 2026

Mr. Ronald King, PE

Halff and Associates

3701 Kirby Drive, Suite 1290
Houston, TX 77098

RE: Proposal to Provide Professional Surveying Services — San Jacinto River Authority
Future Site for Proposed Elevated Storage Tank No. 6, W.O. No. 2 — The Woodlands, Texas

Dear Mr. King:

It is my pleasure to submit this proposal to provide professional surveying services for the above-
mentioned project. Based on the information requested in email received on 12 January 2026,
Landtech has revised our previous proposal for Site Control to include setting a Permanent
Benchmark on or near the site for future use. Details are as follows for the revised Proposal:

1. Recover and verify previous project control — Landtech will recover and verify the existing
previous project control. We will establish new control on site tied into the previous SJRA
Control Monumentation. Said site control will include Two Horizontal Control Points as well as
Two Temporary Benchmarks. A survey Control Map of this control will be provided to indicate
location and coordinate values and elevation of the horizontal and vertical control.

2. Establish (one) permanent Benchmark at or very near the SJRA Proposed EST No. 6 — Landtech
will establish One New Permanent Benchmark to specifications previously provided to SIRA by
Landtech, Inc. from a previous work authorization to set control monumentation. This will
include building a secure Permanent Benchmark topped with a SJRA 3-inch Brass SJRA
Monument that matches what was used previously. Digital leveling and a least squares
adjustment will be used to establish the elevation of the Benchmark from existing SIRA
monumentation. Landtech will incorporate the use of Static GPS observations with multiple
observations with separation time as well as ties to SIRA BM no. 30, 30A and BM 5 (with
separation time) to establish the Horizontal coordinates for the permanent Benchmark. We will
also include this Monument in the above Survey Control Map deliverable.

-In addition, we will establish a new SJIRA data sheet for this permanent Benchmark, Update the
closest map provided previously to show the location and the new BM Number (number to be
provided by SJRA). The brass disk atop this monument will be stamped with the new number.

SURVEYING Page 1 0f 2

Houston, TX e TBPELS 10019100
El Paso, TX ¢ TBPELS 10019101

Page 1 of 2



Deliverables:
PDF file of the Survey Control map for the Site Specific Control in item no. 1 above. PDF
deliverable of the new SJRA Monument/Benchmark Data Sheet and a revised map indicating the

new monument location, and a revised overall map indicating the new monument location per
No. 2 above.

The Fee for the above-described services will be based on charges for Time & Materials as follows:
TOTAL FEE ALL TASKS $10,372.15

Please see the fee spreadsheet attached as Exhibit for a breakdown by labor category.
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. We look forward to working with you.
Sincerely,

Landtech, Inc.

Jacob “Jake” Lupher, R.P.L.S.
Survey Project Manager

Attachments: Exhibit 1 — Fee Estimate Spreadsheet

Work Order No. 2 SJIRA Storage Tank CONTROL Proposal 2026-01-12.xIsx

Page 2 of 2

LANDTECH



SJRA=—

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY Board Communication
Item No. Agenda Item Date
7.1 Consider authorizing the General Manager to execute a Professional Services | 02/26/2026

Agreement and Work Order No. 1 with BGE, Inc., for preliminary engineering of
Siphon 21 Improvements for the Highlands Division.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Firm Name: BGE, Inc.
Project: Siphon 21 Improvements
Type of Agreement: Professional Services Agreement

(Contract No. 25-0047)

Project Description/Justification:

Siphon 21 is located on SJRA’s Main Canal near Barrett Station and diverts raw water below a Harris County Flood
Control District ditch. The siphon was originally constructed in 1943 with headwalls, wingwalls, and dual 48” siphon
pipes. In 1979, a 60” bypass siphon with additional headwalls and wingwalls was installed to increase redundancy of
the structure. Structural concrete concerns have been identified, which increases risk and the likelihood of failure of
Siphon 21. The Siphon 21 Improvements Project will include the removal or abandonment of the existing siphon
pipes and removal of the existing concrete. This existing structure will be replaced with new dual siphons, headwalls,
wingwalls, staff gauges, stop log slots, and manual control gates. Additional items that will be considered during
preliminary design are the evaluation of an additional site access route and potential solutions to help mitigate trash
accumulation at the structure. Replacement of Siphon 21 is critical due to the location of the Highlands canal system,
age, and current structural condition. The improvements will increase structural reliability and upgrade site access
for future maintenance and operations.

Work Order Scope:

Work Order 1 for the Siphon 21 Improvements project will consist of preliminary engineering design of the siphon
structure and appurtenances, survey, geotechnical borings, an environmental evaluation, and any needed subsurface
utility engineering and utility coordination for the proposed project.

Key Deliverable(s): Due Date(s):

Draft Preliminary Engineering Report September 28, 2026

Final Preliminary Engineering Report October 29, 2026
Type of Compensation/Amount: Lump Sum/$275,930.25

Cost Plus Multiplier/$15,159.75

Total Amount: $291,090.00
Construction Cost: $3,421,000.00 (Est.)
Anticipated Completion Date: October 29, 2026

FUNDING SOURCE: R&R Fund

ATTACHMENTS: Map, Professional Services Agreement and Work Order No. 1, Scope, Level of Effort,
Schedule

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Authorize the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement and Work Order No. 1 in an amount
not to exceed $291,090.00 with BGE, Inc., for preliminary engineering of Siphon 21 Improvements for the Highlands
Division.




WY 9%/ 9202/6/¢ :93eq uawndoq xuderdwytzuoydis\dwitzuoydis\syuswanoidwi 1z uoydis\yaiely—r\spuejybiH\sisanbay\:y :uonRedo Juswndoq

Joan 6 Areadn 88

RidgelC ||
(Cottont

! Yo ArcadelSt

an elinelD
Eyangelinelos DR

Prosperit-y 5

R
|

i e S0 SaintiMartiniSY

i BF
RicEe B

& Saint Charles br
% \WhitelDr
% [Reuben)

’),%

o 9®
S

[SainticecelialDy

Pleasan AW,

8
g =

%

BRidgelDy

E @
o c
- 1 8 E e
3 §$ (]>J
o 43

Pl :
a
£
: . pennicy —
3 3 N
£ c
s o)
© Locmst &8 =
i 5 o2
0))

&




SJRA==

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Procurement Department
1577 Dam Site Road
Conroe, Texas 77304

STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Contract # 25-0047

Siphon 21 Improvements
Project

FLOOD MANAGEMENT DIVISION GRP DIVISION HIGHLANDS DIVISION LAKE CONROE DIVISION WOODLANDS DIVISION
P.O. Box 329 P.O. Box 329 P.O. Box 861 P.O. Box 329 2436 Sawdust Road
Conroe, Texas 77305 Conroe, Texas 77305 Highlands, Texas 77562 Conroe, Texas 77305 The Woodlands, Texas 77380
(T) 936.588.3111 (T) 936.588.1662 (T) 281.843.3300 (T) 936.588.1111 (T) 281.367.9511

(F) 936.588.1114 (F) 936.588.7182 (F) 281.426.2877 (F) 936.588.1114 (F) 281.362.4385



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
CONTRACT NO. 25-0047

This Professional Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into effective as of the 26th
day of February, 2026, by and between the San Jacinto River Authority, a conservation and reclamation
district of the State of Texas, (“SIRA”) with general and administration offices located at 1577 Dam Site
Road, Conroe, Texas 77304,

and

BGE, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Texas, (“CONSULTANT”) with principal
offices located at 10777 Westheimer Road, Suite 400, Houston, Texas 77042.

SJRA and CONSULTANT are sometimes referred to herein collectively as the “Parties” or individually as a
“Party.”

The Parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 — SCOPE OF SERVICES

1.1 CONSULTANT agrees to perform professional services (the “Services”) related to Siphon 21
Improvements as are requested from time to time by SJRA, which Services shall be set forth more
particularly in separate work orders, the form of which is attached hereto as Attachment B, and which
may be issued from time to time by SJRA and accepted by CONSULTANT (each, a “Work Order”). Each
Work Order shall constitute a separate and independent agreement between CONSULTANT and SJRA, and
collectively each Work Order together with this Agreement and its Attachments may be referred to herein
as the “Contract Documents”.

1.2 Work Orders shall contain the schedule, price, and payment terms applicable to the Services
within the scope of such orders. IN ACCEPTANCE WITH PARAGRAPH 4.1, TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE TO
THIS AGREEMENT AND ALL WORK ORDERS. Work Orders shall become effective when an acknowledged
copy thereof is signed by a duly authorized officer of CONSULTANT, returned to SIRA and countersigned
by SJRA. The specific terms of a Work Order may not be modified unless such modifications are agreed
to in writing by SJRA and CONSULTANT.

1.3 All Work Orders incorporate and shall be governed by and subject to the terms, conditions, and
other provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that a Work Order may specifically state a term,
condition, or other provision of this Agreement that is being modified thereby. Unless so stated, the terms,
conditions, or other provisions contained in any Work Order or any proposal attached to or incorporated
into a Work Order that conflict with any terms, conditions, or other provisions of this Agreement shall
have no effect and shall be deemed stricken and severed from such Work Orders, and the balance of the
terms, conditions, and other provisions contained in such Work Orders shall remain in full force and effect.
Modifications of the terms, conditions, or other provisions of this Agreement with respect to a particular
Work Order shall not modify the terms, conditions or other provisions of this Agreement with respect to
any other Work Order.

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 1 2025



14 Nothing herein shall obligate SJRA to issue, or CONSULTANT to accept, any Work Orders. Further,
the Parties agree that nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the Parties, or either of them, from entering
into agreements other than this Agreement for professional services or other work.

ARTICLE 2 — TERM OF AGREEMENT

2.1 This Agreement shall be effective from the date first set forth above and shall continue without
action by either Party through completion of the Services for all approved Work Order(s) unless
terminated earlier in writing in accordance with Article 12.

2.2 Notwithstanding the foregoing Paragraph 2.1, this Agreement shall apply to and remain in effect
for Work Orders issued and accepted during the term of this Agreement until such time as Consultant’s
obligations in connection with the Services under such Work Orders have been completed and fulfilled;
provided however, that, pursuant to Article 12, either Party shall have the right to terminate any Work
Order for cause and SJIRA shall have the right to terminate any Work Order for convenience.

2.3 Without limiting the generality of the foregoing Paragraph 2.2, Consultant’s obligations under

Articles 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 18, 19 and 20 shall survive the expiration of termination of this Agreement or
any Work Order.

ARTICLE 3 — COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT

3.1 SJRA agrees to pay CONSULTANT, and CONSULTANT agrees to accept, as full and complete
compensation for Services properly performed by CONSULTANT in accordance with this Agreement and
the applicable Work Order, the rates and charges agreed upon for a specific Work Order. Paragraphs A.1
or A.2 of Attachment A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, shall be used to
negotiate the compensation payable for each Work Order issued hereunder.

3.2 On or before the tenth day of each calendar month, CONSULTANT shall submit an invoice to SIRA,
together with backup documentation required by SIRA and releases and waivers in forms acceptable to
SJRA, covering all Services performed under any Work Order by CONSULTANT and its subconsultants,
subcontractors and suppliers during the preceding calendar month. CONSULTANT shall separately itemize
on each invoice: (i) each Work Order for which payment is sought, (ii) the amount budgeted for each such
Work Order, (iii) the amount of payment requested pursuant to each such Work Order, (iv) the amount
previously paid pursuant to each such Work Order, (v) descriptions of Services performed during the prior
month pursuant to each such Work Order, and (vi) the total payment requested by such invoice. SJRA
shall pay the amount it agrees to be due within forty-five (45) days after receipt of such complete invoice
and backup documentation. SJRA shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of a disputed amount in an invoice
within twenty-one (21) days of receipt. Such notice shall include a detailed statement of the amount of
the invoice which is disputed.

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 2 2025



33 SJRA shall have the right but not the obligation to withhold or nullify all or part of any payment
requested in any invoice to such extent as may be necessary, but in no event greater than 110% of the
disputed amount, on account of:

(a) Services that are not in compliance with this Agreement or the applicable Work Order or
any failure of CONSULTANT to perform Services in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement or the applicable Work Order;

(b) third party suits, stop notices, claims or liens arising out of Services performed for which
CONSULTANT is responsible pursuant to this Agreement and asserted or filed against SJIRA or any
of its property or portion thereof or improvements thereon provided that CONSULTANT fails to
provide SJIRA with sufficient evidence that CONSULTANT’s insurance is adequate or shall cover the
claim(s);

(c) uninsured damage to any INDEMNITEE (hereinafter defined) which results from
CONSULTANT’s failure to obtain or maintain the insurance required by this Agreement or from
any action or inaction by CONSULTANT or any of its subcontractors, subconsultants, or suppliers
which excuses any insurer from liability for any loss or claim which would, but for such action or
inaction, be covered by insurance; or

(d) any failure of CONSULTANT to pay any subcontractor, subconsultant, or supplier of
CONSULTANT the correct, undisputed, and contractually obligated amount for acceptable
services received and for acceptable supplies received. CONSULTANT will not include in its billings
to SJRA any amount in a subcontractor or supplier invoice which it has not paid or does not intend
to pay within the terms and conditions of the applicable subcontract agreement or supplier
purchase order.

Any failure by SIRA to exercise its right to withhold all or any part of payment requested in any invoice as
provided in this Paragraph 3.3 shall not be and shall not be construed as (i) a waiver of SJIRA’s right to do
so in the future, or (ii) evidence that any of the circumstances identified in Subparagraphs 3.3(a) through
(d) above have not occurred. When the above reasons for withholding payment are remedied or no longer
exist, CONSULTANT shall resubmit an invoice for the withheld amounts. Payment will be made within
thirty (30) calendar days of receipt by SIRA of an approved invoice, subject to Paragraph 3.4 below.

3.4 CONSULTANT agrees to pay in full (less any applicable retainage) as soon as reasonably
practicable, but in no event later than thirty (30) days following payment from SJRA, all subcontractors,
subconsultants, and any other persons or entities supplying labor, supplies, materials, or equipment in
connection with Services that are owed payment by CONSULTANT out of such payment made to
CONSULTANT by SJRA. Further, provided that SIRA has paid CONSULTANT in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement and any particular Work Order, CONSULTANT SHALL DEFEND AND INDEMNIFY SJRA
FROM AND AGAINST ANY CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT ASSERTED OR FILED BY ANY SUCH PERSON OR ENTITY
AGAINST SJRA, ITS PROJECT OR PROPERTY OR CONSULTANT.

3.5 Non-Appropriation: All funds for payment by SJIRA under this Agreement are subject to
the availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by SIRA. In the event of non-
appropriation of funds by the Board of Directors of SJRA for the services provided under the
Agreement, SJRA will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability,

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 3 2025



on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-
current year for the services covered by this Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first
(the “Non-Appropriation Date”). If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance
of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Contractor on thirty (30) days prior
written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and SJIRA shall not be
obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-Appropriation Date.

ARTICLE 4 — STANDARD OF CARE; COORDINATION OF SERVICES; SAFETY; COST ESTIMATES; LEGAL
COMPLIANCE; THIRD PARTY REVIEW

4.1 CONSULTANT shall perform, supervise and direct the Services, and otherwise discharge its
obligations under this Agreement and any Work Order: (a) with the professional skill and care ordinarily
provided by competent engineers practicing under the same or similar circumstances and professional
license; and (b) as expeditiously as is prudent considering the ordinary professional skill and care of a
competent engineer (collectively, the CONSULTANT’s “Standard of Care”).

4.2 Consistent with its Standard of Care, CONSULTANT shall (a) perform its Services in accordance
with all applicable laws, codes, ordinances and regulations; (b) perform its Services in an efficient manner;
and (c) keep SJIRA apprised of the status of Services, coordinate its activities with SJRA, and accommodate
other activities of SIRA at sites that the Services impact. CONSULTANT shall designate an authorized
representative to be available for consultation, assistance, and coordination of activities.

4.3 As between SIRA and CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for its own
activities at sites including the safety of its employees, and that of its subconsultants, subcontractors and
suppliers. Construction contractors of SIRA shall have sole responsibility for providing materials, means,
and methods of construction, for controlling their individual work areas and safety of said areas for all
persons, and for taking all appropriate steps to ensure the quality of their work and the safety of their
employees and of the public in connection with their performance of work or services provided under
contracts with SJRA. Without assuming any control over, responsibility for or liability whatsoever with
respect to the construction contractor obligations of the foregoing sentence, CONSULTANT shall notify
SIRA if it observes violations of safety regulations or ordinances or quality of work deficiencies by SJIRA’s
construction contractors. CONSULTANT shall comply with the site safety program and rules established
by the construction contractors.

4.4 To the extent that CONSULTANT provides to SJIRA any estimate of costs associated with
construction, any such estimate shall be developed in accordance with CONSULTANT’s Standard of Care,
but it is recognized by the Parties that neither CONSULTANT nor SJRA has control over the cost of the
labor, materials, or equipment, over a construction contractor’s methods of determining bid prices, or
over competitive bidding, market, or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, CONSULTANT cannot and does
not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from SJRA’s budget for the project or
from any estimate of the cost of work or evaluation prepared or agreed to by CONSULTANT.

4.5 CONSULTANT hereby agrees that the following terms, conditions, verifications, certifications, and
representations apply to and are incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes, and CONSULTANT
shall deliver to SIRA signed and notarized verifications prior to commencement of any Services:

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 4 2025



(a) With respect to providing Services hereunder, CONSULTANT shall comply with any
applicable Equal Employment Opportunity and/or Affirmative Action ordinances, rules, or
regulations during the term of this Agreement.

(b) Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 176, CONSULTANT shall submit a
signed Texas Ethics Commission (“TEC”) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (“CIQ”) at the time
CONSULTANT submits this signed Agreement to SJRA. TEC Form CIQ and information related to
same may be obtained from TEC website by visiting https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/
forms/conflict/. If CONSULTANT certifies that there are no Conflicts of Interest, CONSULTANT
shall indicate so by writing name of CONSULTANT's firm and “No Conflicts” on the TEC Form CIQ.

(c) If CONSULTANT is a privately held entity, then pursuant to Texas Government Code
Section 2252.908 and the rules promulgated thereunder by the TEC, CONSULTANT shall submit a
completed and signed TEC Form 1295 with a certificate number assigned by the TEC to SJRA at
the time CONSULTANT submits this signed Agreement to SJRA. TEC Form 1295 and information
related to same may be obtained from TEC  website by  visiting
https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/. CONSULTANT agrees and acknowledges that
this Agreement shall be of no force and effect unless and until CONSULTANT has submitted said
form to SIRA, if and to the extent such form is required under Government Code § 2252.908 and
the rules promulgated thereunder by the TEC.

(d) As required by Chapter 2271, Texas Government Code, CONSULTANT hereby verifies that
CONSULTANT, including a wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company
or affiliate of the same, does not boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel through the term of this
Agreement. The term "boycott Israel” in this Paragraph has the meaning assigned to such term
in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government Code, as amended.

(e) Pursuant to Chapter 2252, Texas Government Code, CONSULTANT represents and
certifies that, at the time of execution of this Agreement, neither CONSULTANT, nor any wholly
owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same, is engaged
in business with Iran, Sudan, or any terrorist organization, and is a company listed by the Texas
Comptroller of Public Accounts under Sections 2270.0201 or 2252.153 of the Texas Government
Code.

() As required by Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code (as added by Senate Bill 13,
87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session), as amended, CONSULTANT hereby verifies that
CONSULTANT, including any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent
company or affiliate of the same, does not boycott energy companies, and will not boycott energy
companies during the term of this Agreement. The term “boycott energy companies” in this
Paragraph shall have the meaning assigned to the term "boycott energy company" in Section
809.001, Texas Government Code, as amended.

(g) (g) As required by Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code (as added by Senate
Bill 19, 87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session, "SB 19"), as amended, CONSULTANT hereby
verifies that CONSULTANT, including any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary,
parent company or affiliate of the same, (i) does not have a practice, policy, guidance or directive
that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association, and (ii) will not
discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association during the term of this

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 5 2025



Agreement. The term “discriminate against a firearm entity or trade association” in this
Paragraph shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2274.001(3), Texas
Government Code (as added by SB 19), as amended.

(h) Pursuant to Chapter 2274 of the Texas Government Code (as added by Senate Bill 2116,
87th Legislature, Regular Session), as amended, and to the extent this Agreement grants to
CONSULTANT direct or remote access to the control of critical infrastructure, excluding access
specifically allowed for product warranty and support, CONSULTANT verifies that neither
CONSULTANT, including any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent
company, or affiliate of the same, nor any of its sub-contractors are: (i) owned or controlled by
(a) individuals who are citizens of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated country; or (b)
a company or other entity, including a governmental entity, that is owned or controlled by citizens
of or is directly controlled by the government of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated
country; or (ii) headquartered in China, Iran, North Korea, Russia or a designated country. The
term “designated country” in this Paragraph means a country designated by the Governor as a
threat to critical infrastructure under Section 2274.0103, Texas Government Code. The term
“critical infrastructure” in this Paragraph shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section
2274.0101, Texas Government Code.

4.6 CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees that projects of SIRA may be subject to review and
approval by other third parties. Accordingly, as and when requested by SJRA, CONSULTANT shall submit
such information and cooperate with the other third parties to the extent necessary to undergo any such
review or obtain any such approval.

4.7 CONSULTANT does not represent Work Product (as defined herein) to be suitable for reuse on
any other project or for any other purpose(s). If SIRA reuses any Work Product without CONSULTANT's
specific written verification or adaptation, such reuse will be at the risk of SJRA, without liability to
CONSULTANT.

ARTICLE 5 — COST RECORDS

5.1 CONSULTANT shall maintain records and books in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and practices. For Services provided by CONSULTANT under cost reimbursable, time and
material or unit price Work Orders, during the period of this Agreement and for five (5) years thereafter,
CONSULTANT shall maintain records of direct costs for which SJRA is charged. SJRA shall at all reasonable
times have access to such records for the purpose of inspecting, auditing, verifying, or copying the same,
or making extracts therefrom. SJRA’s audit rights for fixed unit rate or time and materials Work Orders
shall extend to review of records for the purpose of substantiating man-hours worked, units employed,
and third party charges only. Except to the extent audit rights are granted to SJIRA by applicable law, SIRA
shall have no audit rights with respect to the portion of Work Orders or Services compensated on a lump
sum basis.

ARTICLE 6 — OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT AND TECHNOLOGY

6.1 All studies, plans, reports, drawings, specifications, cost estimates, software, computations, and
other information and documents prepared by CONSULTANT, its subconsultants, subcontractors, and/or
suppliers, in connection with Services or any project of SJIRA are and shall remain SJRA’s property upon
creation (collectively, “Work Product”); provided, however, that Work Product shall not include pre-
existing proprietary information of CONSULTANT, its subconsultants, subcontractors, and/or suppliers

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 6 2025



(“CONSULTANT Proprietary Information”). To this end, CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby assign,
grant, transfer, and convey to SIRA, its successors and assigns, CONSULTANT’s entire right, title, interest
and ownership in and to such Work Product, including, without limitation, the right to secure copyright
registration. CONSULTANT confirms that SIRA and its successors and assigns shall own CONSULTANT’s
right, title and interest in and to, including without limitation the right to use, reproduce, distribute
(whether by sale, rental, lease or lending, or by other transfer of ownership), to perform publicly, and to
display, all such Work Product, whether or not such Work Product constitutes a “work made for hire” as
defined in 17 U.S.C. Section 201(b). In addition, CONSULTANT hereby grants SJRA a fully paid-up, royalty
free, perpetual, assignable, non-exclusive license to use, copy, modify, create derivative works from and
distribute to third parties CONSULTANT Proprietary Information in connection with SJRA’s exercise of its
rights in the Work Product, operation, maintenance, repair, renovation, expansion, replacement, and
modification of projects of SJRA or otherwise in connection with property or projects in which SIRA has
an interest (whether by SJRA or a third party). CONSULTANT shall obtain other assignments,
confirmations, and licenses substantially similar to the provisions of this Paragraph from all of its
subconsultants, subcontractors, and suppliers. Work Product is to be used by CONSULTANT only with
respect to the project in connection with which such Work Product was created and is not to be used on
any other project. CONSULTANT and its subconsultants, subcontractors, and suppliers are granted a
limited, nonexclusive, non-transferable, revocable license during the term of their respective agreements
under which each is obligated to perform Services to use and reproduce applicable portions of the Work
Product appropriate to and for use in the execution of Services. Submission or distribution to comply with
official regulatory requirements for other purposes in connection with Services is not to be construed as
publication in derogation of SJRA’s copyright or other reserved rights. CONSULTANT agrees that all Work
Product will be maintained according to the provisions of the Public Information Act, Chapter 552, Texas
Government Code, and the Local Government Records Act, Chapters 201 through 205, Texas Local
Government Code, each as amended. CONSULTANT shall deliver all copies of the Work Product to SIRA
upon the earliest to occur of (i) SJIRA’s request, (ii) completion of Services in connection with which Work
Product was created, or (iii) termination of this Agreement. CONSULTANT is entitled to retain copies of
Work Product for its permanent project records.

6.2 CONSULTANT agrees that all information provided by SIRA in connection with Services shall be
considered and kept confidential (“Confidential Information”), and shall not be reproduced, transmitted,
used, or disclosed by CONSULTANT without the prior written consent of SJRA, except as may be necessary
for CONSULTANT to fulfill its obligations hereunder; provided, however, that such obligation to keep
confidential such Confidential Information shall not apply to any information, or portion thereof, that:

(a) was at the time of receipt by CONSULTANT otherwise known by CONSULTANT by proper
means;

(b) has been published or is otherwise within the public domain, or is generally known to the
public at the time of its disclosure to CONSULTANT;

(c) subsequently is developed independently by CONSULTANT, by a person having nothing
to do with the performance of this Agreement and who did not learn about any such information
as a result of CONSULTANT’s being a Party to this Agreement;

(d) becomes known or available to CONSULTANT from a source other than SIRA and without
breach of this Agreement by CONSULTANT or any other impropriety of CONSULTANT;

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 7 2025



(e) enters the public domain without breach of the Agreement by or other impropriety of
CONSULTANT;

() becomes available to CONSULTANT by inspection or analysis of products available in the
market;

(g) is disclosed with the prior written approval of SIRA;

(h) was exchanged between SIRA and CONSULTANT and ten (10) years have subsequently
elapsed since such exchange; or

(i) is disclosed to comply with the Texas Open Records Act or in response to a court order to
comply with the requirement of a government agency.

6.3 CONSULTANT shall not be liable for the inadvertent or accidental disclosure of Confidential
Information, if such disclosure occurs despite the exercise of at least the same degree of care as
CONSULTANT normally takes to preserve and safeguard its own proprietary or confidential information.

6.4 CONSULTANT will advise SIRA of any patents or proprietary rights and any royalties, licenses, or
other charges which CONSULTANT knows or should know in the exercise of its Standard of Care impacts
any design provided by CONSULTANT in connection with any Services, and obtain SJRA’s prior written
approval before proceeding with such Services. CONSULTANT shall not perform patent searches or
evaluation of claims, but will assist SJRA in this regard if requested, pursuant to a written change order in
accordance with Paragraph 12.1, below. There will be no charge for CONSULTANT’s existing patents.

ARTICLE 7 — INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP

7.1 In the performance of Services hereunder, CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with
the authority to control and direct the performance of the details of Services and its own means and
methods. CONSULTANT shall not be considered a partner, affiliate, agent, or employee of SIRA and shall
in no way have any authority to bind SJRA to any obligation.

ARTICLE 8 — WARRANTY PERIOD; GUARANTEES

8.1 If within a period of one (1) year following completion of Services under a Work Order, it is
discovered that such Services were not performed in accordance with CONSULTANT’s Standard of Care or
the Contract Documents, SIRA, in its sole discretion, may: (1) direct CONSULTANT to re-perform and
CONSULTANT shall re-perform such Services at its own expense, and as expediently or in the manner
required for SJRA’s needs; or (2) retain such other consultant or consultants as necessary to perform such
corrective services, and CONSULTANT agrees to pay SJRA’s costs associated with having such other
consultant or consultants perform such corrective services, and any other damages incurred by SJIRA as a
result of such default. The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Paragraph 8.1 are in addition to other
rights and remedies of SIRA available to it pursuant to this Agreement or applicable law.

8.2 CONSULTANT agrees to assign SJIRA the warranty or guarantee of any subconsultant,
subcontractor, supplier or manufacturer of items of services, supplies, machinery, equipment, materials,
or products provided by CONSULTANT hereunder and cooperate and assist SJRA in SJRA’s enforcement

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 8 2025



thereof. CONSULTANT's responsibility with respect thereto is limited to such assignment, cooperation,
and assistance.

ARTICLE 9 — INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, CONSULTANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS SJRA AND ITS BOARD, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES AND EMPLOYEES
(EACH AN “INDEMNITEE” AND COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”), FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS,
LOSSES, DAMAGES, DEMANDS, SUITS, CAUSES OF ACTION, SETTLEMENTS, LIABILITIES, COSTS, FINES,
JUDGMENTS AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, REASONABLE AND NECESSARY
COURT COSTS, EXPERTS’ FEES, ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW, EXPERTS’
FEES) (COLLECTIVELY, “LOSSES”), INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THOSE BROUGHT AGAINST OR
INCURRED OR SUFFERED BY ANY ONE OR MORE OF THE INDEMNITEES AND THOSE ARISING IN FAVOR
OF OR BROUGHT BY ANY THIRD PARTY, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY OR RESULTING FROM AN ACT OF
NEGLIGENCE, INTENTIONAL TORT, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT, OR FAILURE TO PAY A
SUBCONTRACTOR OR SUPPLIER, COMMITTED BY CONSULTANT, ITS AGENT, ITS CONSULTANT UNDER
CONTRACT, OR ANOTHER ENTITY OVER WHICH CONSULTANT EXERCISES CONTROL, UNDER OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY WORK ORDER, EVEN IF SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED IN
PART BY THE NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT, BREACH OR VIOLATION OF A STATUTE, ORDINANCE,
GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION, STANDARD OR RULE OR BREACH OF CONTRACT OF AN INDEMNITEE OR
ANY THIRD PARTY UNDER THE CONTROL OR SUPERVISION OF AN INDEMNITEE; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,
THAT CONSULTANT’S OBLIGATION TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS SHALL NOT EXTEND TO THE
PORTION (IF ANY) OF SUCH LOSSES THAT ARE CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT, BREACH OR
VIOLATION OF A STATUTE, ORDINANCE, GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION, STANDARD OR RULE OR
BREACH OF CONTRACT OF AN INDEMNITEE OR ANY THIRD PARTY UNDER THE CONTROL OR
SUPERVISION OF AN INDEMNITEE OTHER THAN CONSULTANT OR ITS AGENT OR EMPLOYEE OR
SUBCONTRACTORS OF ANY TIER.

9.2 TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, AND TO THE EXTENT A DEFENSE IS NOT PROVIDED
FOR THE INDEMNITEES UNDER AN INSURANCE POLICY AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 1(f) OF
ATTACHMENT C, ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE, OR THE
INDEMNITEES’ ATTORNEYS’ FEES ARE NOT OTHERWISE RECOVERED UNDER THE INDEMNITY PROVISION
SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 9.1 HEREOF, CONSULTANT SHALL, UPON FINAL ADJUDICATION OF THE
LOSSES AS DEFINED IN PARAGRAPH 9.1 HEREOF AND WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS FOLLOWING THE DATE
OF A WRITTEN DEMAND, REIMBURSE THE INDEMNITEES FOR ALL REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES
INCURRED TO DEFEND AGAINST THE LOSSES IN PROPORTION TO CONSULTANT'S LIABILITY TO ANY
THIRD PARTY FOR SUCH LOSSES.

ARTICLE 10 — LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

10.1  NEITHER PARTY HERETO SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY OR ITS AFFILIATES FOR ANY
LOSS OF PROFIT, LOSS OF REVENUE, LOSS OF USE OR ANY OTHER INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL OR
SPECIAL DAMAGES (EXCLUDING FINES AND PENALTIES LEVIED BY A REGULATORY AGENCY), EVEN IF
CAUSED BY THE SOLE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF A PARTY, WHETHER ACTIVE OR PASSIVE, AND
EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY THEREOF.

10.2 NOTHING HEREIN SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS CREATING ANY PERSONAL LIABILITY ON THE PART
OF ANY BOARD MEMBER, OFFICER, EMPLOYEE, OR AGENT OF SJRA.

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 9 2025



ARTICLE 11 — INSURANCE

11.1 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain insurance as provided in Attachment C, attached hereto
and incorporated herein.

ARTICLE 12 — CHANGES; TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE; TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

12.1  SJRA may, at any time and from time to time, make written changes to Work Orders in the form
of modifications, additions, or omissions. In the event that any such change, through no fault of
CONSULTANT, shall impact CONSULTANT’s compensation or schedule, then (a) such changes shall be
authorized by written change order issued by SJRA and accepted by CONSULTANT, and (b) an equitable
adjustment shall be made to the Work Order in writing duly executed by both Parties, to reflect the change
in compensation and schedule.

12.2  SJRA may for convenience terminate this Agreement, any Work Order issued under this
Agreement, or CONSULTANT's right to perform Services under this Agreement or any Work Order by at
any time giving seven (7) days written notice of such termination. In such event, SJRA shall have the right
but not the obligation to assume all obligations and commitments that CONSULTANT may have in good
faith undertaken or incurred in connection with the Services terminated, and SJIRA shall pay CONSULTANT,
as its sole and exclusive remedy, for Services properly performed to date of termination and for
reasonable costs of closing out such Services provided SIRA has pre-approved such costs. CONSULTANT
shall not be entitled to lost profit on unperformed Services or any consequential damages of any kind.
Upon termination, CONSULTANT shall invoice SIRA for all Services performed by CONSULTANT prior to
the date of termination which have not previously been compensated. Payment of undisputed amounts
in the final invoice shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days after receipt by SJRA of such invoice
and all Work Product.

12.3  This Agreement or any Work Order may be terminated by either Party in the event that the other
Party fails to perform in accordance with its requirements and such Party does not cure such failure within
ten (10) days after receipt of written notice describing such failure. In the event that SJRA terminates this
Agreement or any Work Order for cause, CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to any compensation until
final completion of the then ongoing Services and any such entitlement shall be subject to SJRA’s right to
offset and/or recoup all damages and costs associated with finally completing such Services. If for any
reason, CONSULTANT is declared in default and/or terminated by SIRA under any Work Order with SJRA,
SJRA shall have the right, subject to Paragraph 3.3, to offset and apply any amounts which might be owed
to SIRA by CONSULTANT against any earned but unpaid amounts owed to CONSULTANT by SJRA under
any Work Order. Inthe event any Work Order is terminated by SJRA, CONSULTANT shall promptly deliver
to SJRA all Work Product with respect to such terminated Work Order.

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 10 2025



ARTICLE 13 — FORCE MAJEURE

13.1  Anydelay in performance or non-performance of any obligation other than an obligation to make
a payment as required under this Agreement or any Work Order, of CONSULTANT contained herein shall
be excused to the extent such delay in performance or non-performance is caused by Force Majeure.
“Force Majeure” shall mean fire, flood, act of God, earthquakes, extreme weather conditions, epidemic,
pandemic, war, riot, civil disturbance or unrest, imposition of martial law, restrictions imposed by civil
authority, loss of control of civil authority, illegal activity, extreme unreliability or failure of the utility
infrastructure, failure of the US banking system, loss of access to communication systems, sabotage,
terrorism, or judicial restraint, but only to the extent that such event (i) is beyond the reasonable control
of and cannot be reasonably anticipated by or the effects cannot be reasonably alleviated by CONSULTANT
and (ii) prevents the performance of Services.

13.2  If CONSULTANT is affected by Force Majeure, CONSULTANT shall promptly provide written notice
to SJRA, explaining in detail the full particulars and the expected duration thereof. Notice will be
considered prompt if delivered within five (5) days after CONSULTANT first becomes aware or should have
become aware through performance in accordance with the standard of care, that the event of Force
Majeure will affect the performance of Services. CONSULTANT shall use its commercially reasonable
efforts to mitigate the interruption or delay if it is reasonably capable of being mitigated.

ARTICLE 14 — SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING

14.1  SJRA and CONSULTANT bind themselves and their successors, executors, administrators and
permitted assigns to the other Party of this Agreement and to the successors, executors, administrators
and permitted assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement.

14.2  No right or interest in this Agreement or any Work Order shall be assigned by CONSULTANT or
SJIRA without the prior written consent of the other Party.

14.3  Prior to commencement of any part of the Services to be provided under any Work Order with
respect to which CONSULTANT has elected to subcontract, CONSULTANT will notify SJRA in writing of the
identity of the particular subcontractor, subconsultant or supplier CONSULTANT intends to employ for the
performance of such part of the Services and the scope of Services it will perform. SJRA shall have the
right within twenty-one (21) calendar days of such written notice to disallow CONSULTANT’s employment
of any particular subcontractor, subconsultant or supplier, provided that any reasonable additional costs
incurred by CONSULTANT as a result of such disallowance shall be borne by SIRA. All damage, injury or
loss to any property caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by CONSULTANT or any
subcontractor, supplier or any person or organization directly or indirectly employed by any of them to
perform or furnish any of the Services or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be
remedied by CONSULTANT (except to the extent of damage or loss attributable to errors or omissions in
the drawings or specifications (unless CONSULTANT had knowledge of the error or omission or using
reasonable care should have known of the error and CONSULTANT failed to report same), or to the acts
or omissions of SJRA or anyone employed by SJRA, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable
other than CONSULTANT or its agent, or employee, or subcontractors of any tier).

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 11 2025



ARTICLE 15 — SEVERABILITY; NON-WAIVER

15.1  If any provision or portion thereof of this Agreement or any Work Order is deemed unenforceable
or void, then such provision or portion thereof shall be deemed severed from the Agreement or such
Work Order and the balance of the Agreement or Work Order shall remain in full force and effect.

15.2  Failure by SJRA in any instance to insist upon observance or performance by CONSULTANT of any
term, condition or obligation of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver by SIRA of any such
observance or performance. No waiver by SIRA of any term, condition, obligation or breach of this
Agreement will be binding upon SJRA unless in writing, and then will be for the particular instance
specified in such writing only. Payment of any sum by SJRA to CONSULTANT with knowledge of any breach
will not be deemed a waiver of such breach or any other breach.

ARTICLE 16 — LICENSE REQUIREMENTS

16.1 The CONSULTANT and any subconsultant shall have and maintain any licenses, registrations and
certifications required by the State of Texas or recognized professional organizations governing the
Services performed under this Agreement and any Work Order.

ARTICLE 17 — ENTIRE AGREEMENT

17.1  This Agreement and all Work Orders issued under it contain the full and complete understanding
of the Parties pertaining to their subject matter and supersede any and all prior and contemporaneous
representations, negotiations, agreements or understandings between the Parties, whether written or
oral. The Agreement and Work Orders may be modified only in writing, signed by both Parties.

ARTICLE 18 — GOVERNING LAW; VENUE

18.1 This Agreement and Work Orders, and its and their construction and any disputes arising out of,
connected with, or relating to this Agreement or Work Orders shall be governed by the laws of the State
of Texas, without regard to its conflicts of law principles. Venue of all dispute resolution proceedings
arising out of, connected with or relating to this Agreement, shall be in Montgomery County, Texas.

ARTICLE 19 — DISPUTE RESOLUTION

19.1 In the event of any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, any Work Order or any
Services which SIRA and CONSULTANT have been unable to resolve within thirty (30) days after such
dispute arises, a senior representative of CONSULTANT shall meet with the General Manager of SIRA at a
mutually agreed upon time and place not later than forty-five (45) days after such dispute arises to
attempt to resolve such dispute. In the event such representatives are unable to resolve any such dispute
within fifteen (15) days after such meeting, either Party may, by written notice to the other, submit such
dispute to non-binding mediation before a mutually agreeable mediator. If the Parties are unable to agree
upon a mediator within twenty (20) days after such written notice of submission to mediation, the
American Arbitration Association shall be empowered to appoint a qualified mediator pursuant to the
American Arbitration Association Construction Industry Mediation Rules. If the dispute is technical in
nature, the mediator appointed by the American Arbitration Association shall be qualified by at least ten
(10) years’ experience in construction, engineering, and/or public works operations. The mediation shall

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 12 2025



be conducted within thirty (30) days of the selection or appointment of the mediator, as applicable. The
mediation shall be held at a mutually agreeable location in Montgomery County, Texas. If the Parties are
unable to agree on a location, the mediation shall be held at the offices of the American Arbitration
Association closest to Conroe, Texas.

19.2  Any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any Work Order or any Services not
resolved pursuant to Paragraph 19.1, shall be resolved, by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.

19.3  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event SIRA and any other consultant and/or any contractor
are involved in a dispute in connection with a project for which CONSULTANT has provided Services, and
SIRA, inits sole discretion, determines that CONSULTANT’s participation in any dispute resolution meeting
or mediation proceeding between SJRA and any such consultant and/or contractor is necessary to the
resolution of such dispute, CONSULTANT agrees to attend and participate at its own cost in any such
dispute resolution meeting or mediation proceeding.

19.4  If CONSULTANT brings any claim against SJRA and CONSULTANT does not prevail with respect to
such claim, CONSULTANT shall be liable for all attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by SIRA as a result of
such claim.

ARTICLE 20 — ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES; COUNTERPARTS

20.1 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed
copy of this Agreement delivered by facsimile, email, or other means of electronic transmission
shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this
Agreement. Duplicate copies of duly executed and delivered counterparts of this Agreement
shall be deemed to have the same full force and effect as originals and may be relied upon as
such. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties agree that this Agreement and any Work Order may be
executed using electronic signatures at the option and in the discretion of SIRA, and, in such event, the
provisions of the Uniform Electronic Transaction Act, Chapter 332, Texas Business and Commerce Code,
as amended, and any applicable policies and procedures of SIRA regarding electronic signatures shall
apply.

ARTICLE 21 — CONFIDENTIALITY

21.1  Neither CONSULTANT nor any of its subconsultants shall publish or release any publicity or public
relations materials of any kind concerning or relating to this Agreement, the Services or the activities of
SIRA, unless such materials have first been reviewed and approved in writing by SJIRA. This provision shall
not apply to mandatory reports which CONSULTANT or its subconsultants are required by law to file with
governmental authorities.

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 13 2025



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the day and year
herein above first written.

CONSULTANT: SJIRA:

BGE, Inc. San Jacinto River Authority

By: By:

Name:_Todd Calvin, P.E. Aubrey A. Spear, P.E.

Title:__ Principal General Manager

Date: Date:

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement

Contract No. 25-0047 14 2025



ATTACHMENT A
Compensation terms for cost reimbursable and lump sum Services:

Al COMPENSATION BASED ON COST WITH MULTIPLIER

For professional and non-professional staff, SJRA will compensate CONSULTANT on the basis of a
multiplier added to the Raw Salary Cost as shown in the table below for the Scope of Work specified in
the Work Order. Professional is defined as a manager, supervisor, engineer, scientist or other recognized
profession. Typically, professional employees are salaried exempt employees. Typically, non-professional
employees are hourly non-exempt employees. The Raw Salary Cost for salaried employees is defined as
the annual base salary excluding bonuses, burdens, and benefits divided by 2080. For hourly personnel,
the Raw Salary Cost is defined as the hourly wage paid to the employee exclusive of burdens and benefits.
Standard equipment, communications, technology, or similar hourly expenses that are typically part of
CONSULTANT’s hourly rates may be included in the Raw Salary Cost for salaried employees and hourly
personnel, if approved by SIRA. Any shift premiums or premiums paid for hours worked in excess of 40
per week will be added to the base hourly wage and will be considered a part of the Raw Salary Cost.

(a) RAW SALARY MULTIPLIERS

3.25 for professional and non-professional staff working at CONSULTANT or its
subcontractor, subconsultant, or vendor offices

2.86 for professional and non-professional staff working in the field during construction
or at SJIRA offices for a minimum period of six (6) consecutive months

2.75 for construction inspectors working in the field
(b) EXPENSES

“Billable Expenses” include all costs and expenses directly attributable to performance of the
Services, which are in good accounting practice direct costs of the Services and not covered by
the allowance for payroll burden and general office overhead and profit. Costs of outside services
will be charged at actual invoice cost plus ten percent (10%). “Billable Expenses” include:
subconsultants; travel expenses to and from locations outside Harris and Montgomery Counties;
and copies of all deliverables submitted to SJRA. All local vehicle use outside Harris and
Montgomery Counties will be reimbursed at the current IRS allowable rate with no markup. All
other expenses are considered to be covered by the allowance for payroll burden and general
office overhead and profit and are non-billable expenses.

A.2. LUMP SUM COMPENSATION

SJRA will compensate CONSULTANT on the basis of a mutually agreed upon lump sum price for
the scope of work specified in the Work Order. SJRA may ask CONSULTANT for a cost estimate for the
scope of work prior to issuing the Work Order. The cost estimate will include a summary breakdown
showing the labor hours and cost, subconsultant costs, and other direct costs included in the estimate.
Labor rates to be used in preparing the estimate will be the actual salary or wage of the employee times

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 2025



the appropriate multiplier specified in Paragraph A.1(a) above. CONSULTANT will submit and SJRA will
pay monthly invoices based on the mutually agreed upon percentage of the Services completed.

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 2025



ATTACHMENT B
This Work Order is issued subject to, is governed by and incorporates by reference that certain
Professional Services Agreement, Contract No. 25-0047, between the SIRA and CONSULTANT effective
February 26, 2026.

Work Order Date:

CONSULTANT:

Type of Compensation:

Compensation:

Location of Services: (County)

Description of Services:

Deliverables: See Attached.

Schedule Requirements: Commence Services:

Completion of Services:

Submittal Dates for Each Deliverable: See Attached.
Agreed to by:

SIRA

By:

Name:_Aubrey A. Spear, P.E.

Title:_ General Manager

and
BGE, Inc.

By:

Name:_Todd Calvin, P.E.

Title:_ Principal

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 2025



ATTACHMENT C
SJRA’S INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS OF CONSULTANT

1. General Requirements. CONSULTANT shall, at all times during the performance of Services pursuant
to Work Orders issued under this Agreement and for not less than two years after the completion of
any Services, provide and require all subconsultants and subcontractors to provide insurance
coverage with companies lawfully authorized to do business in Texas and acceptable to SJRA and
with forms of policies acceptable to SIRA, which coverage will protect CONSULTANT from claims set
forth below which may arise out of or result from CONSULTANT’s Services and operations under this
Agreement and any Work Order for which CONSULTANT may be legally liable, whether such Services
or operations are by CONSULTANT or a subconsultant or subcontractor of CONSULTANT or by anyone
directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be
liable, and meeting not less than the minimum requirements set forth in this Attachment C. Such
insurance is to be provided at the sole cost of CONSULTANT and all subconsultants and
subcontractors. The terms “subconsultant” and “subcontractor” for the purposes of this Attachment
C shall include subconsultants and subcontractors of any tier.

(a) Kinds of Claims

(1) claims under workers’ compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee
benefit acts which are applicable to CONSULTANT's Services to be performed;

(2) claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death
of CONSULTANT’s employees;

(3) claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person
other than CONSULTANT’s employees;

(4) claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which are
sustained (i) by a person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to
employment of such person by CONSULTANT, or (ii) by another person;

(5) claims for damages other than to CONSULTANT’s work itself, because of injury to or
destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom;

(6) claims for damages because of bodily injury, death of a person or property damage
arising out of ownership, maintenance or use of a motor vehicle;

(7) claims involving contractual liability insurance applicable to CONSULTANT's
indemnification obligations under this Agreement; and

(8) claims for errors and omissions in the provision of professional consulting services of the
kind rendered by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement.

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement

Contract No. 25-0047 2025



(b) Policies and Minimum Limits of Liability

PLEASE NOTE: These requirements should provide general guidance only, additional requirements based on project specifics of the contract
may be required. Contract amounts over limits will require excess coverage to cover the difference. Combined single limits and excess
coverage must equal the Contract Amount (CA).

Risk Level Contract Amount

Coverage >$25k- >§75k-  >=$1M-
TIER 2 $75k $1M $2M

Each Occurrence
Professional Services Fire Damage
Commercial General .
Saricas: Liability (CGL) Personal & ADV injury
Architect, Engineer, Surveyor, (Premises/Completed Aggregate
Professional Non-AES excluding Operations) Premises/Operations
legal services. Products/
Completed Operations
Contract Type:

» Master Professional Services

Agreement (MPSA)(AES)- .
Across all divisions/3 years Workers Compensation

Per occurrence bodily injury

Per Occurrence bodily injury by
disease

» Professional Services Policy Limit for Bodily Injury

Agreement (PSA)(AES)-project Disease

specific, multiple phases would

be new work orders. Business Auto Liability Bodily Injury $300k $500k $500k $1M $1M
Owned, Non-Owned, Hired, Property Damage $300k $500k $500k $1M $1M
» C Iting Agr t (Non- jur g ¥ -
A:_f;;“ ing Agreement (Non Infuryand Plopae];'ty e for Combined Single Limit $600k $1M $1M $2M =$2M

» Engagement Letter

Professional and Cyber
Professional /EO Liability required based on the scope of 500k $1M $1M $2M =$2M

work

*Aggregate limits are per 12-month policy period unless otherwise indicated; defense costs shall
be excluded from limits of liability of each policy other than Professional Liability Insurance;
Commercial General Liability Insurance coverage limits shall be on a per-project basis.

(c) Allrequiredinsurance shall be maintained with responsible insurance carriers acceptable to SJRA
and lawfully authorized to issue insurance of the types and amounts set forth in this Attachment
C. Carriers should have a Best’s Financial Strength Rating of at least “A-" and a Best’s Financial
Size Category of Class VIII or better, according to the most current edition of Best’s Key Rating
Guide, Property-Casualty United States or be of sufficient size and financial strength as adjudged
by SJRA to meet the financial obligations evidenced in the certificate of insurance.

(d) All certificates shall be in a form reasonably acceptable to SIRA and each certificate must state
to the extent permitted by Texas Insurance Code Chapter 1811 that the policy may not expire or
be cancelled, materially modified, or nonrenewed unless the carrier and/or CONSULTANT gives
SJRA thirty (30) days advance written notice. When any required insurance, due to the
attainment of a normal expiration date or renewal date, shall expire, CONSULTANT shall, prior
to such expiration, supply SIRA with certificates of insurance and amendatory riders or
endorsements that clearly evidence the continuation of all coverage in the same manner, limits
of protection, and scope of coverage as is required by this Agreement. Any renewal or

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 2025



replacement policies shall be in form and substance satisfactory to SJIRA and written by carriers
acceptable to SJIRA and meeting the requirements of this Attachment C. CONSULTANT shall or
shall cause the applicable carrier or carriers to give written notice to SJRA within thirty (30) days
of the date on which total claims by any Party against insurance provided pursuant to this
Attachment C reduce the aggregate amount of coverage below the amounts required by this
Attachment C. In addition, CONSULTANT shall or shall cause the applicable carrier or carriers to
provide SJIRA with amendatory riders or endorsements to the Commercial General Liability
Insurance policy that specify that the coverage limits apply on a per-project basis.

(e) With respect to all policies required in this Attachment C, as soon as practicable prior to
execution of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall deposit with SJRA true and correct original
certificates thereof, bearing notations or accompanied by other evidence satisfactory to SIRA
that the requirements of this Attachment C are being met, and such certificates shall be attached
hereto as Attachment D. If requested to do so by SIRA, CONSULTANT shall also furnish the
originals or certified copies of the insurance policies for inspection including but not limited to
copies of endorsements.

(f) All policies of insurance and certificates, with the exception of Professional Liability and Workers’
Compensation Insurance, shall name the INDEMNITEES as additional insureds. Without limiting
the foregoing, CONSULTANT’s Commercial General Liability Insurance policy shall name the
INDEMNITEES as additional insureds pursuant to 1ISO Additional Insured Endorsements CG 20-
10-10-01 and CG 20-33-10-01 or their combined equivalents. Further, the CONSULTANT shall
provide the INDEMNITEES any defense provided by its Commercial General Liability Insurance
policy to the fullest extent allowed by law.

(g) CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of recovery and damages against the INDEMNITEES to the
extent such damages are covered or should have been covered by the insurance obtained or
required to be obtained by CONSULTANT under this Agreement. All of CONSULTANT’s policies
of insurance, with the exception of Professional Liability Insurance, shall include a waiver of
subrogation in favor of the INDEMNITEES.

(h) The Parties intend that the CONSULTANT’S insurance shall be primary and non-contributing with
respect to any other insurance maintained by SJRA and all policies of insurance obtained by
CONSULTANT shall be endorsed to be primary and non-contributing with respect to any other
insurance maintained by SJRA.

(i) If any policy required to be purchased pursuant to this Attachment C is subject to a deductible,
self-insured retention or similar self-insurance mechanism which limits or otherwise reduces
coverage, the deductible, self-insured retention, or similar self-insurance mechanism shall be the
sole responsibility of CONSULTANT in the event of any loss and CONSULTANT hereby waives any
claim therefor against any INDEMNITEE.

(j) CONSULTANT shall require and cause its subconsultants and subcontractors to purchase and
maintain the insurance policies set forth in Section 1(b) above with limits of liability
commensurate with the amount of each subconsulting or subcontract agreement, but in no case
less than $500,000 per occurrence. CONSULTANT shall provide copies of insurance certificates

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 2025



for all such insurance to SJRA prior to any subconsultant’s or subcontractor’s performance of any
Services.

(k) If CONSULTANT fails to procure or to maintain in force the insurance required by this Attachment
C, SIRA may secure such insurance and the costs thereof shall be borne by CONSULTANT.
CONSULTANT shall reimburse SJRA the cost of such insurance plus a ten percent (10%)
administrative charge within ten (10) days after billing by SJRA. Any sum remaining unpaid
fifteen (15) days after billing by SIRA shall bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per
annum until paid by CONSULTANT. Except to the extent prohibited by Subchapter C of Chapter
151 of the Texas Insurance Code, CONSULTANT SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD
HARMLESS THE INDEMNITEES FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LOSSES, CLAIMS, DAMAGES,
AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATIONS, COURT COSTS, COSTS OF DEFENSE, AND
ATTORNEYS’ FEES), THAT ANY INDEMNITEE MAY INCUR AS A RESULT OF CONSULTANT’S
FAILURE TO OBTAIN OR CAUSE TO BE OBTAINED THE SPECIFIC ENDORSEMENTS OR INSURANCE
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT. Failure of any INDEMNITEE to identify any
deficiency in the insurance forms provided shall not be construed as a waiver of CONSULTANT’s
obligation to maintain such insurance and to cause such insurance to be maintained.

(I) CONSULTANT’s compliance with the provisions of this Attachment C shall not be deemed to
constitute a limitation of CONSULTANT’s liability with respect to claims covered by insurance
provided or required pursuant to this Attachment C or in any way limit, modify, or otherwise
affect CONSULTANT's obligation under this Agreement or otherwise. CONSULTANT's obligations
under this Agreement to defend, indemnify and/or hold harmless INDEMNITEES shall not be
limited in any way by any insurance required of CONSULTANT by this Agreement or otherwise
provided or maintained by CONSULTANT. Any insurance obligations of CONSULTANT under this
Agreement are independent from CONSULTANT’s obligations under this Agreement to defend,
indemnify and/or hold harmless INDEMNITEES. The insolvency, bankruptcy, or failure of any
insurance company carrying insurance for CONSULTANT or any subcontractor, or the failure or
any insurance company to pay claims accruing shall not be held to waive any of the provisions of
this Agreement.

(m) If requested by SJRA, CONSULTANT shall furnish or shall cause to be furnished any such other
insurance or limits as SIRA may reasonably deem necessary for any Work Order or Orders and
the cost thereof shall be charged to SIRA by appropriate modification of any such Order(s).

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 2025



ATTACHMENT D
CONSULTANT'’S CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

[ATTACHED HERETO].

Siphon 21 Improvements SJRA Professional Services Agreement
Contract No. 25-0047 2025



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

This Work Order is issued subject to, is governed by, and incorporates by reference that certain
Professional Services Agreement, Contract No. 25-0047, between the SJRA and CONSULTANT
effective February 26, 2026.

Work Order Date: February 26, 2026

CONSULTANT: BGE, Inc.

Type of Compensation: Lump Sum and Cost-Plus Multiplier (Task 1104)

Compensation: $291,090.00

Location of Services: Harris County, Texas

Description of Services: Professional engineering consulting services as required to prepare and provide
Preliminary Engineering design for the Siphon 21 Improvements project for the Highlands Division.

Deliverables: See Attached.

Schedule Requirements: Commence Services: 2/27/2026

Completion of Services: 10/29/2026

Submittal Dates for Each Deliverable: See Attached.

Agreed to by:
SJRA

By:

Name:_ Aubrey A. Spear, P.E.

Title:_ General Manager

and
By: / ’

Name:_ Todd Calvin, P.E.

Title:_ Principal

San Jacinto River Authority Page 1 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047
February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

SCOPE OF WORK
General

The following scope generally describes the efforts associated with preliminary engineering design
services for improvements to the San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21.

The project includes improvements to the existing Highlands Siphon 21 that crosses under existing Harris
County Flood Control District (HCFCD) Channel Unit No. G103-05-00 on the SJRA Main Canal in
Barrett, Texas. The existing siphon consists of dual 48-inch and a single 60-inch reinforced concrete
siphon pipes with associated headwalls and wingwalls.

The siphon improvements may include the demolition and removal and/or abandonment of the existing
siphon pipes, demolition of existing concrete structures, construction of new dual siphon pipes,
construction of new headwall and wingwall structures, improvements to the levees upstream/downstream
of the new intake/discharge structures, installation of staff gauges, stop logs/slots, trash
management/removal, improvement of maintenance access to the siphon, and installation of manual vs
automated water control gates to be evaluated during preliminary engineering. The improvements are
required to address the age and structural integrity of the siphon and to enhance reliability, redundancy,
and water flow efficiency, ensuring continued raw water supply and ability to accommodate future
contract demand increases for municipal and industrial customers.

For this effort, BGE proposes to:

»  Perform topographic surveys and cross sections along the canal 300-ft upstream and downstream
of the Siphon 21 crossing and 300-ft along HCFCD Channel Unit No. G103-05-00, along the
access easement adjoining the HCFCD to FM 2100 and the northeast quadrant at St Cecilia and
Cottontail Dr.

* Provide a desktop review of potential wetlands, threatened and endangered species, and cultural
resource review.

*  Perform geotechnical analysis for construction recommendations, slope stability analysis, and
erosion protection.

*  Perform hydraulic simulations to identify siphon/canal conveyance capacities.

* Investigate, identify, and locate utilities within the project limits and provide initial coordination
efforts with utility providers.

*  Coordinate preliminary design with Harris County Public Engineering Department, the Harris
County Flood Control District (HCFCD), TxDOT and Barrett.

*  Prepare a Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) to identify existing conditions and evaluate the
extent of siphon improvements necessary to repair, rebuild, and/or provide the necessary
improvements to meet the long-term raw water demands of SJRA's customers.

Task 1101 — Project Management (BGE)

1. General: Provide for the management of the resources to meet the technical, financial, and
schedule requirements of SJRA. This will include the overall management of the Project and the
various specialized discipline teams responsible for the development of the Project and
subconsultant management.

San Jacinto River Authority Page 2 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047
February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

2. Baseline Schedule Development and Updates: Develop, manage, monitor, update, and coordinate
(with SJRA staff) the baseline schedule throughout the life of the Project based on changes or
necessary updates.

3. Project Status Reports: Provide written project status reports once per month throughout the
duration of the Project. Project status reports will include, at a minimum, a summary description
of activities completed, description of activities planned for the next 30 days, financial status of
the Project, status of schedule for the Project, and identification of any technical or other issues
which may have an impact to the overall Project budget and/or schedule. Project status reports
will be provided to SJRA with each invoice.

4. Meetings: Schedule and participate in regular meetings/workshops (in person, by video
conference, or by phone, as appropriate) with SJRA, BGE’s subconsultants, third party
consultants, and other stakeholders (as appropriate). BGE will disseminate pertinent Project
information internally and externally, implement Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality Control
(QC) measures, and submit deliverables as required per the attached Project schedule. All
meeting agendas, workshop planning information and handouts, meeting notes, and other
applicable information pertaining to each specific meeting or workshop will be developed and
distributed by BGE. Meetings will consist of the following:

a. One initial kick-off meeting with SJIRA to discuss Project expectations, schedule, and
deliverables and confirm Project goals.

b. Field Investigation: Conduct up to two (2) 4-hour site visits during normal flow
conditions to measure elevations at siphons/culverts for hydraulic model validation and to
confirm existing conditions and record drawings to ensure conformance of design plans.
Coordinate with SJIRA staff to receive additional measurements (gate settings, Lake
Houston PS flow, future flows, etc.) for hydraulic model validation. Includes topographic
survey verification.

c. Monthly virtual Project update meetings with SJRA as well as appropriate team members
to present detailed status updates of the Project’s progress and budget and discuss any
major issues identified.

d. Occasional virtual call meetings as needed to address specific issues and detailed project
coordination.

e. PER comment review meeting to discuss SJRA’s PER comments.

5. Quality Control and Quality Assurance (QA/QC): BGE will implement a Quality Control
and Quality Assurance Plan and perform QA/QC activities according to the Plan as part of its
work. A QA/QC Audit may be performed by SJRA. Audit date/time will be scheduled in
advance of audit.

6. Document Control: BGE will assist in the planning, execution, filing, and retrieval of all Project
documentation during the Project including applicable Project Management Information
Systems (PMIS), i.e., Procore. BGE shall utilize this system as a management tool and repository
of all data, reports, photographs, letters, memoranda, models, invoices, and other information

as directed by SJRA.
San Jacinto River Authority Page 3 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047

February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

7. Invoicing: BGE shall submit invoices monthly by the 10th day of the month following the
month being invoiced for. Invoices shall include a monthly progress/status report with a brief
summary of Consultant’s activities and deliverables completed within the month and activities
planned for the next month. Invoices shall be submitted to ap@sjra.net and the SJRA project
manager. Coordinate with the SJRA Project Manager to determine appropriate format and content
for invoice submittals.

8. Agency Coordination, Local Permitting, Local Regulatory:

a. Coordinate with applicable agencies to facilitate an exchange of potential Project
approval and permitting requirements, including but not limited to applicable Harris
County Flood Control District (HCFCD), Harris County Precincts, Harris County
Engineering Department (HCED), Barrett, and adjacent Municipal Utility Districts. The
SJRA Project Manager will be copied on all agency coordination and invited to any
coordination meetings.

b. Meetings: Conduct an initial meeting with each applicable agency to introduce the
purpose of the Project and the extents of work.

c. Follow-Up Meetings: When necessary, conduct a total of one (1) follow-up meeting with
each applicable agency, or as expressly agreed upon by the entity and SJRA, to ensure
the Project approach is acceptable and all requirements related to planning, pre-design,
design, and construction are ascertained and understood.

d. Construction Access Route Meetings: One initial meeting with each permitting
authorities (Harris County Precinct 3, HCED, HCFCD, and TxDOT regarding traffic
control, road closures, and access) with additional follow-up correspondence.

9. BGE shall notify assigned SIRA Project Manager in writing that Consultant and Sub-
consultant has expended eighty percent (80%) of any single task in the currently approved SJRA
Professional Services Agreement and/or Work Order amount within seven (7) calendar days
of BGE reaching this expenditure milestone (“80% expenditure milestone”). Written notification
shall be provided without regard to compensation type (i.e., lump sum, cost-plus multiplier,
time-and-materials, etc.). Written notification shall include a statement by BGE indicating
whether remaining amount is adequate to complete current SJRA approved Professional
Services Agreement and/or Work Order Scope of Work.

Deliverables:

1. Monthly Invoice and Status Reports:

a. Monthly Status Reports, baseline schedule, and invoices shall be submitted electronically
(pdf) to SJRA’s Project Manager no later than the 10th day of every month to coincide
with SIRA’s invoicing requirements throughout the duration of the Work Order.

2. Meeting Agendas, Handouts, and Minutes:

San Jacinto River Authority Page 4 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047
February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

a. Proposed Agendas: Submit one (1) electronic copy (editable version) no less than three
(3) calendar days prior to meeting. Consultant shall provide necessary number of hard
copies at the meeting.

b. Meeting Minutes: Submit one (1) electronic copy (editable version) of draft meeting
minutes within three (3) calendar days of meeting. Receive SJRA comments on meeting.
minutes and submit one (1) electronic version (pdf) via Procore of final meeting minutes
within three (3) calendar days of receipt of comments on the draft meeting minutes.

Task 1102 — Preliminary Engineering Design (BGE)

L.

Review SJRA-provided guide technical specifications and identify the specific sections that are
applicable to the Work. Identify any additional technical specifications that are required to
complete the Project, which will become property of SJRA as a guide technical specification.
Additional technical specifications must conform to the formatting of standard SJRA technical
specifications.

A list of standard that are expected on the project will be provided by BGE to SJRA for review
Project Specific details will be provided during final design.

Obtain and Review of Design Criteria, Design Parameters, and Available Data:

SJRA will provide BGE with applicable data for the Highlands Main Canal System
(HMCS). The following deliverables from SJRA are assumed:

a. Bid tabulations: Bid tabulations for recent Siphon/Structure and levee projects on the
Highlands Canals will be provided to BGE.

b. Plans: SJRA will provide any record drawings pertaining to Siphon 21 and any other
proposed or ongoing projects along the Main Canal near Siphon 21.

c. Reports: SJRA will provide any previously developed reports, including engineering,
survey, geotechnical, and environmental.

d. Hydraulic Model: SJRA will provide the latest hydraulic model available for the existing
system (InfoWorks ICM, version 2024.0.1).

e. Utility data including any drawings, crossing agreements, and letters of no
objection.

f. Property Information including SJRA deeds, easements, and other recorded
property agreements.

Develop a list of additional data needed to thoroughly understand existing conditions and other
care of water strategies supplemented with costs.

Coordinate with HCFCD to determine viability to open cut HCFCD channel/ replace culvert
crossing or realignment of HCFCD culvert crossing with HCFCD.

San Jacinto River Authority Page 5 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047
February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

6. Hydraulic Model Updates: Update the Canal System InfoWorks ICM (version 2024.0.1) model
using the survey provided for the project area. Updates will include changes to cross sections and
elevations of the banks within the project limits.

a. Coordinate with SJRA to understand current and future capacity demands.
b. Model existing conditions calibrated based on site observations.

¢. Model/Flow Simulations: Simulate the model for up to four (4) Model scenarios to
include 1) Existing conditions, 2) Construction (care of water) conditions, 3) Design
conditions (both new barrels), 4) Maintenance conditions (1 barrel in service) and 5)
Review modeling results to support development of performance specification. All model
simulations/scenarios will verify canal and siphon capacity and freeboard. Model
scenarios will include two flow conditions; existing flow rate and future flow rate.

d. Model HCFCD G103-05-00 channel using HEC-RAS to evaluate existing and proposed
conditions, to show no adverse impact to channel and culvert conveyance for the Atlas 14
2, 10- and 100-year storm events.

e. Deficiency Identification and Recommendations: Identify hydraulic capacity and
deficiencies of existing levee and available freeboard for the flow conditions within
project vicinity of 300 feet upstream and downstream of the siphon.

f.  Workshop with SJRA to discuss results of hydraulic modeling and initial care of water
plans (H&H Workshop).

7. Structural Evaluation: Develop preliminary drawings for the plan, elevation, and typical section
of the two (2) proposed siphon layouts for presentation in the report and perform preliminary
stability/settlement analysis for structures using Geotech information. Drawings will show
conceptual siphon only and will not include construction details. Siphon systems will be analyzed
for compliance to the allowable bearing capacity, buoyancy effects in the event the siphon is in a
maintenance condition and therefore empty of water. The structural team will coordinate with the
Geotechnical team for the bearing capacity, settlement, and global stability of the siphon and
junction boxes/wing walls. Structural team will be available to consult with the rest of the team to
evaluate alternate configurations or construction methodologies for the planned replacement of
the existing siphon.

8. Transportation — Maintenance Access Evaluation: Evaluate site access for construction and long
term maintenance/operations. Determine if additional acquisition is required and discuss traffic
control for construction.

a. Evaluate two potential long-term access routes:

i.  Access from FM 2100 (Crosby Lynchburg Rd) through SJRA’s existing
easement
ii.  Access from Cottontail Drive (east side of SJRA Main Channel)

San Jacinto River Authority Page 6 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047
February 2026



10.

San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1
b. Evaluation of access shall include the following considerations:
i.  Geometrics of access
a. Available width of access roadway
b. Accommodation of maintenance vehicles and equipment
c. Physical constraints, encroachments, and existing conditions
(topography) of access location

d. Safety

ii.  Drainage impacts

iii.  Utility investigation and initial coordination with utility companies to obtain
existing utility information.

a. Perform Level C & D SUE only
iv.  Environmental considerations
v.  ROW and easement considerations
vi.  Estimated construction cost of access
BGE will provide the following deliverables within the PER as part of this scope:
a. 117 x 17” exhibit of each access alternative
b. Preliminary construction cost estimate
Schematic Design and Drawings: The schematic shall include preliminary grading of the
adjacent levee modifications as well as a preliminary profile to determine utility relocations, if

required. Easement boundaries and other physical boundaries will be identified along with
any sensitive areas requiring permitting or special care.

a. Siphon Alternates Including Layouts: Develop four (4) high level options, which
include open cut, trenchless, and relocation of the HCFCD box culvert layouts for
dual siphons, which include site access options for construction and maintenance.

b. Pipe Material: Pipe material selection to be provided by SJRA.

c. Schematic Review / Alternate Selection Workshop: Review the four (4) high level
alternate layouts for selection of two (2) for further development to be incorporated
in the PER.

Preliminary Engineering Report: Develop a preliminary engineering report summarizing
preliminary design field work (Tasks 1103, 1104, 1105 and 1106), changes to the hydraulic
model, recommendations for improvements, and the final design recommendation scenario. BGE
will provide two (2) preliminary schematics of proposed improvements. The schematics will
include plan and profile views with known utilities.

San Jacinto River Authority Page 7 of 15

Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047
February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

a. Report: The draft report will be submitted for SJRA's Review. BGE will meet with SJRA
to discuss their respective comments. BGE will finalize the report based on the meeting
and the comments received and submit a Final Report and comment response log to

SJRA.

b. The following parameters will be considered in the report in addition to items 5, 7, 8,9
and 10 above:

il.

1il.

1v.

Vi.

vil.

viil.

1X.

Deliverables:

Operations and Maintenance: Evaluate and discuss impacts of Operation and
Maintenance (O&M) of the Highlands Main Canal System associated with the
final improvements identified in the report. Provide options for improved
maintenance access.

Care of Water - Evaluate and discuss methods to provide adequate flow and
water quality (sediment control) to SJRA's customers through the various phases
of the project. Develop preliminary care of water layouts for constructability
consideration.

Sequencing and Schedule Analysis - Develop preliminary sequencing and
schedule alternatives for the Project for evaluation and discussion.

Traffic Control and Construction Access Route Evaluation - Evaluate and discuss
the impacts of traffic control associated with the permitting, design, and
construction phases of the Project. Evaluate potential access routes and detour
routes based on coordination with HCED, Harris County Precinct 3, and TxDOT.
Utility Relocation - Discuss utility relocation options for each alternative if
applicable. HCFCD canal relocation rerouting as described above.

SCADA and Power Considerations - Coordinate with the SJRA staff on
operational needs for a SCADA system for gate controls or level sensors.
Investigate power needs and initial coordination for power service to the project
site.

Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost - Develop an overall Opinion of Probable
Construction Cost (OPCC) for the two (2) Siphon 21 proposed improvement
options for comparisons.

Constructability Considerations - Based on the scope of the project, evaluate the
constructability. Special focus will be centered on accessibility, stakeholder
expectations and demands, care of water, utility conflicts, temporary construction
easements, and various other considerations.

Environmental Considerations - Evaluate and discuss environmental constraints
as determined in Task 1105.

a. Provide a Preliminary Engineering Report: Within 30 weeks of 30 weeks from
receiving the Notice to Proceed, submit the draft PER to SJRA. NTP

SJRA to provide comments within two (2) weeks of receiving
the report. BGE will meet with SJRA to go over comments and
discuss report. Submit the final report and comment response
log within two (2) weeks of meeting with SJRA. BGE will
provide a preliminary schematic (30% level design) of the
siphon improvements in an Appendix of the PER

San Jacinto River Authority

Highlands Division
February 2026

Page 8 of 15
Contract No. 25-0047



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

b. Draft Preliminary Engineering Report: Submit one (1) 30 weeks from
electronic copy (pdf) via Procore NTP
c. Final Preliminary Engineering Report: Submit one (1) 2 weeks from
electronic copy (pdf) via Procore meeting with
SJRA

d. Hydraulic Model (Infoworks ICM): Within two (2) weeks of 2 weeks of
submitting final PER, submit final hydraulic model to SJRA in submitting final

appropriate format ICM 2024.0.1 (v 26.1.12). PER

Task 1103 - Survey (BGE)

BGE proposes providing survey using:

1.

Conventional survey to confirm ground control and to collect data on structures. These include
one (1) crossing for the structure at Siphon 21. The Scope area limits are 300 feet upstream and
downstream along the Main Canal channel 300 feet along HCFCD Channel Unit No. G103-05-
00, the northeast quadrant at St Cecilia and Cottontail Dr, and along the access easement
adjoining the HCFCD to FM 2100.

Survey to include, gates, edges of pavement, power poles, sag clearance of overhead lines, limits
of canal easement, SJRA property, adjacent property boundaries/info, pipe flow lines, diameters,
types, culverts/sizes/types, top of walls, top of slabs, SUE pothole data (elevation, type, size,
coordinates) , utility appurtenances and all the HCFCD drainage infrastructure just to the east
of the canal both inside and outside SJRA easement. Obtain ordinary high water mark in
channel. Survey to provide water delineation limits, if possible, via staking.

Survey to be provided in .dwg civil 3D most recent version and should include surface for
existing ground.

Survey team will coordinate with SUE and Geotechnical (Aviles) to locate utility marking and
boreholes. BGE survey will provide an initial 811 call to have utilities flagged and will tie flags
with initial survey efforts.

Survey services will generally include:

L.

Locate existing drainage features and flowlines, such as headwalls and siphon pipes at the areas
listed above, including the HCFCD channel/ culvert.

2. Locate existing control and set new control.
3. Provide canal cross-sections along the canal as needed at 50-ft cross sections (approximately 12
cross sections).
4. Locate fencing and above ground appurtenances within the SJRA easement.
5. Perform feature extraction for the purposes of creating an updated DTM, bank-to-bank, along
channel limits described above.
San Jacinto River Authority Page 9 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047

February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

6. Process field collected data for field survey.

7. Perform quality control for survey requirements.

Assumptions:

1. The survey can be performed utilizing a combination of conventional and GPS (utilizing VRS
(Virtual Reference Station) and RTK( Real-Time Kinematic) means).

2. BGE will address one round of client review comments or revisions on the survey. Subsequent
revisions will be charged as Additional Services at our standard hourly rates.

3. SJRA will provide BGE with any previous survey, if available, of the Project area.

Deliverables:
a. Submit via Procore surveyor's PDF and Civil 3D file(s) in .dwg format. 12 weeks

Native files to include surface created from surveyor's data. from NTP

b. Provide all GIS data from the project in the format of either shapefiles (shp) 12 weeks
or Geodatabase (gdb). Projection to be NAD83 Texas Coordinate System, from NTP
South Central Zone FIPS 4204 (US feet). BGE will reference the GJS Spatial
Data Standards document (hard copy provided or located on the SJRA
Specification site in Procore) for further details.

Task 1104 - Utility Coordination and SUE (BGE) — Cost Plus Multiplier Task

The purpose of this task is to perform utility research, identification, initial coordination, and sub-surface
utility engineering services as summarized below:

1. Previous Reports and Analysis: Review previous research and identification efforts to develop an
initial understanding of the utilities within the project limits. Coordinate and review with BGE-
Survey team for the initial 811 call and flagging efforts to be performed by BGE-Survey.

2. Provide Quality Level D/C on all utilities.

Assumptions:

1. No Level A SUE provided.

Deliverables:
a. Provide a utility base map in .dwg format for inclusion in the design cycle 16 weeks
that includes all utilities and their SUE Quality Level. from NTP

Task 1105 - Environmental Evaluation (BGE)

San Jacinto River Authority Page 10 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047
February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

The purpose of this task is to perform a desktop evaluation and preliminary site assessment for Cultural
Resources, Protected Species, and Water of the US including wetlands.

L.

Desktop Evaluation and Preliminary Site Assessment: BGE will conduct desktop review
(includes aerial photography as far back as publicly available, NWI, USGS, FEMA, NRCS,
SSURGO, etc.) to assist in identifying any potential wetlands or other waters of the US. A
preliminary site assessment will be performed to evaluate the presence or absence of waters
of the U.S. (including wetlands) and available habitat that may support federally-listed
species. Based on the project design, a documentation and permitting strategy will be
developed focused on utilizing the Nationwide Permit Program.

Cultural Resources Desktop Review and THC Consultation: BGE will perform a desktop survey
to assess compliance with the Antiquities Code of Texas and Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act. This involves consulting the Texas Archeological Sites Atlas,
historic maps, and other relevant data to identify any archeological and/or historic properties.
The desktop review will include recommendations from a Registered Professional
Archaeologist.

Assumptions:

L.

No Environmental Phase I activities included.

2. No wetland delineation, OHWM determination, agency consultations, applications/ permits, or

mitigation plans included.

Deliverables:
a. Preliminary Site Assessment Memorandum 16 weeks
Submit one (1) electronic copy (pd/) via Procore of the draft report 16 from NTP

weeks from the Notice to Proceed, Final report will be submitted two
weeks following receipt of comments from SJRA.

Cultural Resources Desktop Letter Report 16 weeks
Submit one (1) electronic copy (pdf) via Procore of the draft report 16 from NTP
weeks from the Notice to Proceed. Final memorandum will be submitted

one week following receipt of comments from SJRA.

Task 1106 - Geotechnical Services (Aviles Engineering Corp)

The purpose of this task is to coordinate field and laboratory geotechnical investigations as required for
design and recommended by the Geotechnical Engineer. BGE will contract with Aviles Engineering Corp
to provide geotechnical recommendations as detailed in the attached proposal, summarized below:

L.

Previous Reports and Analysis: Review previous geotechnical boring logs and analyses

performed for this location.

2. Borings: Perform a minimum of two (2) 50-foot deep borings on the upstream and downstream of
Siphon 21 crossing. The total drilling footage is 100 feet. If the number of borings required or if
the average boring depth exceeds these values, additional compensation may be requested as a
special service.
San Jacinto River Authority Page 11 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047

February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

Laboratory Testing: As required for project recommendations, which may consist of moisture
contents, Atterberg limits, percentage passing No. 200 sieve, sieve analysis and double
hydrometer test, crumb tests, unconfined compression, and unconsolidated-undrained triaxial
tests; consolidated undrained (CU) triaxial tests, consolidation tests, crumb tests, and double
hydrometer tests depending on the soil types encountered.

Geotechnical Evaluation and Recommendations Report: Prepare an engineering report to describe
the field and laboratory data developed, including (i) boring location plan and new boring log,
and the existing boring logs; (ii) summary of subsurface soil conditions and groundwater levels
encountered; (iii) sieve analysis/hydrometer test results with D50 for scouring analysis; (iv)
dispersive characteristics of subsurface soils; and recommendations how to address the dispersive
soils if encountered; (v) allowable bearing capacities, design soil parameters for lateral earth
pressure for the siphon headwalls, and recommendations for backfill of headwalls; (vi)
recommendations for installation of the siphon by trenchless and open cut methods; (vii)
recommendations for improvements of weak foundation soils such as cement-stabilized sand
replacement as needed; (viii) global stability analysis of improved channel side slopes under
short-term, long-term, and rapid drawdown condition; (ix) criteria for riprap and/or clay liner for
erosion protection for the siphon and levee, if required; (x) dewatering guidelines for the siphon
and headwall construction, (xi) constructability considerations.

Deliverables:

a. Geotechnical Evaluation Report 22 weeks
BGE will include Aviles’ geotechnical evaluation draft in an appendix of ~ from NTP
the Preliminary Engineering Report submittal and final geotechnical
evaluation report with bid documents. The draft report will be submitted
prior to the PER submission.

Task 1107 — Preliminary Engineering Design Support Services (Ascend Consulting & Engineering,

PLLC)

The purpose of this task is to provide project management and design support services to the Project
Team. BGE will contract with Ascend Consulting & Engineering, PLLC to provide services summarized

below:

1.

Project Management

a. Project Management Assistance: Consultant may assist Project Manager with the
following:

i.  Review Baseline Schedule Development and Updates prepared by BGE
ii.  Review Project Status Reports prepared by BGE
iii.  Review Meeting Materials prepared by BGE
iv.  Review subconsultant deliverables for environmental, survey, SUE, and geotechnical
efforts at high level to assist with development of siphon layouts

b. Meetings: Consultant will participate in the following meetings:

i.  Kickoff meeting (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)
ii.  Monthly progress meetings (virtual, 1 hour)

San Jacinto River Authority Page 12 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047
February 2026



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

iii.  Internal team coordination meetings (virtual, 1 hour)
iv.  H&H workshop (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)
v.  Alternative selection workshop (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)
vi.  PER review workshop (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)
vii.  Up to 2 meetings with HCFCD to assess ability to open-cut/replace culvert crossing
(virtual, 2 hours total)
viii.  Other stakeholder meetings (up to 4 hours total, virtual)

c. QA/QC: Consultant shall provide QC and QA review of the draft PER report and final PER
report. Consultant will consolidate comments in a comment resolution matrix which will be
sent to the Project Manager.

2. Preliminary Engineering Design — Siphon 21 Improvements
a. Consultant shall participate in one site visit with BGE (5 hours total including drive time).

b. Consultant shall review existing data provided by SJRA and provide comments/questions
about potential data gaps to BGE project manager.

c. Preliminary Engineering Report - Consultant shall perform the following services in
conjunction with the preparation of the PER for the Siphon 21 Improvements.
Activities/facilities to be evaluated may include but are not necessarily limited to removal
and/or abandonment of existing siphon pipes; demolition and removal of existing headwall
structures; installation of new siphon pipes and headwall structures, water control gates,
trash management/ removal and stop logs; armoring of canal levee segments in the vicinity
of the siphon; and installation of infrastructure and appurtenances for future SCADA
equipment implementation.

1. Incorporate pertinent data based on review of existing information and subconsultant
deliverables. Review environmental considerations and utility conflicts to determine
impact on cost/schedule and how findings may influence layouts.

ii. Assist BGE with the coordination Harris County Flood Control District (HCFCD) to
determine limitations and requirements for the Project. Consider these limitations and
requirements in all engineering efforts. Coordination items are anticipated to include
HCFCD channel culvert crossing avoidance/replacement. Coordinate with BGE to
understand requirements of other stakeholders (coordination provided by BGE) to
inform siphon layouts.

iii. Develop up to 4 (four) siphon preliminary layout sketches for BGE review and
development into exhibits. Layouts will include open cut and trenchless options and
will consider relocation of HCFCD channel culverts, other utilities, and potential
waters of the U.S.

iv. Attend virtual workshop to assist BGE engineers with the evaluation of the existing
hydraulic model and guide BGE development of modeling scenarios to present to the
SJRA. The workshop will also include assisting BGE with the development of a
model calibration plan.

v. Review hydraulic modeling results with BGE engineers and review BGE agenda and
exhibits for a modeling workshop with SJRA. Attend hydraulic modeling workshop
with the SJRA and BGE at the SJRA office (effort included in PM task).

San Jacinto River Authority Page 13 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047
February 2026



V1.

vil.

Viil.

1X.

X1.

X1l.

San Jacinto River Authority
Highlands Division
February 2026

San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

Review BGE proposed levee heights based on hydraulic modeling results and general
profile. Identify limits of erosion control requirements.

Assist BGE with development of care of water alternatives that could be utilized
during proposed construction.

Work with BGE to finalize layouts for 4 (four) total siphon alternatives by providing
feedback on BGE layout exhibits. Provide list of constructability considerations and
pros/cons of each alternative. Participate in an alternative review/selection workshop
with BGE and SJRA that will inform final 2 (two) alternatives for further
development in PER. If additional options are requested, a proposal will be provided
as additional service.

Perform preliminary stability/stability analysis for structures using information from
geotechnical investigation and report.

Review Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC) by BGE for each
considered siphon alternative (two total per PER) and provide feedback.

Develop the following sections of draft PER:

a) Preliminary Geotechnical & Structural Evaluation

Review and comment on draft PER sections developed by BGE, anticipated to
include:

* Existing Conditions
a) Existing Siphon
b) Survey
¢) Dive Inspection
d) Environmental Investigation
e) Utility Investigation & Conflicts
f) Geotechnical Investigation

¢ Stakeholder Coordination

a) HCFCD

b) HC Pct3

c) HCED

d) TxDOT

e) Utility Companies
f) Barrett, Texas

*  Design Constraints
e Preliminary Design Alternatives
e Hydraulic Analysis

a) Existing Conditions

b) Proposed Conditions

¢) Construction Scenarios

* Constructability Considerations

Page 14 of 15
Contract No. 25-0047



San Jacinto River Authority
Siphon 21 Improvements
Work Order No. 1

a) Traffic Control
b) Access
c) Bypass of Flows

» Site Access, Operations & Maintenance
a) Access
b) Gates
c) Stop Logs
d) SCADA/Electrical needs
*  Opinions of Probable Construction Cost
*  Conclusions & Recommendations

Xiii. Consultant shall attend a comment review workshop with SJRA to review draft PER
comments (effort included in PM task).

Xiv. Consultant shall address and incorporate all comments on Ascend-developed sections
into the final PER and perform review to verify BGE-developed sections addressed
comments.

San Jacinto River Authority Page 15 of 15
Highlands Division Contract No. 25-0047

February 2026



ZJo | abed

ST O SToTER e TR PUE S 0 SR
— osess oascs < IOUL G310H 0 UORERO[PS 19pIsuO3 [ put suondo ssapuon|
pue 31 Uado SpNPUL 1 SINOKET ‘SN 01Ul JaUIAOIRASP PuE MaIN3I
309 10} 531193 dnoke] Arewwia:d vouds (inoy) p 03 dn dojanag
ooaves 00965 0985 os 5303 U3 UODEUIpI003 3\ [ 358 155V
0096 009165 ad d pue oewsioju; Busixa jo maiAs: o paseq eiep waupsad syesodionu
oovsLEs o0veLEs ovves o e3ep Bunsixa mauna: 03 uensU03| q
00'sves 005v6s 0985 o Wt SAIP BUIPAPUL (€101 S04 7] JE1S 398 £ WM ISIA 315 U0
0005 0005 o Suswan0dwI TZ Uoudss - UBisaq BuusauiAu3 Aeuiieid] €
oovsLEs o0veLEs ovves o 10051 3 [eUl) PU 110031 H3d HEIP 341 JO MaIAI VD PUE D TET
0005 0005 o Sovo| >
TOT SO ¢ TR ST A
ov'ecrs ooeLss oooers o5 eyt m-sodo o1 e s o oot ueeue 2 | 11
06025 056005 loosves 05 AP BUIPNPU 2303 SIN0Y € osia0-ul) doysIoM Moina1 u3d] W
s
osiozs ossois oosiss os T
06025 056005 l00svos o oL S\p BUPNIPUL 2103 SInoy £ ‘U512 JOUSHOM HgH] N
00sTv'TS 0061yt l00067'TS o {inoy T ‘enii) sunseus Uoneupioos weay E:EI_ »
ooTvTS 0061yt l00067TS o oy T enum) sausauw ssasdosd Auion|
06025 056005 l00'svos o (o1 3n3p BUIpNPU (2307 o § “Uossad-u) Fueat o] 1
0005 0005 o SBunsan|
l00°9v6$ 00°9v65 lo00s8s o5 snoke] uoydss o wawidojanap|
a1 351552 01 [9n3] Y31 1€ 5110 SDIGEIALPP WEIINSUOINS MOIRDY,
00z68TS 00zes TS o00zLTs 05 398 Aq posedaid sfeLiaIE Bu9oN Mooy
06025 056005 l00'svos o5 398 Aq posedad sriodoy smeas 192[0i Moo
oss0z$ o560 o0'svs s o8 kap repd pue npoups auoseg mavoy| 1
0005 0005 o Soueisissy wowsBeuE ploia] ©
0005 0005 05 SuownBeueN pooid] T
(8uiaauiSu3 '3 Sunynsuod
puansy) saainias poddns usisaq Supiaaui3u3 Aleuiwijaid - LOTT Ysel
05295013 0652951$ o0ss9'8s [o0vas'vs s 11002y SUOHEPUaILIOI2Y PUE UOENIen] [uyp21090]
ovTas'ss 0v 188785 l00vz0s os SupsaL howiogel] €
ogzevTs ogzerTTs oosroTs os E
ogv90Ts 03v90TS 003965 o5 SiAjeuy pue sodey snopaid] T

AN 2 U0 5/ [9A3] AU[END 3

sishjeuy pue syioday snoyad|

l00°000'T$ 000§ 000t “Siuawa.inbal Aanins 1o (03u03 Axenb wiopiad] L
000§ 0005 05 Ranins pialy 10} E1ep paoaljon piay s50000d] 9
l0000z's$. 0008 007’5 v sl uueyd Buoje Hueql
-01°4ueq “W1a patepdn ue Suneain Jo sas0dind a1 1o} UOHDRIXA 2iea) Wiojad
00057z 0005 0s7z$ JUDWR5Ea VS U3 UI3IM S30UEUaLINGGE pUnoid aA0GE pu Bupua) 91230 b
l00°050°s: 0005 0s0'e§ Suo9s $5073 [eue> opinoid| €
l00°0s.'e: 000§ osC'E§ v 0401 /1011103 MaU 195 PUE (01105 BUsho 18301| T
00057z 000 0s72§ Samea) afeueip 101 T
ssz6e'z$ 000 £6E'7S T T o1 SUONEIAPISUO) [ABWUOINUT X1
erzvezs 0005 weTs [ z [ SUonEIapIU) MIIGERNSIE)
erzvezs 000§ weTs [ z [ 3505 2/Geq01d Jo UoIId0 AeulwIRid
o9 zzs: 000§ ec5$ z T € SUONEIRPISUO) JMOd PUE VAVDS
s8'1z8: 000§ Z3 v T S Uonesopy AN
s8'1z8: 000 Z3 v T S UOnen|en3 310y 55373 UORINIISUO) PUE [011U0) IIL
s8'1L8: 000§ Z3 v T S SisAeUY 2INpaups pue Bupuanba
s8'1z8: 000 Z3 v T S R
erzvezs 000 weTs [ z [ SauRUSIIIEN puE SuoneRdo 1
000§ 0005 05 o Uonesapisuos o) sawieied]
log"vv6'ss 0005 sv6'8S o [ v 9 o7 Tiodal [eurj pue yei| e
UE SOTT "YOTT E0TT S¥5eL) Wiom piay Usap Aueuiaid
o008 o s ° 0 s g ettt »dornog oo oooutos e,
00°sz9§ 0005 5195 7 GOSIOM UOII9[5 1eUIaAIY /MaIN0) ewaDs|
000§ 0005 05 o Uopajes euaiew adig| 4
870’98 0008 £10'9$ s v v 9z (suondo (axa] YBIY v) snoke| anjeusayle voydis| e
000§ 000§ 05 0 SBumeiq pue Udisaq JNewaps| 6
18e0zT$ 0005 v v o o z T z 553798 J0 1502 parewnsg
199598 000§ 159% o z o T € SUONEIAPISU0 UAWaSES PUE MO A
wozets 000§ oze'TS o o o z 5 SUONEIRPUO) [EIBWIOINT
. )
l06'022'1$ 0008 127853 4 v 4 0 ¢ ot AN Bupsixa uleIqo 03 UoReUIPI00 [en1ul pue )
S 000§ TS v z [ z T 5 S1oedw oFeureiq
o005 0005 05 o Toges (b
hoos o00s s B TonE30] 55353¢ 0 (A43ei90a0)
suonipuo> Sunsixa pue “Swiensuos jeaishyd (0
o00$ 000§ 05 o dinb i E @
loo0$ 0005 05 o Rempeos ssa37e JO IpIM SIAEIEAY (2
eacTs 0005 acTs v o o v 3 [ S5a098 J0 eW0aD T
000§ 0005 05 o Sseov Jo uonenjend] q
veBErTS 0005 6Ev'TS v v T 5 {IPUUELD UIEI VATS JO 3P 1583) WG [IE1UON0) WoJ) 55339y,
" " . Tawsses
veseyTs 0008 il v v ' ° Bunspe@ s,vrs Y8 (py Binqupuky Agsoxn) 0OTZ 4 woy ssay
000§ 000§ 05 0 59301 559%2¢ W301-8U0| [eHUA0d oM) IEN[ENT|
loo0$ 000 05 0 Uonen|en3 sse03y adURUAIUEN - UonEvodsuell| 8
loo0$ 000 05 0 onenjens einpnng| L
. “Suzid s07em|
posests  Jooos pe'ss : i & | ooes e e supous smespiy sossnsosip o vt i doron]
“uoydls a3 Jo WeaSUMOP puR WiEasdn 123; 0DE JO ANUIIA 19310Jd UM
rssv'es 000§ ssv'es 9 v z z T o SUOIPUOY MO} 3L J0j PAROGDRI} AIGR]IEAE PUE 23A3] BURSIXG JO SAUADLP)
u Aynuap) pue nuap| Auan1aq
o008 oo0s s N Susson|
00-80-€0TD 0} Ue|d PAPUILIIOD1 BUILLIZIZP 0} GD40H YIIM 31LUIPIO0)
lezverts pev'Ts 3 T 3 9 5>
e 0008 s ° 40 ausuidojonap 1ioddns 03 (9514195 uj 93seq T) suopIpuOD odueuweA| T
SELLT'YS 0008 LeTvs 0z z €7 (so11eq Mau y10q) suonipuo) uBisaa| '€
vezos'es 000§ 20s'eS o z T SUonIpUOS (1EM J0 3169) UoPPNARI0)| T3
loo0$ 000§ 05 0 Suonipuo> Funsia] T3
[00°0§ [0008 Jos 0 3PN OF 5011BURDS [P (1) JN0J 03 dN [2POIN ‘SUOEINWIS MOI3/[2PON
S8 vos'ss 0005 s98'SS [ z €€ “SUOEAI25q0 2315 UO paseq PAYIGIE) SUOMIpUG) BUSIXA (PO T
loe'898'7S 000§ 898'2S z T v v T 6 y pue s o e
000§ 0005 05 o 5930pdN PO SINEIPAH| 9
SLEVL'TS 00'0$ vrL'TS g z 0 ot GD40H AW BUISS0J5 UBAINS GD40H JO JUSWUBI[Ea] J0 BUISSO.D Lan|nd| A
20e(da1 /j2uuew GD40H 110 Uado 01 AUNGEIN AUILIZIIP 01 GIIDH UM 1eUIPI0)
v6:091T$ 000§ 1oT'T$ v T T 9 51502 U sa18a1e115 1M JO 2183 ‘SUOIPUOD BuNSIXG 0} SaRU e1ep ApuapI| b
scevsts 0008 roLTS 8 z o Swowao.8e Auadoid papIosa. ‘siuawasea ‘spaap virs| 4
—_ ¥ - TomRE0|
ravess 0008 prees o ¢ v 0u J0 519112] pue ‘S3oWaRIBR BusSOI> ‘SBUIMEIP Aue BuPNUL e1ep A n; °
osziz'ts 0005 7S z z S {1oUe uie “waishs Bunsix) SIPO JINEAPAH]
vezcTs 0005 €eLTs v z z 8 suoday
lvvezL'ts 0008 €ec1$ v [ [ 8 sueid| ‘q
ss 1288 0005 Z3 v T o S Suoneinge: pia| e
q popinoud
oo o s o xeq ety e s doq e Wsaa o menen bt o) ¢
[zr1oss 0005 = z T T v o] €
vvsv0zs 000 8102S s T A T oad-vurs mamoy| T
l60'999'% 000§ 999'2§ z z o $8URaB|N 21M0Y 55920 UOKINSUO))
szsEsTS 000§ BESTS 9 9 @ SBunaa dn-moiio]
losoL0'ss 000§ 105§ [ [ 3 Saunaon| q
evavezs 0005 Br9'21S vz vz 85 Sopuage aqea)dde [im 91UpI00) | E
000§ 000§ 05 0 SWUSWa1Nbay AioTeINBay (201 BUIWIRG €901 UOREUpIoo) kousBy| 8
loo0$ 0005 05 0 Thpuon) Sunonu| £
sca90'E 0005 690°6S A 5T T Jonuos wawnsea| 9
00°9£8's: 000§ 9€8'6S v B 8 g ve (50/v0) Saueinssy ALenD pue [ohuod Aent| &
loz'5v0's: 0005 o0'ss o o z € s 5 & TaIna) JUBWWI03 y3d] 3
190'790'8: 00°05 [v90'8$ z [ [i 8 VE (583w 9 03 dn “Jye3s qns 1§ 399 € 03 dn) sBudaW [endIA| P
00°sz9§ 0005 5195 z 7 VIS i sBunaaws a1epdn 190103 [ENVIA ALUON
l8e650'vS 0005 650'v§ z s s [ Suoneansanul | q
oeoEe'Es 000§ oE'ES A z T z z & J5S1A 935 U019 U] (1) 9U0 'VATS (1M BUG9Ll 0B (el au0| €
000§ 0005 05 o S| v
e9zas'es 000§ £85'ES s s o o Suoday smiews palosd| €
rzeres 000§ zor'es s z @ Sa3epdn pue wwawdoaraq aInpayDs aujeses| €
szovots 000 970'2TS 09 89 JuaweBeue [e9ua| T
Z€'50808% (398) uawaseuey 13f01d - TOTT YseL
SDIAYIS JIsvE
oozets 00'9T$ 00'8TZS. 00'992$ vy Mvy |
[T i
doid oday Aeuy o1 qe1 mamay Sugapopy | VW21 HOMOI a%euen sonosay | wayyseL sad
198png (%01 +3503) stunoaw | msishewy | Agers nopon Agay Aoning ¥ uonenjenz sy aaueuUEW pue sishjeuy 2auiBu3 aloid
SuoouiBug | adojs ana | PN | PIRH Augennasuo) worswomopur| L paloig | selem‘uopouq | sinoH jeror T°ON ¥3QHO Y¥OM
oL “su3 ans ™ ov eior-ans o 7 woss _ S ————— A A e S 7 . RS p— venouuser | o0 | ypuas uewog
9z0z/Lz/t  3iva

NMOQ)V3yg 334 ONIY3IINIONI

199f04d syuawanoadw Tz uoydis



ZJo g ebed

000 I o v [3 [ v [ (3 [ (3 St 23 0z B [ [3 vz 8 v (3 [ 9 [ 3 € 3 B (3 osz otz 05 IE303ns sinoH
N § . wad
ooveL'es ov'es s Jeul 341 01Ul 51RO e 23es0ds00u pue ssaippe [jeys weysuoo| "

ooos s s “BISEL NG Ul PIPRIPUI 1103§2) SIUSWIWO) Y3d P MaIa)

01 VIS UM GOYSHIOM M3IA3I JUIWILIO € PUSE [[2ys Je3nsuo))
00°8€8°25 jo8s'zs 05 398 Aq padojanap y3d 31 JO SUORIS 4eIp MIINDY
000 05 JEININIS PUE (62104731095 AleuIifold (e)
00'0eL'v$. l00Ers 05 ¥3d 321D J0 SUOI9S FuIMolioy a1 ofPAdY|

. o . ¥Peqpas apiA0id pue FATEIDYE UOYAS PaIAPISU)
00'zegts 00268t ozeTs o 4pea 10} 398 Aq (240 $1502 UOMNASUO) 2[qeqold J0 Uotudo Maay|

_— —_— » “uoda pue uoneBsenu! [e21utpe1028 wioy uonewsou
o0seeTTs oSS ostors i Suisn saanpnats Joy sishjeue Ageis/Aungels Areunuiiaid wioad|

“aIeUI2I[E 4283 JO 5103/501d PUE SUOIEIaPISUOD AN|IGEIINIISUOD)
00'6T'1$ 00s1vIS o615 05 101511 2pIA0IG “SUGIYXD 1noAe] 308 U0 Y9eqpavy BuipiAoid Aq
saneusa1le uoyds (€103 (in0j)  Jof SIN0ke] a21[eulj 01 398 UM HOM|

W S . “uonaNAISU0 pasodoad Supnp pa
o0'z68'ts 002681 loects 0 20 pIn03 1ey) SaANEUIAIe J12M JO 216 J0 WUWAOIRAP YA 308

§ . “SaBWRINGaJ [0U03 VOISO o S AYIUap Blyoud fesausd pue
osioes ootz <1 > Suns1 Buifapow 1jnespAy uo paseq siuiay aana) pasodosd 308 M3y
- § VIS i dousy oM SUEROW € 10] STAIa)
il ooeses oevs > pue epuate 398 MaIAa1 pue 3@ M s3nsas Buljapow JneIpAY MaIKaY
“uea)
Uoneiq[e> [9p0w © a1 398 BusIsse SApNPU VYIS U3 01 1asaid|

l00's2vs 00°eLv$ logts 0s 17 [3pou € P N n

Inesphy!
Buiisixo 243 40 UORENIERD 343 YAIM JOR 3SISSE 03 dOYSHIOM [ENYIIA PURY|

do1q vodoy WoI oMUl
Supsay qe1 | vonespsanul Mooy Sujepon peat jeotupay soBeuen sounosoy | wau yseL sad

193pna 1 +1509) sishreuy nopon Agay Aanin erBwUOA: 0/v0 uonenjens ssaxy 2aueuRIuIEH oeLOdsUE) wpy awn seouuz slosd "

P (%01 ) 3 sish1 jeorup00 | pry P01 Aaq 'S L 3 eNASUC) ans nenien e 2ok ' WOI SHomoyul InespAH P woloid a1 4owaia | SINOH [eroL 1°ON ¥3QHO YoM

Suuasurdug | adois saner
JoseuEn TeBojooeupiy | 1oweBnsanul whuaps Soloysel | Mai> BunEs0] | Ioweulpiooy | Jowuipiooy avo /el Todunys senog
P - P . - E nug [ A A Horpesg A

fei0L 5u0 ans sy DY morans | manuew g _ sy ot 7 way s _ wd 7 wa s i g | wa | D Wa'nuz | sowaua nug | Sioapro Auer| sayen huer | UEIER a1onon nin | faan soes | APEEAND | L0 v m "] wd soupsen euuar | 7j09 ushels | Ausyog suyy | unwpy oy wep auuser Suenn Wpussy uepog

9z0z/te/t  3va

NMOQ)V3¥8 334 ONIYIINIONI

199f04d syuawanoadw Tz uoydis



| Jo | abeq "UMOYS %S} |Dea 04 S|IeIap [euoiippe Joy Juswndop buidods 1afoid 895

Vdrs
62/0L & 97/62/0T YL 9z/62/0T Nyl Aep T 01sjuawnoog usisag Aseuiwiaid [euld HWGnS /£°g 1z
97/87/0T PPM  9T/ST/OT NYL sAep QT 807 3USWWO) pue SJUBWWOD S,VYH[S SS2IPPY 9°8 0¢
vL/01L 9z/¥1/0T PP  97/¥T/0T PaM  AepT VYIS Ym doysyiom malnay Juswwo) §'g 6l
9¢/€T/0T an1 9z/67/69nL shep Tt usisaQ SuleaUI3u3 Wija.d JO MINSY VYIS ¥'8 8l
g82/6 97/87/6 UON  97/87/6 UOIN Aep 1 VYrsS 03 Moday udisag Adeujwijaid Nwqgns €°8 Ll
9z/st/6 4 9T/vT/6 UOW  sAep 0T J0/v0 T'8 9l

sajewis3
9z/11/6 144 97/ST/SUOIN  sAep 08 150D pue ‘syqiyx3 ‘uolesedald Moday T'8 Gl

uoday

yoday ubisag bueauibug Aieuiunjaad dojanaq :g dysel 9z/62/0T nyL 9z/sz/s uo shAep pIT usisa@ 8unasuldul Aseuiwija.d dojanaq g dsel vl
Bulapo d1neapAH Aleulwijaigd ;2 ysel & 9z/se/6 4 9T/Sst/S UoiN  sAep 06 8uij@po dinelpAH Aseulwijaad £ ysel €l
SI9pP|OY3e1S Y1IM UOIIBUIPIoO)) :9 )Sse] 9¢/8/0T nyL 9¢/€T/€ 144 sAep 0ST SJ9p|OyaXelS YIIM Uolleulploo) 9 ysel 4}
6L/9 @ 9¢/61/9 144 9¢/61/9 144 Aep 1 191197 dopjsaQ $324n0saY [ean}n) HWANS €'G L
6L/9 ® 9¢/61/9 114 9¢/6T/9 114 Aep T OWRIA JudBWSSassY 9IS Aeulwiaid Hwgns ¢'s oL

131397 $924N0S3Y |elnyn)
9z/61/9144  97/0€/€ UOIN  sAep 09 3 OWDI|A JUBWISSISSY dUS WI[d1d dJedaid T°g 6
|e3uaWwuoIAUg 3G Yse] 9z/61/914 9z/0€/€ UoN  sAep 09 [e3uswuolIAUg G ysel 8
ypoday pue uonebiysanu| [ed1UyI}0N) :py dse] 9z/te/L ¥4 9z/0g/€ UOIN  shAep 06 Moday pue uonesiisanu| |ed1UYI3)039 :p ysel L
uoneuipioo) A31n pue IS :€ dysel ® 97/61/9144  97/0€/€ UOIN  sAep 09 uonjeuipoo) AN pue INS ‘€ ysel 9
sjoi3uo0) pue siydeibodo] - Aanuns :g dyse) 9z/te/sd 9t/z/e uolN  shep 09 sjo43uo0) pue dlydesgodoy - Asnins g yjsel S
juawabeueyy 3afoid :| ysel 9¢/62/0T Nyl 9z/tt/T 4 shep g/t juawaSeuelA 129foid :T ysel v
penss| paa>oid 03} 130N 9z/LT/T 9z/Lt/cud shepo panss| paadoid 03 3110N €
9z/9z/tnyL  9z/9z/tnyL  shepo 10e13U0) SBNSS| VH[S z
b () 9z/6z/oT nyL  9z/9z/znylL shep 9/1 T "ON 49pJQ 4O/ - spudwadnosdwi Tz uoydis | |

I A S P M e T e A e e
Leoe | ysiuig uels| uoneing aweN dse al

FTNAIHDS NOISIA ONIFIINIONI AYVNINITIHUd

SLNIWIAOUdINI LZ NOHJIS YVirs
DNI ‘199




ASCEND CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, PLLC
5820 Valley Forge Dr. 107

Houston, TX 77057

832-498-1477

DRAFT PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
DATE: January 8, 2026

CLIENT: BGE, Inc.

PROJECT: San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21 Preliminary Engineering

Ms. Lizanne Douglas, P.E.
Project Manager

BGE, Inc.

10777 Westheimer Rd, Suite 400
Houston, TX 77042

Ms. Douglas,

Ascend Consulting & Engineering, PLLC (Ascend) is grateful for the opportunity to provide quality
preliminary engineering services to BGE, Inc. (BGE) for improvements to Siphon 21, located along the
main canal system in Barrett, Texas, owned and operated by the San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA). The
following sections of this proposal provide information about the project background (1.0), anticipated
scope of work (2.0), deliverables and schedule (3.0), assumptions and limitations (4.0), and level of
effort (5.0) based on my understanding of the project.

1.0 - PROJECT BACKGROUND

BGE has been engaged by SJRA to provide preliminary engineering, final design, and
procurement/construction phase services for siphon improvements at Siphon 21. Siphon 21 is located
on SJRA’s main canal system in Barrett, Texas and crosses under Harris County Flood Control District
(HCFCD) channel unit G103-05-00. The existing system consists of dual 48-inch and single 60-inch
reinforced concrete pipes with reinforced concrete intake/discharge structures. The existing siphon
system is reaching the end of its service life and improvements are required to ensure capacity and raw
water delivery to SJIRA’s customers. The siphon improvements may include the demolition and removal
and/or abandonment of the existing siphon pipes, demolition of existing concrete structures,
construction of new dual siphon pipes, construction of new headwall and wingwall structures,
improvements to the levees upstream/downstream of the new intake/discharge structures, installation
of staff gauges, stop logs/slots, trash management/removal, improvement of maintenance access to the
siphon, and installation of water control gates. BGE is entering into an initial work order with SJRA for
preliminary engineering services and has requested that Ascend provide preliminary engineering design
support services. Final design and procurement/construction phase services are anticipated to follow
preliminary design and will be a separate proposal/work order.

2.0 - SCOPE OF WORK

Based on coordination with BGE staff, Ascend has developed the following scope of work and associated
assumptions to estimate the level of effort provided in Section 5.0 of this proposal letter. The scope of
work to be performed by Ascend staff is anticipated to include the following tasks:

1of8



ASCEND CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, PLLC
5820 Valley Forge Dr. 107

Houston, TX 77057

832-498-1477

DRAFT PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
DATE: January 8, 2026

CLIENT: BGE, Inc.

PROJECT: San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21 Preliminary Engineering

1. Task 1: Project Management Support

a. Project Management Assistance — Ascend may assist Project Manager with the
following:

i. Review Baseline Schedule Development and Updates prepared by BGE

ii. Review Project Status Reports prepared by BGE

iii. Review Meeting Materials prepared by BGE
iv. Review subconsultant deliverables for environmental, survey, SUE, and
geotechnical efforts at high level to assist with development of siphon layouts

b. Meetings — Ascend will participate in the following meetings:

i. Kickoff meeting (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)

ii. Monthly progress meetings (virtual, 1 hour)

iii. Internal team coordination meetings (virtual, 1 hour)
iv. H&H workshop (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)
v. Alternative selection workshop (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)
vi. PER review workshop (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)
vii. Up to 2 meetings with HCFCD to assess ability to open-cut/replace culvert
crossing (virtual, 2 hours total)

c. QA/QC- Ascend shall provide QC and QA review of the draft PER report and final PER
report. Ascend will consolidate comments in a comment resolution matrix which will be
sent to the Project Manager.

2. Task 2: Preliminary Engineering Design

a. Ascend shall participate in one site visit with BGE (4 hours total including drive time).

b. Ascend shall review existing data provided by SIRA and provide comments/questions
about potential data gaps to BGE project manager.

c. Preliminary Engineering Report - Ascend shall perform the following services in
conjunction with the preparation of the PER for the Siphon 21 Improvements.
Activities/facilities to be evaluated may include but are not necessarily limited to
removal and/or abandonment of existing siphon pipes; demolition and removal of
existing headwall structures; installation of new siphon pipes and headwall structures,
water control gates, trash management/removal and stop logs; armoring of canal levee
segments in the vicinity of the siphon; and installation of infrastructure and
appurtenances for future SCADA equipment implementation.

i. Incorporate pertinent data based on review of existing information and
subconsultant deliverables. Review environmental considerations and utility
conflicts to determine impact on cost/schedule and how findings may influence
layouts.

20f8



ASCEND CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, PLLC
5820 Valley Forge Dr. 107

Houston, TX 77057
832-498-1477

DRAFT PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
DATE: January 8, 2026

CLIENT: BGE, Inc.

PROJECT: San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21 Preliminary Engineering

vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Assist BGE with the coordination Harris County Flood Control District (HCFCD) to
determine limitations and requirements for the Project. Consider these
limitations and requirements in all engineering efforts. Coordination items are
anticipated to include HCFCD channel culvert crossing avoidance/replacement.
Coordinate with BGE to understand requirements of other stakeholders
(coordination provided by BGE) to inform siphon layouts.
Develop up to 4 (four) siphon preliminary layout sketches for BGE review and
development into exhibits. Layouts will include open cut and trenchless options
and will consider relocation of HCFCD channel culverts, other utilities, and
potential waters of the U.S.
Attend virtual workshop to assist BGE engineers with the evaluation of the
existing hydraulic model and guide BGE development of modeling scenarios to
present to the SIRA. The workshop will also include assisting BGE with the
development of a model calibration plan.
Review hydraulic modeling results with BGE engineers and review BGE agenda
and exhibits for a modeling workshop with SJRA. Attend hydraulic modeling
workshop with the SIRA and BGE at the SIRA office (effort included in PM task).
Review BGE proposed levee heights based on hydraulic modeling results and
general profile. Identify limits of erosion control requirements.
Assist BGE with development of care of water alternatives that could be utilized
during proposed construction.
Work with BGE to finalize layouts for 4 (four) total siphon alternatives by
providing feedback on BGE layout exhibits. Provide list of constructability
considerations and pros/cons of each alternative. Participate in an alternative
review/selection workshop with BGE and SJIRA that will inform final 2 (two)
alternatives for further development in PER. If additional options are requested,
a proposal will be provided as additional service.
Perform preliminary stability/settlement analysis for structures using
information from geotechnical investigation and report.
Review Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC) by BGE for each
considered siphon alternative (two total for PER) and provide feedback.
Develop the following sections of draft PER:

1. Preliminary Geotechnical & Structural Evaluation
Review and comment on draft PER sections developed by BGE, anticipated to
include:

1. Existing Conditions

a. Existing Siphon
b. Survey

30f8



ASCEND CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, PLLC
5820 Valley Forge Dr. 107

Houston, TX 77057
832-498-1477

DRAFT PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

DATE: January 8, 2026
CLIENT: BGE, Inc.

PROJECT: San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21 Preliminary Engineering

xiii.

Xiv.

Dive Inspection

Environmental Investigation

Utility Investigation & Conflicts
f. Geotechnical Investigation

2. Stakeholder Coordination

® o o

a. HCFCD

b. HCPct3

c. HCED

d. TxDOT

e. Utility Companies

f. Barrett, Texas
3. Design Constraints
4. Preliminary Design Alternatives
5. Hydraulic Analysis
a. Existing Conditions
b. Proposed Conditions
¢. Construction Scenarios
6. Constructability Considerations
a. Traffic Control
b. Access
c. Bypass of Flows
7. Site Access, Operations & Maintenance

a. Access
b. Gates
c. Stop Logs

d. SCADA/Electrical needs

8. Opinions of Probable Construction Cost

9. Conclusions & Recommendations
Ascend shall attend a comment review workshop with SIRA to review draft PER
comments (effort included in PM task).
Ascend shall address and incorporate all comments on Ascend-developed
sections into the final PER and perform review to verify BGE-developed sections
addressed comments.

40f 8



ASCEND CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, PLLC
5820 Valley Forge Dr. 107

Houston, TX 77057

832-498-1477

DRAFT PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
DATE: January 8, 2026

CLIENT: BGE, Inc.
PROJECT: San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21 Preliminary Engineering

3.0 — DELIVERABLES & SCHEDULE
The following project deliverables will be provided to BGE staff via email according to the following

anticipated schedule (with anticipated notice to proceed in January 2026):

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Review comments on Baseline Schedule/Updates prepared by BGE — within 5 business days of
receipt
Review comments on Project Status Reports prepared by BGE — within 3 business days of receipt
Review comments on Meeting Materials prepared by BGE — within 2 business days of receipt
QC Review comments for PER, consolidated in matrix — within 10 business days of receipt of
compiled draft/final PER (with all sections, as intended to go to SIRA)
Review of existing data findings/questions — within 10 business days of receipt of information
Layout sketches for 4 siphon alternatives (to include SCADA and O&M needs per SJRA
coordination) & care of water concepts — within 30 business days of receipt of the following:

a. Existing data including record drawings for existing siphon and other pertinent data (i.e.
dive inspection results if applicable)
Survey Data including existing topographic data and property boundaries
Subsurface Utility Investigation data/findings including utility locations/depths

oo o

Draft environmental findings including delineations of potential waters of the U.S.

e. Draft geotechnical findings including boring logs and soil types/properties
Review comments on BGE agenda and exhibits for modeling workshop with SIRA — within 3
business days of receipt.
Review of BGE proposed levee heights based on hydraulic modeling results and general profile.
Identify limits of erosion control requirements — within 5 business days of receipt of modeling
results
Review comments on BGE layout (4 total) exhibits. Provide list of constructability considerations
and pros/cons of each alternative — within 10 business days of receipt of exhibits.
Preliminary stability/stability analysis for structures — results to be provided within 45 days of
receipt of required geotechnical information.
Review comments on Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC) by BGE for each
considered siphon alternative (two total for PER) — within 15 business days of receipt of OPCCs
and final layout exhibits (plan/profile)
Draft PER section (Preliminary Geotechnical & Structural Evaluation) — within 45 business days
of Alternative Selection Workshop
Review of Draft PER sections developed by BGE — within 15 business days of receipt

50f8



ASCEND CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, PLLC
5820 Valley Forge Dr. 107

Houston, TX 77057

832-498-1477

DRAFT PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
DATE: January 8, 2026

CLIENT: BGE, Inc.
PROJECT: San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21 Preliminary Engineering

14. Final PER sections to address SJRA/BGE comments — within 15 business days of receipt of

comments

4.0 - ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITATIONS
The scope of services and project liability is subject to the following assumptions and limitations:

Scope of work does not include in-person meetings unless specifically noted. Unless noted
otherwise, meetings are assumed to be virtual.

Scope of work does not include hard copy deliverables; only electronic deliverables will be
provided.

Final design efforts and procurement/construction phase services are not included in this
scope of work.

Ascend assumes QC review will be provided by BGE for Ascend work products; if needed,
Ascend can subcontract QC review services for an additional fee.

Ascend staff will perform preliminary analyses using models and data/information obtained
from SJRA and BGE/their subconsultants and is not responsible for accuracy of information
received or any errors/omissions associated with data provided.

Ascend will perform preliminary analyses for the final condition and will not perform
detailed evaluation or analyses for construction loading scenarios. Analyses for special
construction loading scenarios, as applicable, will be the responsibility of the contractor and
shall be required to be submitted for review per project specifications developed during
final design.

Ascend staff is not responsible for determining or providing environmental permitting or
agency approval efforts as may be required for the project.

BGE will provide AutoCAD drawings for exhibits; layouts provided by Ascend will be
preliminary sketches for BGE use in development of AutoCAD drawings.

Ascend will utilize best practices for review efforts for probable construction cost but does
not and cannot guarantee construction contract pricing subject to general market
fluctuations or other external factors.

Structural analyses and design of gates are not included in this scope of work aside from
identifying preliminary dimensional requirements and anticipating load transfer to the
reinforced concrete structure.

Structural analyses and design of the stop logs and operation system are not included in this
scope of work aside from identifying preliminary dimensional requirements and anticipating
load transfer to the reinforced concrete structure.

The pricing of this proposal is valid for 3 months from the date of this proposal letter.

60f8



ASCEND CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, PLLC
5820 Valley Forge Dr. 107

Houston, TX 77057

832-498-1477

DRAFT PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
DATE: January 8, 2026

CLIENT: BGE, Inc.

PROJECT: San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21 Preliminary Engineering

5.0 - LEVEL OF EFFORT

The attached detailed level of effort has been developed according to the tasks and assumptions
provided in the previous sections of this proposal letter. Ascend will deliver the project for a lump sum
fee of $48,375. Ascend sincerely appreciates the opportunity and looks forward to exceeding BGE and
SJRA expectations on this project. Please do not hesitate to reach out with comments or questions
related to this proposal.

Sincerely,

Abby Crockett, P.E.
Owner
Ascend Consulting & Engineering, PLLC

70f 8



ASCEND CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, PLLC

5820 Valley Forge Dr. 107
Houston, TX 77057
832-498-1477

DRAFT PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

DATE: January 8, 2026
CLIENT: BGE, Inc.

PROJECT: San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21 Preliminary Engineering

ASCEND CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, PLLC

LEVEL OF EFFORT

DATE: 1/8/2026

CLIENT: BGE, Inc.

PROJECT: SJRA Siphon 21 Improvements
FEE TYPE: Lump Sum

LABOR:

ASCEND STAFF: Abby Crockett, P.E.

PROJECT ROLE: Senior Professional Engineer

BILLING RATE: $215.00

TASK

EFFORT DESCRIPTION

EFFORT HOURS

1 - Project Management Support

a.i.Review Baseline Schedule Development and Updates prepared by BGE

3

a.ii.Review Project Status Reports prepared by BGE

3

a.iii.Review Meeting Materials prepared by BGE

a.iv.Review subconsultant deliverables for environmental, survey, SUE, and
geotechnical efforts at high level to assist with development of siphon
layouts

b.i.Kickoff meeting (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)

b.ii.Monthly progress meetings (virtual, 1 hour)

b.iii.Internal team coordination (virtual, 1 hour)

b.iv.H&H workshop (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)

wlofo|w|s

b.v.Alternative selection workshop (in-person, 3 hours total including drive
time)

b.vi.PER review workshop (in-person, 3 hours total including drive time)

wlw

b.vii.Up to 2 meetings with HCFCD to assess ability to open-cut/replace
culvert crossing (virtual, 2 hours total)

c.QA/QC — Ascend shall provide QC and QA review of the draft PER report
and final PER report. Ascend will comments in a
resolution matrix which will be sent to the Project Manager.

2 - Preliminary Engineering Design

a.Ascend shall participate in one site visit with BGE (4 hours total including
drive time).

b.Ascend shall review existing data provided by SIRA and provide
comments/questions about potential data gaps to BGE project manager.

c.i.Incorporate pertinent data based on review of existing information and
subconsultant delit bles. Review envir | considerations and utility
conflicts to determine impact on cost/schedule and how findings may
influence layouts.

c.ii.Assist BGE with the coordination Harris County Flood Control District
(HCFCD) to determine limitations and requirements for the Project. Consider
these limitations and requirements in all engineering efforts. Coordination
items are anticipated to include HCFCD channel culvert crossing
avoidance/replacement. Coordinate with BGE to understand requirements
of other stakeholders (coordination provided by BGE) to inform siphon
layouts.

c.iii.Develop up to 4 siphon preliminary layout sketches for BGE review and
development into exhibits. Layouts will include open cut and trenchless
options and will consider relocation of HCFCD channel culverts, other
utilities, and waters of the U.S.

c.iv.Attend virtual workshop to assist BGE engineers with the evaluation of
the existing hydraulic model and guide BGE development of modeling
scenarios to present to the SIRA. The workshop will also include assisting
BGE with the development of a model calibration plan.

c.v.Review hydraulic modeling results with BGE engineers and review BGE
agenda and exhibits for a modeling workshop with SIRA. Attend hydraulic
modeling workshop with the SIRA and BGE at the SIRA office (effort
included in PM task).

c.vi.Review BGE proposed levee heights based on hydraulic modeling
results and general profile. Identify limits of erosion control requirements.

c.vii.Assist BGE with development of care of water alternatives that could
be utilized during proposed construction.

c.viii.Work with BGE to finalize layouts for 4 (four) total siphon alternatives
by providing feedback on BGE layout exhibits. Provide list of constructability
considerations and pros/cons of each alternative.

c.ix.Perform preliminary stability/settlement analysis for structures using
information from geotechnical investigation and report.

50

c.x.Review Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC) by BGE for each
considered siphon alternative (two total for PER) and provide feedback.

c.xi.Develop sections of draft PER: Preliminary Geotechnical & Structural
Evaluation

20

c.xii.Review draft sections of PER developed by BGE.

12

c.xiii.Ascend shall attend a comment review workshop with SIRA to review
draft PER comments (effort included in PM task).

c.xiv.Ascend shall address and incorporate all comments into the final PER.

16

TOTAL HOURS|

225

TOTAL LABOR EFFORT]

$

48,375.00

80of8



s i
ENGINEERING CORP.

November 26, 2025

Mr. Lawrence Goldberg, P.E., ENV SP, FASCE
BGE, Inc.

10777 Westheimer Suite 400

Houston, TX 77042

Re: Geotechnical Investigation Proposal
Proposed SJRA Siphon 21 Improvements
Harris County, Texas
AEC Proposal No. G2025-11-10

Dear Mr. Goldberg,

Aviles Engineering Corporation (AEC) is pleased to present this geotechnical investigation proposal for
the proposed Improvements to San Jacinto River Authority (SJRA) Siphon 21 (which crosses under
existing Harris County Flood Control District (HCFCD) Channel Unit No. G103-05-00 on the SJRA
Main Canal) and adjacent Canal levee in Harris County, Texas (Houston/ Harris County Key Map
419Z). According to the information provided to AEC, we understand that the improvements may
include (i) demolition and removal and/or abandonment of existing dual 48-inch siphon pipes,
construction of new single 60-inch siphon pipe and construction of new headwalls and wingwalls; and (ii)
upstream and downstream levee improvements. The improvements are required due to the age and
structural integrity of the siphon. Siphon and levee improvements will ensure reliable conveyance and
hydraulic capacity in the Main Canal to meet contracted and potential future raw water demands of
SJRA’s Main Canal customers. AEC has previously drilled three 30 feet deep borings at the south of
Siphon 21 in 2017, and the existing boring (B-1) close to Siphon 21 is shown on the attached boring
location plan. Please note that (i) the existing 30 feet deep borings indicate that the subsurface soils are
not uniform; and (ii) it is desirable to have boring depths of 50 feet for the settlement analysis of siphon
pipes and headwalls.

Therefore, AEC proposes to perform two (2) 50-foot deep borings near Siphon 21 as shown on the
attached boring location plan. Total drilling footage is 100 feet.

We will perform a site reconnaissance prior to drilling and mark the boring locations. We request that the
existing underground utilities drawings, if available, be provided to us prior to arrival of the drill rig. We
will contact Texas 811 to check underground utilities; however, Texas 811 does not locate water lines,
storm, or sanitary sewers. We anticipate that accessing Siphon 21 site and the levees will not be an issues
since the site is located inside of SIRA ROW.

AEC assumes that the boring locations can be accessed by an ATV drilling rig and concrete coring will
not be required. Samples will be obtained in the borings continuously in the top 20 feet and at 5-foot
intervals thereafter. Undisturbed samples will be obtained of cohesive soils by pushing a Shelby tube
(ASTM D 1587). Standard Penetration Test samples will be obtained of granular soils (ASTM D 1586).
Representative portions of all soil samples will be sealed, packaged and transported to our laboratory. We
will note any visual evidence or odor indicating hazardous materials if encountered in the samples. Water
level readings will be noted during drilling, upon completion of drilling, and 24 hours after completion of
drilling where is possible; then the boreholes will be backfilled with bentonite chips. All the non-

5790 Windfern * Houston, Texas 77041 « (713) 895-7645



BGE, Inc.

Proposed SJRA Siphon 21 Improvements A LEs
Harris County, Texas - [ ]
AEC Proposal No. G2025-11-10 [T ]

November 26, 2025 ENGINEERING CORP.

Page 2 of 4

contaminated soil cuttings and drilling fluid will be disposed on-site; however, if contaminated soils are
encountered, the contaminated soil cuttings and drilling fluid will be disposed by a qualified
environmental company to be hired by SJRA or the property owner at no cost to AEC.

Laboratory testing may consist of moisture contents, Atterberg limits, percentage passing No. 200 sieve,
sieve analysis and double hydrometer test, crumb tests, unconfined compression, and unconsolidated-
undrained triaxial tests depending on the soil types encountered. Two (2) consolidated undrained (CU)
triaxial tests, two (2) consolidation tests, four (4) crumb tests and two (2) double hydrometer tests will
also be performed.

We will analyze the field and laboratory data, incorporate findings from previous boring logs, and
develop geotechnical report including (i) boring location plan and new boring logs, and the existing
boring logs; (ii) summary of subsurface soil conditions and groundwater levels encountered; (iii) sieve
analysis/hydrometer test results with Dsy for scouring analysis; (iv) dispersive characteristics of
subsurface soils; and recommendations how to address the dispersive soils if encountered; (v) allowable
bearing capacities, design soil parameters for lateral earth pressure for the siphon, headwalls, and
wingwalls, and recommendations for backfill of headwalls/wingwalls; recommendations for installation
of the siphon by trenchless and open cut methods, including excavation shoring, bedding, and backfill;
(vi) recommendations for improvements of weak foundation soils such as cement-stabilized sand
replacement as needed; (vii) slope stability analysis on one or two selected cross sections of the levees
under short-term, long-term, and rapid drawdown conditions, and recommendations for stable slope
inclination as necessary; (viii) criteria for riprap and/or clay liner for erosion protection for the siphon and
levee, if required; (ix) dewatering guidelines for the siphon and levee construction. One pdf draft report,
and two hard copies of final report will be provided for each task.

The estimated time and materials with Not-To-Exceed maximum fees to perform the investigation is
$32,729.00 for the siphon replacement and levee rehabilitation, as presented in the Attachments. The fees
are based on the following assumptions: (1) any existing underground utilities will be located by others
prior to drilling. The field personnel will use Level D protection during the field exploration; (2) no
standby time (weather-related or incurred due to reasons beyond our control) is included; and (3) tree
clearing, traffic control, concrete coring, fence/gate removal, restoration of the site to its original
condition, surveying, fault study, plan/specification review, and environmental testing and evaluation are
not included. To help us maintain the estimated schedule and avoid additional fees, we request that we be
provided with all pertinent project details, drawings and any proposed/preferred geotechnical-related
design details at the onset.

Weather permitting, we will perform a site reconnaissance and mark the proposed boring locations in 2
weeks after the required project drawings, the signed contract, and notice-to-proceed are received.
Weather permitting and assuming no field delays, the drilling should take one to 2 weeks and the
laboratory tests about 6 to 8 weeks (due to triaxial CU tests and consolidation tests) after completion of
drilling. We anticipate providing you with the draft geotechnical report about 4.5 to 6 weeks after the
triaxial CU tests and consolidation tests are complete. We will submit final report two weeks after we
receive review comments on the draft report.



BGE, Inc.

Proposed SJRA Siphon 21 Improvements A LEs
Harris County, Texas - [ ]
AEC Proposal No. G2025-11-10 [T
November 26, 2025 ENGINEERING CORP.

Page 3 of 4

If any of the project details described in this proposal are incorrect or the scope described or the
assumptions listed need to be revised, please inform us immediately so we can revise the proposal as
necessary. To authorize us to proceed with the proposed geotechnical services, you may issue us a
Professional Services Contract to proceed with the services clearly reflecting the scope of services to be
performed and referencing this proposal.

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal, and look forward to working with you.

Respectfully submitted,
Aviles Engineering Corporation
(TBPE Firm Registration No. F-42)

— - /

Shou Ting Hu, M.S.C.E., P.E.
President

Attachments: Terms and Conditions, Itemized Fee Estimates, Boring Location Plan

AGREED TO THIS DAY OF ,
PRINTED NAME:

SIGNATURE:

TITLE:

FIRM:




BGE, Inc.

Proposed SJRA Siphon 21 Improvements A LEs
Harris County, Texas - [ ]
AEC Proposal No. G2025-11-10 [T ]
November 26, 2025 ENGINEERING CORP.

Page 4 of 4

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

STANDARD OF CARE

The CLIENT recognizes that actual subsurface conditions can vary from those observed and/or encountered at locations where
borings, surveys, or explorations are made, and that site conditions may change with time. Data interpretations and
recommendations by AVILES ENGINEERING will be based solely on information available to the AVILES ENGINEERING
during the investigation. AVILES ENGINEERING is responsible for those data, interpretations, and recommendations, but will not
be responsible for other parties’ interpretations or use of the information developed.

The CLIENT should expect AVILES ENGINEERING to perform Services under this PROPOSAL/AGREEMENT in a manner
consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the engineering profession practicing
contemporaneously under similar conditions in the locality of the project. No other warranty, expressed or implied, is made.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

AVILES ENGINEERING will develop a scope of services based on the project information provided by the CLIENT. AVILES
ENGINEERING shall not be responsible for problems arising due to inadequate number of borings and/or depths dictated or
required by others or inadequate engineering analyses, if the CLIENT reduces the scope of services and/or provides insufficient or
invalid project or other relevant information to AVILES ENGINEERING. In the event the CLIENT or his representative orders
work described in this PROPOSAL/AGREEMENT, that action shall constitute the CLIENT’s acceptance of this
PROPOSAL/AGREEMENT and its terms and conditions

SITE ACCESS AND SITE CONDITIONS

The CLIENT will grant or obtain free access to the site for all equipment and personnel necessary for AVILES ENGINEERING to
perform the services described in this PROPOSAL/AGREEMENT, as well as provide location data for all below and above ground
structures, pipelines and utilities. For such items encountered, not called to the attention of AVILES ENGINEERING, the CLIENT
shall assume responsibility for any resultant damages. AVILES ENGINEERING will take reasonable precautions to minimize
damage to the site, but it is understood by the CLIENT that, in the normal course of work, some damage may occur and the
correction of such damage is not part of this AGREEMENT. The CLIENT will notify AVILES ENGINEERING of any known
toxic and/or hazardous materials on site and shall assume responsibility for the cost of occurrences due to unknown toxic and/or
hazardous materials on site.

BILLING AND PAYMENT

The CLIENT will pay AVILES ENGINEERING the estimated time and materials with Not-To-Exceed maximum fees shown in the
PROPOSAL/AGREEMENT. Invoices will be submitted to the CLIENT by AVILES ENGINEERING, and will be due and payable
within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. CLIENT will pay an additional charge of 1.5 percent per month on any delinquent
amount, and agrees to pay attorney’s fees and/or other costs involved in any required collection activity.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY / INDEMNIFICATION

If at any time, there shall be or arise any liability on the part of AVILES ENGINEERING by virtue of this Agreement or because of
the relation hereby established, whether due to the negligence of AVILES ENGINEERING (including gross negligence) or
otherwise, such liability is and shall be limited to a sum equal in amount to the fee charged by AVILES ENGINEERING. AVILES
ENGINEERING and CLIENT agree to indemnify each other from any claims, etc., including attorney’s fees and litigation costs, to
the proportionate extent caused by each party’s own negligence. If AVILES ENGINEERING is found to be prevalent in any third
party lawsuits relating to this AGREEMENT, the CLIENT shall pay all AVILES ENGINEERING costs, including legal fees, that
were incurred as a result thereof.



Geotechnical Investigation
SJRA Siphon 21 Improvements
Harris County, Texas

AEC Proposal No. G2025-11-10

11/25/2025 ENGINEERING CORP.
ITEMIZED FEE ESTIMATE
Two Borings@50'
A. FIELD INVESTIGATION QTY UNIT RATE AMOUNT
Mobilization/Demobilization (Buggy Rig) 1 LS @ | $1,012.00 $1,012.00
Drilling Crew Daily Travel 1 day @ $565.00 $565.00
Site Visit and Boring Layout (Geologist) 8 hr. @ $133.00 $1,064.00
Utility Check and Field Coordination (Geologist) 3 hr. @ $133.00 $399.00
Soil Drilling/Continuous 3" Sampling (0-20") 40 ft. @) $27.00 $1,080.00
Soil Drilling/Intermittent 3" Sampling (20'-50") 60 ft. @ $24.00 $1,440.00
Logging Soil Borings (Senior Technician) 20 hr. @ $95.00 $1,900.00
Surcharge for Drilling with Buggy Rig 50 ft. @) $11.00 $550.00
Drilling Fluid and Soil Cutting Cleanup 2 hr. @ $320.00 $640.00
Grouting Holes (Betonite Chips) 50 ft. @ $13.00 $650.00
24 Hours Groundwater Readings (Technician) 8 hr. @ $85.00 $680.00
Vehicle Charge 36 hr. @ $13.00 $468.00
SUBTOTAL $10,448.00
B. GEOTECHNICAL LABORATORY TESTING
Atterberg Limits (ASTM D-4318) 10 ea. @ $76.00 $760.00
Passing No. 200 Sieve (ASTM D-1140) 2 ea. @ $59.00 $118.00
Sieve Analysis w/o Hydrometer (ASTM D-422) 1 ea. @ $69.00 $69.00
Moisture Content (ASTM D-2216) 32 ea. @ $12.00 $384.00
Unconfined Compression (ASTM D-2166) 4 ea. @ $54.00 $216.00
Unconsolidated-Undrained Test (ASTM D-2850) 5 ea. @ $77.00 $385.00
Crumb Test (ASTM D-6572) 4 ea. @ $46.00 $184.00
Double Hydrometer (ASTM D-4221) 2 ea. @ $266.00 $532.00
Consolidated-Undrained Triaxial Test (ASTM D-4767) 2 set @ | $1,800.00 $3,600.00
Consolidation Test (ASTM D-2435) 2 ea. @ $913.00 $1,826.00
SUBTOTAL $8,074.00
C. LEVEE SLOPE STABILITY ANALYSIS
Principal Engineer (P.E.) 4 hr. @ $266.00 $1,064.00
Project Engineer (P.E.) 20 hr. @ $176.00 $3,520.00
SUBTOTAL $4,584.00
D. ENGINEERING ANALYSIS & REPORT PREPARATION
Principal Engineer (P.E.) 4 hr. @ $266.00 $1,064.00
Senior Engineer (P.E.) 10 hr. @ $218.00 $2,180.00
Project Engineer (P.E.) 16 hr. @ $176.00 $2,816.00
Staff Engineer (EIT) 20 hrs. @ $122.00 $2,440.00
Clerical/Word Processor 1 hr. @ $75.00 $75.00
Reproduction (One pdf draft and 2 hard copies of final report) 2 copy @ $40.00 $80.00
SUBTOTAL $8,655.00
E. Meetings
Principal Engineer (P.E.) 2 hr. @ $266.00 $532.00
Senior Engineer (P.E.) 2 hr. @ $218.00 $436.00
SUBTOTAL $968.00
TOTAL ESTIMATED FEE $32,729.00




-

.'.‘

HCFCD Unit # G103-05-00 S

." : ‘ .':
- Ll l‘;;.f-!.‘ ]

AVILES ENGINEERING CORPORATION
LEGEND:

PROPOSED BORING LOCATION PLAN

PROPOSED BORING LOCATION
B-# (X') BORING NO. & DEPTH (FT.)
PZ4# (X)) PIEZOMETER NO. & DEPTH (FT,) SJRA SIPHON 21 IMPROVEMENTS
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
o PREVIOUS BORING LOCA TION AEC PROPOSAL NO.: DATE: SOURCE DRAWING PROVIDED BY:
GXXX-XX AVILES PROJECT NO. G2025-11-10 11-25-25 Google Earth

B-#(X') BORING NO. & DEPTH (FT.) APPROX. SCALE: DRAFTED B PLATENG:
"= 100 PLATE 1




S J RA‘ Board Communication
SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Item No. Agenda Item Date

7.2 Consider adoption of a resolution of the San Jacinto River Authority Board of | 02/26/2026
Directors adopting an amended Procurement Policy by amending Section 2(h)(i),
“Delegation of Authority”, formalizing the General Manager’s approval authority.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The current Procurement Policy (“the Policy””) was adopted by the Board of Directors on December 11, 2025. This
resolution amends Section 2(h)(i), “Delegation of Authority”, to clearly define the General Manager’s approval
authority as follows:

2. Policy
h. Delegation of Authority
i. The General Manager is authorized to approve and execute all instruments on behalf of the Authority,
including but not limited to agreements, contracts, renewals, extensions, amendments, work orders,
and change orders, provided that such documents do not involve a financial expenditure by the
Authority in excess of $150,000.

The previously adopted Policy referenced Chapter 49 of the Texas Water Code, and the proposed update provides
further formalization of the dollar limits for delegation.

To provide clarity and consistency, staff recommends adoption of the proposed Policy.

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution, Redline Policy, and Non-redline Policy

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Adopt a resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Jacinto River Authority approving and adopting an amended
Procurement Policy.




RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN JACINTO RIVER
AUTHORITY ADOPTING A PROCUREMENT POLICY.

WHEREAS, the San Jacinto River Authority (the “Authority”) is a conservation and reclamation
district and a governmental agency and political subdivision of the State of Texas, created and operating
under the provisions of Chapter 426, Acts of the 45th Texas Legislature, Regular Session, 1937, enacted
pursuant to Article XVI, Section 59 of the Constitution of Texas; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority previously passed and adopted Resolution
No 2025-R-31, on December 11, 2025, adopting a revised Procurement Policy for the Authority (the "Prior
Policy"); and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority wishes to further revise the Procurement
Policy for the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN
JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY THAT:

SECTION 1: The Authority hereby approves and adopts the Procurement Policy attached hereto
as Exhibit “A” (the “Procurement Policy”).

SECTION 2: The Procurement Policy shall supersede and replace the Prior Policy in all respects
and, therefore, the Prior Policy is hereby repealed, revoked, and rescinded. Any other prior resolutions,
orders, policies, or procedures of the Authority that are inconsistent or in conflict with this Resolution or
the Procurement Policy approved and adopted hereunder are hereby repealed to the extent of such
inconsistency or conflict.

SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after the date
of its passage, approval, and adoption until repealed, revoked, rescinded, amended, or modified by
appropriate action of the Board of Directors of the Authority.

SECTION 4: If any provision of this Resolution or application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, or application
thereof, of this Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this
end, the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be severable.

SECTION 5: The President of the Board of Directors of the Authority is hereby authorized to
sign, and the Secretary of said Board is hereby authority to attest, this Resolution on behalf of said Board
and the Authority. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and adoption.



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Jacinto River Authority on this 26th
day of February, 2026.

ATTEST: SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY
Wil Faubel, Board Secretary Ronnie Anderson, Board President
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Amy Sims, General Counsel

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Aubrey A. Spear, General Manager



Exhibit “A”




Exhibit “A”

EE—

SJIRA=—/]

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Procurement Policy

Approved by the Board of Directors on PecemberH;2025February 26, 2026 by Resolution No.
20256-R-__ 3+




San Jacinto River Authority
Procurement Policy

The San Jacinto River Authority (Authority) shall purchase all goods and services, in compliance
with all applicable regulatory and statutory requirements, at the best value for the Authority.
Procurement by the Authority will be guided by statutes, policy, procedures, and best practices.
The Authority will promote competition, fairness, stewardship, and transparency in the
procurement of goods and services.

This policy applies to all STRA employees involved in procurement-related activities across all
divisions, facilities, and locations. It governs the processes, responsibilities, and requirements for
purchasing goods and services, including solicitation, evaluation, contract award, and related
documentation.

1.  Statutory References

All references herein to federal or state laws or regulations shall mean and refer to such laws
or regulations as amended from time to time.

2. Policy
a. Procurement of Materials, Supplies, and Equipment

Procurement of materials, supplies, and equipment shall be conducted in accordance with
Texas Water Code Chapter 49, Subsection I.

b. Procurement of General Services

Procurement of general services shall be conducted in accordance with Texas Water
Code Chapter 49, Subsection L.

¢. Procurement of Technology

Procurement of technology goods and services shall be conducted in accordance with
Texas Local Government Code Chapter 252.

d. Procurement of Professional Services

1.  Procurement of Architectural, Engineering, or Surveying Services shall be
conducted in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2254.

ii.  Procurement of Outside Legal Services shall comply with Texas Water Code
49.057(d). When selecting attorneys, Authority staff shall follow Subchapter A,
Chapter 2254 of the Texas Government Code. The General Manager is authorized
to engage outside legal counsel as necessary to support the Authority’s legal

Procurement Policy Deeember H;2025Fcbruary 26, 2026



representation; however, in selecting any firm or attorney, the General Manager
shall consider the expertise, cost, and potential conflicts of interest, as outlined in
the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct.

iii.  Procurement of Other Professional Services shall be conducted in accordance with
Texas Government Code 2254.003 when acquiring professional services not
covered under 2254.004. The General Manager and designated staff shall select the
most highly qualified provider of such services based on: (i) demonstrated
competence and qualifications to perform the services, and (ii) negotiate a contract
with the provider for a fair and reasonable price.

iv.  Inaccordance with Texas Administrative Code, Title 30, Chapter 292, Rule 292.13,
the Authority shall maintain a list of at least three qualified persons or firms for
each area of Professional Services it utilizes.

v.  The selection and award of a Professional Services Contract—including a
Professional Services Agreement, Master Professional Services Agreement, or
Engagement Letter—shall comply with all applicable requirements of the general
and special laws of the State of Texas.

e. Procurement of Construction Services

Procurement of construction services shall be conducted in accordance with Texas
Water Code Chapter 49, or in accordance with Chapter 2269 of the Texas Government
Code, if an alternative procurement method is selected.

f. Exemptions from Competitive Procurement

1.  Emergency Procurements shall be conducted in accordance with Texas Water Code
49.274 and Texas Local Government Code 252.

ii.  Purchases of goods or services for which there is only one source—due to patents,
copyrights, natural monopolies, gas, water, or other utility services; captive
replacement parts or components for equipment; or any circumstance in which
competition is otherwise impracticable—are exempt from competitive solicitation.
Similarly, purchases for which a specific single source is required to maintain
compatibility or standardization with existing equipment or systems, comply with
proprietary system requirements, or are unique in nature or limited by sales territory
or product availability, are also exempt from competitive solicitation. The General
Manager shall develop and implement a procedure for reviewing and approving
any justification for sole source or single source procurement of materials, supplies,
equipment, or services.

iii.  Purchases of goods or services under an approved interlocal agreement or
cooperative purchasing program shall be conducted in accordance with Texas
Government Code Chapters 791 & 792 and shall satisfy the Authority’s

Procurement Policy Deeember H;2025Fcbruary 26, 2026



requirement to seek competitive bids or proposals.

iv.  Purchase of security or surveillance system or components of or additions to
Authority facilities relating to security or surveillance, including systems used for
the prevention of terrorist acts or incidents or acts of war, is exempt from
competitive solicitation, if the General Manager finds that doing so would
compromise the safety and security of Authority facilities or residents.

g. Disposal of Salvage and Surplus Property

1. The disposal of salvage and surplus property shall be conducted in accordance with
Texas Government Code Chapter 2175.

ii.  Itis the Authority’s intent in selling or disposing of salvage and surplus property to
seek the maximum financial return achievable within a reasonable period and with
minimal staff and administrative effort. The Board of Directors hereby delegates to
the General Manager the authority to declare any Authority personal property as
salvage or surplus property and to dispose of such property. The General Manager
shall determine the method of sale that is most advantageous to the Authority under
the circumstances.

iii.  The declaration of any Authority interest in real property as surplus property, and
any subsequent sale, transfer, or other disposition of that interest, shall require

Board approval.

h. Delegation of Authority

Water Code-Chapter49-The General Manager is authorized to approve and execute
all contracts—asreements—and-instruments on behalf of the Authority, including but
not limited to agreements, contracts, renewals, extensions, amendments, work
orders, and change orders, provided that such documents do not involve a financial
expenditure by the Authority in excess of $150.000.

ii.  The Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager to develop procedures
governing the form and substance of administrative actions necessary for the
procurement of materials, supplies, equipment, general services, professional
services, construction services, exempt procurements, and any other procurements
required for the day-to-day operations of the Authority. These procedures should
be designed to achieve the best value for the Authority and must be consistent with
this policy, the Authority’s enabling legislation, and all applicable general and
special laws of the State of Texas.

The Procurement Policy has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the San Jacinto River

Procurement Policy Deeember H;2025Fcbruary 26, 2026



Authority on this 1126 day of FebruaryDeeember, 20256.

Procurement Policy Deeember H;2025February 26, 2026



Exhibit “A”

—

SJIRA=—/]

SAN JACINTO RIVER AUTHORITY

Procurement Policy

Approved by the Board of Directors on February 26, 2026 by Resolution No. 2026-R- .



San Jacinto River Authority
Procurement Policy

The San Jacinto River Authority (Authority) shall purchase all goods and services, in compliance
with all applicable regulatory and statutory requirements, at the best value for the Authority.
Procurement by the Authority will be guided by statutes, policy, procedures, and best practices.
The Authority will promote competition, fairness, stewardship, and transparency in the
procurement of goods and services.

This policy applies to all SIRA employees involved in procurement-related activities across all
divisions, facilities, and locations. It governs the processes, responsibilities, and requirements for
purchasing goods and services, including solicitation, evaluation, contract award, and related
documentation.

1.  Statutory References

All references herein to federal or state laws or regulations shall mean and refer to such laws
or regulations as amended from time to time.

2. Policy
a. Procurement of Materials, Supplies, and Equipment

Procurement of materials, supplies, and equipment shall be conducted in accordance with
Texas Water Code Chapter 49, Subsection 1.

b. Procurement of General Services

Procurement of general services shall be conducted in accordance with Texas Water
Code Chapter 49, Subsection I.

¢. Procurement of Technology

Procurement of technology goods and services shall be conducted in accordance with
Texas Local Government Code Chapter 252.

d. Procurement of Professional Services

i.  Procurement of Architectural, Engineering, or Surveying Services shall be
conducted in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2254.

ii.  Procurement of Outside Legal Services shall comply with Texas Water Code
49.057(d). When selecting attorneys, Authority staff shall follow Subchapter A,
Chapter 2254 of the Texas Government Code. The General Manager is authorized
to engage outside legal counsel as necessary to support the Authority’s legal

Procurement Policy February 26, 2026



representation; however, in selecting any firm or attorney, the General Manager
shall consider the expertise, cost, and potential conflicts of interest, as outlined in
the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct.

iii.  Procurement of Other Professional Services shall be conducted in accordance with
Texas Government Code 2254.003 when acquiring professional services not
covered under 2254.004. The General Manager and designated staff shall select the
most highly qualified provider of such services based on: (i) demonstrated
competence and qualifications to perform the services, and (ii) negotiate a contract
with the provider for a fair and reasonable price.

iv.  Inaccordance with Texas Administrative Code, Title 30, Chapter 292, Rule 292.13,
the Authority shall maintain a list of at least three qualified persons or firms for
each arca of Professional Services it utilizes.

v.  The selection and award of a Professional Services Contract—including a
Professional Services Agreement, Master Professional Services Agreement, or
Engagement Letter—shall comply with all applicable requirements of the general
and special laws of the State of Texas.

e. Procurement of Construction Services

Procurement of construction services shall be conducted in accordance with Texas
Water Code Chapter 49, or in accordance with Chapter 2269 of the Texas Government
Code, if an alternative procurement method is selected.

f. Exemptions from Competitive Procurement

1. Emergency Procurements shall be conducted in accordance with Texas Water Code
49.274 and Texas Local Government Code 252.

ii.  Purchases of goods or services for which there is only one source—due to patents,
copyrights, natural monopolies, gas, water, or other utility services; captive
replacement parts or components for equipment; or any circumstance in which
competition is otherwise impracticable—are exempt from competitive solicitation.
Similarly, purchases for which a specific single source is required to maintain
compatibility or standardization with existing equipment or systems, comply with
proprietary system requirements, or are unique in nature or limited by sales territory
or product availability, are also exempt from competitive solicitation. The General
Manager shall develop and implement a procedure for reviewing and approving
any justification for sole source or single source procurement of materials, supplies,
equipment, or services.

iii.  Purchases of goods or services under an approved interlocal agreement or
cooperative purchasing program shall be conducted in accordance with Texas
Government Code Chapters 791 & 792 and shall satisfy the Authority’s

Procurement Policy February 26, 2026



requirement to seek competitive bids or proposals.

iv.  Purchase of security or surveillance system or components of or additions to
Authority facilities relating to security or surveillance, including systems used for
the prevention of terrorist acts or incidents or acts of war, is exempt from
competitive solicitation, if the General Manager finds that doing so would
compromise the safety and security of Authority facilities or residents.

g. Disposal of Salvage and Surplus Property

1. The disposal of salvage and surplus property shall be conducted in accordance with
Texas Government Code Chapter 2175.

ii.  Itis the Authority’s intent in selling or disposing of salvage and surplus property to
seek the maximum financial return achievable within a reasonable period and with
minimal staff and administrative effort. The Board of Directors hereby delegates to
the General Manager the authority to declare any Authority personal property as
salvage or surplus property and to dispose of such property. The General Manager
shall determine the method of sale that is most advantageous to the Authority under
the circumstances.

iii.  The declaration of any Authority interest in real property as surplus property, and
any subsequent sale, transfer, or other disposition of that interest, shall require
Board approval.

h. Delegation of Authority

i.  The General Manager is authorized to approve and execute all instruments on
behalf of the Authority, including but not limited to agreements, contracts,
renewals, extensions, amendments, work orders, and change orders, provided that
such documents do not involve a financial expenditure by the Authority in excess
of $150,000.

ii.  The Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager to develop procedures
governing the form and substance of administrative actions necessary for the
procurement of materials, supplies, equipment, general services, professional
services, construction services, exempt procurements, and any other procurements
required for the day-to-day operations of the Authority. These procedures should
be designed to achieve the best value for the Authority and must be consistent with
this policy, the Authority’s enabling legislation, and all applicable general and
special laws of the State of Texas.

The Procurement Policy has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the San Jacinto River
Authority on this 26" day of February, 2026.

Procurement Policy February 26, 2026



	_A  Board Package Coversheet
	_AGENDA_022626
	6.1  CS_Minutes
	6.1 BU_Minutes_DRAFT
	6.2  CS_Unaudited Financials
	6.2 BU_Unaudited Financials_December 2025
	6.3  CS_Mowing and Landscaping Svcs
	6.3 BU_Mowing and Landscaping Svcs_Backup
	6.4  CS_WO1 AM1 Structure 2 and SC Bypass Levee
	6.4 BU_WO1 AM1 Structure 2 and SC Bypass Levee_Backup
	6.5  CS_WO2 AM1 EST6
	6.5 BU_WO2 AM1 EST6_Backup
	7.1  CS_PSA WO1 Siphon 21 Imprvmnts
	7.1 BU_PSA WO1 Siphon 21 Imprvmnts_Backup
	7.2  CS_Procurement Policy
	7.2 BU1_Procurement Policy_Resolution
	7.2 BU2_Procurement Policy AM_Policy_Redline Version
	7.2 BU3_Procurement Policy AM_Policy_Non-Redline Version

